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November 18, 2016







The City of Traverse City

TRAVERSE CITY HOUSING COMMISSION D0
150 Pine Street, Traverse City, Michigan, 49684
T:(231) 922-4915 | F:(231)922-2893

TDD: (800) 649-3777

I

NOTICE

THE TRAVERSE CITY HOUSING COMMISSION WILL CONDUCT A REGULAR MEETING

ON FRIDAY, NOVEMBER 18, 2016 AT 8:00 A.M.

SECOND FLOOR COMMITTEE ROOM — GOVERNMENTAL CENTER
400 Boardman Avenue, Traverse City, Michigan, 49684
(231) 995-5150

POSTED: NOVEMBER 16, 2016

The Traverse City Housing Commission does not discriminate on the basis of disability in the
admission or access to, or treatment or employment in, its programs or activities. Please, contact
the Traverse City Housing Commission Office, 150 Pine Street, Traverse City, Michigan, 49684,
(231) 922-4915, to coordinate specific needs in compliance with the non-discrimination
requirements continued in Section 35.087 of the Department of Justice Regulations. Information
concerning the provisions of Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), and the rights provided
hereunder, are available from the ADA Coordinator.

If you are planning to attend and you have a disability requiring any special assistance at the
meeting, please notify the Executive Director immediately.

AGENDA
CALL TO ORDER & ROLL CALL
APPROVAL OF AGENDA
PUBLIC COMMENT

CONSENT AGENDA

The purpose of the Consent Agenda is to expedite business by grouping non-controversial items
together to be dealt with by one Commission motion without discussion. Any member of the
Commission, staff or the public may ask that any item on the Consent Agenda be removed from
and placed elsewhere on the agenda for full discussion. Such requests will automatically be
respected. If an item is not removed from the Consent Agenda the action noted on the Agenda
is approved by a single Commission action adopting the Consent Agenda (a/l items on the Consent

Agenda are printed in italics).

A. Consideration of Approval of October 28, 2016 Regular Meeting Minutes — Approval
Recommended.
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B. Consideration of Approval of November 7, 2016 Special Meeting Minutes — Approval

Recommended.
C. Consideration of Approval of Schedule of Disbursements for October 2016 for Public Housing

& HCV Section 8 Programs — Approval Recommended.
D. Review & Approval of Payment of Invoices for November 2016 — Approval Recommended.
E. Review & Acceptance of Financial Statements for October 2016 — Approval Recommended.

COMMITTEE & COMMISSIONER REPORTS

A. None

STAFF & PROGRAM REPORTS

A. Executive Director’s Report
B. Family Self-Sufficiency (FSS) Program Report
C. Resident Council Report

OLD BUSINESS

2017 Consolidated Budget: Review
TCHC Policy Review Schedule: Update
Executive Director Annual Review: Update

Office Construction: Update
Updated on HUD & Fair Housing Act RE: Quid Pro Quo and Hostile Environment Harassment

mooOow®>

NEW BUSINESS
2017 Meeting Schedule
Strategic Planning Update Session: December 16, 2016

Resolution of Inventory Disposal for 2016
Resolution on Doubtful Accounts
Discussion on Follow-up to ACLU Letter of November 3, 2016

moowmp

CORRESPONDENCE
A. November 11, 2016 FOIA Request from the Record Eagle

PUBLIC COMMENT
COMMISSIONER COMMENT

ADJOURNMENT

NEXT SCHEDULED MEETING: Friday, January 27, 2017 at 9:00 A.M. (Pending Approval)
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Traverse City Housing Commission
A Public Housing Authority

CONSENT AGENDA

October 28, 2016 Regular Meeting Minutes

November 7, 2016 Special Meeting Minutes
Schedule of Disbursements for October 2016 for Public Housing
Schedule of Disbursements for October 2016 for HCV Section 8 Programs
Invoices for November 2016

Financial Statements for October 2016



DRAFT Meeting Minutes of the Traverse City Housing Commission
October 28, 2016

A Regular Meeting of the Traverse City Housing Commission was called to order by President Brian Haas
at the Governmental Center — Second Floor Committee Room, 400 Boardman Avenue, Traverse City at

8:03 a.m.

I ROLL CALL
The following Commissioners were present: Brian Haas, Richard Michael, Kay Serratelli, Jo

Simerson and Andy Smits.
Staff: Tony Lentych, Executive Director; JoAnn Turnbull, Retiring Deputy Director; and

Michelle Reardon, Deputy Director.
Residents: Ellen Corcoran, Norma Loper, Michelle St. Amant, and Priscilla Townsend.

Public: Tom Mair.

i APPROVAL OF AGENDA
Commissioner Serratelli moved (Michael support) to accept the agenda as presented. The

motion was unanimously approved.

{]] PUBLIC COMMENT
General comments: Tom Mair offered a comment of introduction.

\"] CONSENT AGENDA
Commissioner Simerson moved (Smits support) to approve the Consent Calendar as presented.
The motion was unanimously approved:
A. Approval of the Meeting Minutes of the September 23, 2016 Regular Commission Meeting.
B. Approval of the Meeting Minutes of the October 14, 2016 Special Commission Meeting.
C. Acceptance of the Schedule of Disbursements for September 2016 for Public Housing and
Housing Choice Voucher Section 8 Programs.
D. Review of the Payment of invoices for October 2016.
E. Acceptance of the Financial Statements for September 2016.

\' COMMITTEE REPORTS
A. The meeting minutes of the October 23, 2016 Executive & Governance Committee meeting

were presented. There was no discussion.
B. The meeting minutes of the October 25, 2016 Governance Committee were presented.

There was no discussion.
C. Commissioner Michael made a comment about the future of the Finance & Compliance

Committee.

Vi STAFF AND PROGRAM REPORTS
A. Executive Director’s Report: T. Lentych provided information about potential development

projects.
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B. Family Self-Sufficiency Report: There were no comments or questions.
C. Resident Council Report: There were no comments or questions.

OLD BUSINESS

A. The FY 2017 Budget was reviewed.

B. TCHC Policy Review Schedule was presented and briefly discussed.

C. Executive Director Annual Review: The Executive Committee will conclude their review for

the November meeting.

NEW BUSINESS
A. The final draft of the Pet Policy was presented and reviewed. Commissioner Smits moved

(Simerson support) to adopt the Pet Policy with an effective date of January 1, 2017. The
motion was unanimously approved.

B. The Office renovation project was presented and reviewed. Commissioner Smits moved
(Serratelli support) to accept and approve the bid submitted by Spence Brothers. The
motion was unanimously approved.

C. Avresolution on the impact of Proposal 3 on Public Housing was presented and reviewed.
Commissioner Smits moved (Serratelli support) to adopt the resolution as presented.

Roll call

Hass Yes
Michael Yes
Serratelli Yes
Simerson Yes
Smits Yes

The resolution was unanimously adopted.

CORRESPONDENCE
The Public Housing Assessment System (PHAS) Score Report for Interim Rule was presented and

reviewed.

PUBLIC COMMENT
General comments: Priscilla Townsend, Michelle St. Amant, Tom Mair, and Norma Loper.

COMMISSIONER COMMENT

The following Commissioners made comments:

Commissioner Smits commented that the resolution passed by the Commission today is self-
evident.

Commissioner Michael commented that affordable housing can only occur through cooperation
and that is incredibly difficult to do.

Commissioner Haas commented that the Commission has an obligation to state its opinion on
Proposal 3 as it has a great impact on the Commission’s work and mission.

Page 2 of 3
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ADJOURNMENT
Commissioner Smits moved (Simerson support) to adjourn. The motion was unanimously
approved and President Haas adjourned the meeting at 8:55 a.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Michelle Reardon for JoAnn Turnbull, Recording Secretary

Brian Haas, President

Page30f 3
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DRAFT Meeting Minutes of the Traverse City Housing Commission
November 7, 2016

A Special Meeting of the Traverse City Housing Commission was called to order by President Brian Haas
at Governmental Center — Second Floor Committee Room, 400 Boardman Avenue, Traverse City at 8:02

a.m.

| ROLL CALL

The following Commissioners were present: Brian Haas, Richard Michael, Kay Serratelli, Jo

Simerson and Andy Smits.
Staff: Tony Lentych, Executive Director; JoAnn Turnbull, Retiring Deputy Director;
Michelle Reardon, Deputy Director; Alisa Kroupa, Office Manager; Ward Kuhn, Attorney
for the TCHC.
Residents: Ellen Corcoran, Tom Finney, Norma Loper, Michelle St. Amant, and Priscilla
Townsend.
Public: Jordan Travis.

i APPROVAL OF AGENDA
Commissioner Smits moved (Simerson support) to accept the agenda as presented. The motion

was unanimously approved.

]| NEW BUSINESS
A. Commissioner Smits moved (Serratelli support) to confer with counsel in closed session with
regard to the communications received. The Commission discussed the process for closed
session. Commissioner Smits (Serratelli second) withdrew the motion as it was improperly

drawn.

The Commission called a brief recess to allow T. Lentych to meet with counsel regarding packet
information.

The meeting was reconvened by President Haas at 8:20 a.m.

Staff reviewed the packet contents.

The Commission discussed the letter from Grant W. Parsons and staff’s response.

The Commission discussed the events of October 31 & November 1, 2016.

The Commission discussed the letter from the American Civil Liberties Union. It was a
consensus of the members that more information is necessary prior to any response to the
ACLU demands. Staff will respond to the FIOA request as required.

moow®

v PUBLIC COMMENT
General comment: Michelle St. Amant.
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COMMISSIONER COMMENT
The following Commissioners made comments:

Commissioner Michael commented that complying with the ACLU demands as outlined in their
letter would not serve our residents.

Commissioner Serratelli is concerned that the incident that occurred on October 28, 2016 has
some elements of bullying or at least the use of some pressure tactics. The Housing Commission
needs to address this issue through policy.

Commissioner Smits provided a HUD document titled “Resident Rights & Responsibilities”. He
also commented that the TCHC must prevent bullying within our properties.

Commission Haas stated he is concerned about alleged bullying activities and feels we should

address this issue through policy.

ADJOURNMENT
Commissioner Smits moved (Michael support) to adjourn. The motion was unanimously
approved and President Haas adjourned the meeting at 9:42 a.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Michelle Reardon on behalf of JoAnn Turnbull, Recording Secretary

Brian Haas, President

Page 2 of 2
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vdtle, 11/10/£V1I0 Traverse City Housing Commission
Time: 15:17:24 Check Register Summary Report
Chemical Bank
From: 10/01/2016 To: 10/31/2016

rage: 1

Date Ref Num Payee Payment Deposit Balance
10/04/2016 ADJST NSF Judith Neighbors ( 368.12) 159,999.18
10/04/2016 ADJST NSF Chemical Bank Fee 10.00 159,9689.18
10/05/20186 036700 David Gourlay 92.88 159,896.30
10/05/2016 036701 Benjamin Weston 45.90 159,850.40
10/05/2016 036702 Cardmember Service 1,827.41 158,022.99
10/05/2016 036703 City Of Traverse City 249.76 157,773.23
10/05/2016 036704 Barton Carroll's Inc 2,900.00 154,873.23
10/05/2016 036705 Ace Hardware 51.83 154,821.40
10/05/2016 036706 Safety Net 586.40 154,235.00
10/056/2016 036707 Kelly Services, Inc. 768.46 153,466.54
10/05/2016 036708 Kendall Electric Inc 180.15 163,286.39
10/05/2016 036709 Sherwin Williams Co. 621.30 152,665.09
10/05/2016 036710 D & W Mechanical 161.50 152,503.59
10/05/2016 036711 MailFinance 1490.85 152,353.74
10/05/2016 036712 Aflac 81.24 152,272.50
10/05/2016 036713 AT&T 210.44 152,062.06
10/05/2016 036714 Uline 1,753.50 150,308.56
10/056/2016 036715 City Of Traverse City 2561.07 150,057 .49
10/05/2018 036716 Charter Communications 3,187.36 146,870.13
10/06/2016 036717 McCardel Water Conditioning 38.00 146,832.13
10/05/2016 036718 HD Supply 269.97 146,562.16
10/05/2016 036719 Keiser Services LLC 2,260.00 144,302.16
10/05/2016 036720 Total Attention 1,460.12 142,842.04
10/05/2016 036721 Housing Authority Accounting 1,099.41 141,742.63
10/05/2016 036722 Verizon Wireless 98.45 141,644.18
10/05/2016 036723 Charles Edwards 825,12 140,819.06
10/05/2016 036724 City Of Traverse City 20.00 140,799.06
10/05/2016 036725 DTE ENERGY 26.00 140,773.06
10/05/2016 036726 Thomas P. Licavoli 1,870.00 138,903.06
10/12/2016 EFT Principal 782.30 138,120.76
10/13/2016 DEP 453,10 138,573.86
10/14/2016 EFT State of Michigan 3,268.26 135,305.60
10/20/2016 EFT State of Michigan 588.27 134,717.33
10/20/2016 036727 Home Depot Credit Services 601.30 134,116.03
10/20/2016 036728 SAM'S CLUB 527.38 133,588.656
10/20/2016 036729 TC Millworks 50.22 133,538.43
10/20/2016 036730 NORTHERN FIRE & SAFETY 148.00 133,390.43
10/20/2016 036731 AT&T 206.85 133,183.58
10/20/2016 036732 Kendall Electric Inc 56.79 133,126.79L.5
10/20/2016 036733 Dolly’s Best Inc. 1,800.00 131,326.79




Date: 11/10/2010 Traverse City Housing Commission
Time: 15:17:24 Check Register Summary Report
Chemical Bank
From: 10/01/2016 To: 10/31/2016

Page: 2

Date Ref Num Payee Payment Deposit Balance
10/20/2016 036734 Cobb's Pest Control 85.00 131,241.79
10/20/2016 036735 Munson Occupational Health & Medicine 1056.00 131,136.79
10/20/2016 036736 Career Uniforms 301.84 130,834.95
10/20/2016 036737 Great Lakes Business Systems, Inc. 283.64 130,561.31
10/20/2016 036738 Housing Data Systems 3,765.00 126,786.31
10/20/2016 036739 Grand Traverse County DPW 483.00 126,303.31
10/20/2016 036740 Sondee, Racine & Doren, P.L.C. 96.00 126,207.31
10/20/2016 036741 Staples Business Advantage 1,676.32 124,830.99
10/20/2016 036742 Republic Services #239 950.00 123,880.99
10/20/2016 036743 Guardian Medical Monitoring 14.95 123,666.04
10/20/2016 036744 CynergyComm.net,Inc 8.26 123,657.78
10/20/2016 036745 City of Traverse City, Treasurer's Office 8,085.46 115,672.32
10/20/2016 036746 Advantage Electric, LLC 8,800.00 106,772.32
10/20/2016 036747 Environmental Pest Control 270.00 106,502.32
10/20/2016 036748 BLOXSOM ROOFING AND SIDING 160.00 106,342.32
10/20/2016 036749 Integrated Payroll Services, Inc. 98.90 108,243.42
10/20/2016 036750 DTE ENERGY 1568.42 106,085.00
10/20/2016 036751 Aflac 162.48 105,922.52
10/20/2016 036752 Save Carpet USA 4,926.00 100,996.52
10/20/2016 036753 Kuhn Rogers PLC 234,72 100,761.80
10/20/2016 036754 Otis Elevator Company 1,860.00 98,901.80
10/20/2016 036755 Safety Net 619.00 98,282.80
10/20/2016 036756 Traverse Outdoor 76.00 98,206.80
10/20/2016 036757 CBC Innovis, Inc. 41.75 98,165.05
10/20/2016 036758 Award Cleaning Services 1,875.00 96,290.05
10/20/2016 036759 The Nelrod Company 2,838.00 93,452.05
10/25/2016 ADJST Alisa Kroupa 992.14 92,459.91
10/256/2016 ADJST Anthony Lentych 2,353.67 90,106.24
10/25/2016 ADJST Kari Massa 1,167.05 88,939.19
10/25/2016 ADJST Michelle Reardon 1,480.31 87,458.88
10/25/2016 ADJST JoAnn Turnbull 5569.59 86,899.29
10/25/2016 ADJST Benjamin Weston 685.79 86,213.50
10/25/2016 ADJST Joseph Battaglia 276.98 85,936.52
10/25/12016 ADJST Charles Edwards 998.48 84,938.04
10/25/2016 ADJST David Gourlay 1,047.33 83,890.71
10/26/2016 036760 City of Traverse City, Treasurer's Office 24,914.86 58,975.85
10/26/2016 036761 Priority Health 5,517.44 53,458.41
10/28/2016 EFT Principal Life Insurance Co. 550.00 52,908.41
10/28/2016 EFT IRS 3,211.74 49,696,671 6
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Time: 15:17:51

{raverse City Aousing Commission

Check Register Summary Report

PNC - Section 8

From: 10/01/2016 To: 10/31/2016

rage. 1

Date Ref Num Payee Payment Deposit Balance
10/03/2016 EFT 8,173.00 172,2562.63
10/03/2016 EFT 82,651.00 254,903.63
10/03/2016 ADJST PNC 61.95 254,841.68
10/03/2016 000182 Sandra Aeschliman 198.00 254,643.68
10/03/2016 000182 Jeana Aiken 373.00 254,270.68
10/03/2016 000182 Dustin Ansorge 1,135.00 253,135.68
10/03/2016 000182 Brad Barnes 488.00 252,647.68
10/03/2016 000182 Bay Front Apartments 303.00 262,344.68
10/03/2016 000182 Bay Hill Housing LDHALP 4,150.00 248,194.68
10/03/2016 000182 Bay Hill Il Apartments 3,867.00 244,327 68
10/03/2016 000182 Bellaire Senior Apartments 631.00 243,696.68
10/03/2016 000182 Brookside Commons LDHA, LP 1,146.00 242,550.68
10/03/2016 000182 Irma Jean Brownley 355.00 242,195.68
10/03/2016 000182 Carson Square 6,138.00 236,057.68
10/03/2016 000182 Central Lake Townhouses 401.00 235,656.68
10/03/2016 000182 Cherrywood Village Farms, Inc. 2,237.00 233,419.68
10/03/2016 000182 Douglas A. Chichester 600.00 232,819.68
10/03/2016 000182 Cycle-Paths LLC. 873.00 231,946.68
10/03/2016 000182 Jack V. Dean 422.00 231,524.68
10/03/2016 000182 Dmytro Cherkasov 1,079.00 230,445.68
10/03/2016 000182 Shirley Farrell 845.00 229,600.68
10/03/2016 000182 Rent Leelanau, LLC 1,468.00 228,132.68
10/03/2016 000182 Lisa Forbes 489.00 227,643.88
10/03/2016 000182 Dale E. French 102.00 227,541.68
10/03/2016 000182 French Quarter Apts. 93.00 227,448.68
10/03/2016 000182 G Rentals 750,00 226,698.68
10/03/2016 000182 Michael Glowacki 640.00 226,058.68
10/03/2016 000182 David Grzesiek 370.00 225,688.68
10/03/2016 000182 Habitat for Humanity 65.00 225,623.68
10/03/2016 000182 Harbour Ridge Apts 1,271.00 224,352.68
10/03/2016 000182 Heartwood Enterprises 781.00 223,571.68
10/03/2016 000182 Louis Herman 24.00 223,547.68
10/03/2016 000182 Hillview Terrace §27.00 223,020.68
10/03/2016 000182 Josh Hollister 380.00 222,630.68
10/03/2016 000182 HomeStretch 3,067.00 219,563.68
10/03/2016 000182 Caroline Hupp 199.00 219,364.68
10/03/2016 000182 Joseph and Marion Fasel 358.00 219,0086.68
10/03/2016 000182 Donna Kalchik 323.00 218,683.68
10/03/2016 000182 Sidney Lammers 745.00 217,938.68 7
10/03/2016 000182 Legendary Rentals, LLC 565.00 217,383.68




Jdte. 1 10/£Vi0 1raverse GCity HOUSing commission
Time: 15:17:51 Check Register Summary Report
PNC - Section 8
From: 10/01/2016 To: 10/31/2016

rage. <

Date Ref Num Payee Payment Deposit Balance
10/03/2016 000182 Jeffrey R. Lenten 421.00 216,962.68
10/03/20186 000182 John J. Lewis 723.00 216,239.68
10/03/2016 000182 Don E. Lint 393.00 215,846.68
10/03/2016 000182 Juan Maldonado 400.00 215,446.68
10/03/2016 000182 Mathews Trust 766.00 214,680.68
10/03/2016 000182 McLain Management 462.00 214,218.68
10/03/2016 000182 James & Tamela Moquin 509.00 213,709.68
10/03/2016 000182 Northwest Michigan Supportive Housing 418.00 213,291.68
10/03/2016 000182 Oak Park Apts 1,824.00 211,467.68
10/03/2016 000182 Oak Terrace Apts 1,035.00 210,432.68
10/03/2016 000182 Gerald Oliver Revocable Trust 900.00 209,532.68
10/03/2016 000182 P Avium Associates, Inc. 506.00 209,026.68
10/03/2016 000182 Daniel G. Pohiman 1,427.00 207,599.68
10/03/2016 000182 Douglas L. Porter 438.00 207,161.68
10/03/2016 000182 Phillip Putney 630.00 206,531.68
10/03/2016 000182 Thomas Raven 506.00 206,025.68
10/03/2016 000182 Adele M. Reiter 995.00 205,030.68
10/03/2016 000182 Timothy Rice 429.00 204,601.68
10/03/20186 000182 Robert F. Follett 1,000.00 203,601.68
10/03/2016 000182 Sabin Pond Apartments LLC 800.00 202,801.68
10/03/2016 000182 John Sarya 485.00 202,316.68
10/03/2016 000182 Eldon Schaub 388.00 201,928.68
10/03/2016 000182 Gerald Sieggreen 670.00 201,258.68
10/03/2016 000182 SILVER SHORES MHC 161.00 201,097.68
10/03/2016 000182 Douglas & Julia Slack 327.00 200,770.68
10/03/2016 000182 22955 Investments LLC 3,500.00 197,270.68
10/03/2016 000182 Carl Sumner 508.00 196,762.68
10/03/2016 000182 Traverse City Property Management 3563.00 196,409.68
10/03/2016 000182 TCR Investments, LLC 1,020.00 195,389.68
10/03/2016 000182 Wendy Teagan 449.00 194,940.68
10/03/2016 000182 TOS Holdings, LLC 1,463.00 193,477.68
10/03/2016 000182 Tradewinds Terrace Apts 253.00 193,224.68
10/03/2016 000182 Village Glen Apartments 7,727.00 186,497.68
10/03/2016 000182 Woda Boardman Lake LDHA.LP 2,725.00 182,772.68
10/03/2016 000182 Catherine L. Wolfe 524.00 182,248.68
10/03/2016 000182 W oodmere Ridge Apartments LDHA LP 7,319.00 174,929.68
10/03/2016 000182 Theodore V. Zachman 795.00 174,134.68
10/03/2016 000182 Ann Zenner 497.00 173,637.68
10/03/2016 000182 Barb Zupin 1,177.00 172,460.63 8
10/05/2016 022942 Cherryland Electric Cooperative 134.00 172,326.68




Date: 11/10/2010 Traverse City Housing Commission Page:
Time: 15:17:51 Check Register Summary Report
PNC - Section 8
From: 10/01/2016 To: 10/31/2016

Date Ref Num Payee Payment Deposit Balance

10/05/2016 022943 City Of Traverse City 202.00 172,124.68

10/05/2016 022944 Consumers Energy 79.00 172,045.68

10/05/2016 022945 DTE ENERGY 402.00 171,643.68

10/05/2016 022946 Holtons LP Gas Fife Lake 21.00 171,622.68

10/20/2016 022948 Traverse City Housing Commission 11,156.40 160,466.28
Total: 94,437.35 90,824.00
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Time: 15:19:41
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Check Register Summary Report
Chemical Bank
From: 11/01/2016 To: 11/16/2016

Date Ref Num  Payee Payment Deposit Balance
11/08/2016 ADJST Alisa Kroupa 992.15 48,704.52
11/08/2016 ADJST Anthony Lentych 2,353.66 486,350.86
11/08/2016 ADJST Kari Massa 1,167.05 45,183.81
11/08/2016 ADJST Michelle Reardon 1,480.30 43,703.51
11/08/2016 ADJST JoAnn Turnbull 569.58 43,143.93
11/08/2016 ADJST Benjamin Weston 603.93 42,540.00
11/08/2016 ADJST Joseph Battaglia 276.98 42,263.02
11/08/2016 ADJST Charles Edwards 924.45 41,338.57
11/08/2016 ADJST David Gourlay 1,023.10 40,315.47
11/10/2016 036762 City Of Traverse City 77.00 40,238.47
11/10/2016 036763 DTE ENERGY 56.00 40,182.47
11/11/2016 036764 Guardian Medical Monitoring 29.90 40,152.57
11/11/2016 036765 Republic Services #239 1,464.25 38,688.32
11/11/2016 036766 Environmental Pest Controf 270.00 38,418.32
11/11/2016 036767 CynergyComm.net,Inc 9.61 38,408.71
11/11/2016 036768 CBC Innovis, Inc. 58.45 38,350.26
11/11/2016 036769 Great Lakes Business Systems, Inc. 160.83 38,189.43
11/11/2016 036770 SimplexGrinnell LP 1,338.00 36,851.43
11/11/2016 036771 Greyscale Group 400.00 36,451.43
11/11/2016 036772 Nichols Paper & Supply Co. 212.77 36,238.66
11/11/2016 036773 Traverse City Record Eagle 418.10 35,820.56
11/11/2016 036774 AT&T 210.26 35,610.30
11/11/2016 036775 McCardel Water Conditioning 31.50 35,578.80
11/11/2016 036776 Traverse City Area Chamber of 162.50 35,416.30
11/11/2016 036777 City of Traverse City, Treasurer's Office 249.76 35,166.54
11/11/2016 036778 Total Attention 3,600.76 31,565.78
11/11/2016 036779 TC Millworks 37.50 31,528.28
11/11/2016 036780 D & W Mechanical 395.76 31,132.53
11/11/2016 036781 Bob's Furnace Service 150.00 30,982.53
11/11/2016 036782 Kendall Electric Inc 67.62 30,914.91
11/11/2016 036783 David Gourlay 69.33 30,845.58
11/11/2016 036784 Benjamin Weston 38.34 30,807.24
11/11/2016 036785 Charles Edwards 170.64 30,636.60
11/11/2016 036786 Northern Michigan Janitorial Supply 81.55 30,555.05
11/11/2016 036787 Housing Authority Accounting 1,234.41 29,320.64
11/11/2016 036788 Stanley Steemer 490.00 28,830.64
11/11/2016 036789 Trugreen 350.00 28,480.64
11/11/2016 036790 Spectrum Business 178.05 28,302.59
11/11/2016 036791 Lautner Irrigation 175.00 28,127.5920
11/11/2016 036792 Integrated Payroll Services, Inc. 108.90 28,018.69




Date: 11/16/2016 Traverse City Housing Commission Page: Z
Time: 15:19:42 Check Register Summary Report
Chemical Bank
From: 11/01/2016 To: 11/16/2016
Date Ref Num Payee Payment Deposit Balance
11/11/2016 036793 Grand Traverse County DPW 483.00 27,535.89
11/11/2016 036794 Career Uniforms 387.70 27.147.99
11/11/2016 036795 Housing Data Systems 145.00 27,002.99
11/11/2016 0367986 Nan McKay & Associates inc 448.00 26,554.99
11/11/2016 036797 Speedwrench, Inc. 1,055.90 26,499.09
11/11/2016 036798 Grand Traverse County 44,94 25,454.15
11/11/2016 036799 Engineered Protectlon Systems Inc 123.54 25,330.61
11/11/2016 036800 Kuhn Rogers PLC 3,746.95 21,583.66
11/11/2016 036801 City of Traverse City, Treasurer's Office 242,87 21,340.79
11/11/2016 036802 Spectrum Business 3,001.51 18,339.28
11/11/2016 036803 Verizon Wireless 99.87 18,239.41
11/11/2016 036804 Wilmar 263.42 17,975.99
11/11/2016 036805 Home Depot Credit Services 716.33 17,260.66
11/11/2016 036806 Cardmember Service 2,279.29 14,981.37
11/11/2016 036807 Aflac 81.24 14,900.13
11/11/2016 036808 USPS- Hasler 1,500.00 13,400.13
11/14/2016 EFT IRS 3,142.66 10,257.47
Total: 39,439.20 0.00
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Time: 15:18:22

iraverse City nousing Commission
Check Register Summary Report
PNC - Section 8
From: 11/01/2016 To: 11/16/2016

Fage: 1

Date Ref Num Payee Payment Deposit Balance
11/01/2016 EFT HUD 8,165.00 168,631.28
11/01/2016 EFT HUD 77,273.00 245,904.28
11/01/2016 ADJST PNC 61.25 245,843.03
11/01/2016 000183 Sandra Aeschliman 198.00 245,645,03
11/01/2018 000183 Jeana Aiken 373.00 245,272.03
11/01/2016 000183 Dustin Ansorge 1,135.00 244,137.03
11/01/2016 000183 Ayers Investment Properties LLC 558,00 243,579.03
11/01/2016 000183 Brad Barnes 488.00 243,091.03
11/01/2018 000183 Bay Front Apartments 303.00 242,788.03
11/01/2016 000183 Bay Hill Housing LDHALP 4,250.00 238,529.03
11/01/2016 000183 Bay Hill Il Apartments 5,069.00 233,460.03
11/01/20186 000183 Bellaire Senior Apartments 631.00 232,829.03
11/01/2016 000183 Brookside Commons LDHA, LP 1,146.00 231,683.03
11/01/2016 000183 Irma Jean Brownley 3556.00 231,328.03
11/01/2016 000183 Carson Square 6,138.00 225,190.03
11/01/2016 000183 Central Lake Townhouses 401.00 224,789.03
11/01/2016 000183 Cherrywood Viillage Farms, Inc. 2,237.00 222,552.03
11/01/2016 000183 Douglas A, Chichester 600.00 221,952.03
11/01/2016 000183 Cycle-Paths LLC. 1,058.00 220,894.03
11/01/2016 000183 Jack V. Dean 422.00 220,472.03
11/01/2016 000183 Dmytro Cherkasov 1,079.00 219,393.03
11/01/2016 000183 Eden Brook LLC 836.00 218,557.03
11/01/2016 000183 Shirley Farrell 845.00 217,712.03
11/01/2016 000183 Rent Leelanau, LLC 1,468.00 216,244.03
11/01/20186 000183 Lisa Forbes 489.00 215,755.03
11/01/2016 000183 Dale E. French 102.00 215,663.03
11/01/2016 000183 French Quarter Apts. 93.00 215,560.03
11/01/2016 000183 G Rentals 750.00 214,810.03
11/01/2016 000183 Michael Glowacki 640.00 214,170.03
11/01/2016 000183 David Grzesiek 370.00 213,800.03
11/01/2016 000183 Habitat for Humanity 65.00 213,735.03
11/01/2016 000183 Harbour Ridge Apts 1,328.00 212,407.03
11/01/2016 000183 Heartwood Enterprises 781.00 211,626.03
11/01/2016 000183 Louis Herman 24,00 211,602.03
11/01/2016 000183 Hillview Terrace 527.00 211,075.03
11/01/2016 000183 Josh Hollister 411.00 210,664.03
11/01/2016 000183 HomeStretch 3,067.00 207,597.03
11/01/2016 000183 Caroline Hupp 199.00 207,398.03
11/01/2016 000183 Joseph and Marion Fasel 358.00 207,040.0322
11/01/2016 000183 Donna Kalchik 323.00 206,717.03




EAARNs Ly Tee Hraverse Lily nodoaily LOIiminission
Time: 15:18:23 Check Register Summary Report
PNC - Section 8
From: 11/01/2016 To: 11/16/2016

rayge.

Date Ref Num Payee Payment Deposit Balance
11/01/2016 000183 Sidney Lammers 745.00 2056,972.03
11/01/2016 000183 Legendary Rentals, LLC 967.00 205,015.03
11/01/2016 000183 John J. Lewis 767.00 204,248.03
11/01/2016 000183 Don E. Lint 378.00 203,870.03
11/01/2016 000183 Juan Maldonado 400.00 203,470.03
11/01/2016 000183 Mathews Trust 766.00 202,704.03
11/01/2016 000183 McLain Management 29.00 202,675.03
11/01/2016 000183 James & Tamela Moquin 509.00 202,166.03
11/01/2016 000183 Oak Park Apts 1,839.00 200,327.03
11/01/2016 000183 Oak Terrace Apts 824.00 199,503.03
11/01/2016 000183 P Avium Assaciates, Inc. 506.00 198,997.03
11/01/2016 000183 Daniel G. Pohiman 1,427.00 197,570.03
11/01/2016 000183 Douglas L. Porter 438.00 197,132.03
11/01/2016 000183 Phillip Putney 630.00 196,502.03
11/01/20186 000183 Thomas Raven 5566.00 195,946.03
11/01/2016 000183 Adele M. Reiter 995.00 194,951.03
11/01/2016 000183 Timothy Rice 493.00 194,458.03
11/01/2016 000183 Robert F. Follett 1,000.00 193,458.03
11/01/2016 000183 Sabin Pond Apartments LLC 800.00 192,658.03
11/01/2016 000183 John Sarya 5635.00 192,123,03
11/01/2016 000183 Eldon Schaub 388.00 191,735.03
11/01/2016 000183 Gerald Sieggreen 670.00 191,0656.03
11/01/2016 000183 SILVER SHORES MHC 161.00 190,904.03
11/01/2016 000183 Douglas & Julia Stack 327.00 190,577.03
11/01/2016 000183 22955 Investments LLC 3,460.00 187,117.03
11/01/2016 000183 Carl Sumner 508.00 186,609.03
11/01/2016 000183 Traverse City Property Management 353.00 186,256.03
11/01/2016 000183 TCR Investments, LLC 1,020.00 185,236.03
11/01/2016 000183 Wendy Teagan 456.00 184,780.03
11/01/2016 000183 TOS Holdings, LLC 744.00 184,036.03
11/01/2016 000183 Tradewinds Terrace Apts 253.00 183,783.03
11/01/2016 000183 Village Glen Apartments 7,848.00 175,935.03
11/01/2016 000183 Woda Boardman Lake LDHA.LP 2,254.00 173,681.03
11/01/2016 000183 Woodmere Ridge Apartments LDHA LP 5,471.00 168,210.03
11/01/2016 000183 Theodore V. Zachman 795,00 167,415.03
11/01/2016 000183 Ann Zenner 497.00 166,918.03
11/01/2016 000183 Barb Zupin 1,177.00 166,741.03
11/15/2016 022947 Chase Bank 2,542.00 163,199.03
Total: 82,705.25 85,438.00 23



Units

135

Operating Income
Rental Income
3110 - Dweliing Rental
3110.2 - Dwelling Rental-Proj. 2
3120 - Excess Utilities
3190 - Nondwelling Rental
Total Rental Income

Revenues - HUD PHA Grants
3401.2 - Operating Subsidy
Total HUD PHA Grants

Nonrental Income
3610 - Interest Income-Gen. Fund
3690 - Tenant Income
3690.1 - Non-Tenant Income
3690.2 - Tenant Income-Cable

Total Nonrental Income

Total Operating Income

Operating Expenses
Routine Expense

Administration
4110 - Administrative Salaries
4120 - Compensated Absences
4130 - Legal Expense
4140 - Staff Training
4150 - Travel Expense
4170 - Accounting Fees
4171 - Auditing
4182 - Employee Benefits - Admin
4185 - Telephone
4190.1 - Publications
4190.2 - Membership Dues and Fees
4190.3 - Admin. Service Contracts
4190.4 - Office Supplies
4190.5 - Other Sundry Expense
4190.6 - Advertising

Total Administration

Tenant Services

4220 - Rec., Pub., & Other Services
4221 - Tenant Svcs-Child Care
4230 - Cable TV-Tenants

Total Tenant Services

Traverse City Housing Commission
Low Rent Public Housing
Income & Expense Statement

1 Month Ended 4 Months Ended YEAR TO
DATE
Qctober 31,2016 Qctober 31, 2016 BUDGET

For the 1 Month and 4 Months Ended October 31, 2016

ANNUAL
BUDGET

$ 30,871.00 $ 123696.52 $ 155,000 §$ 465,000 341,303.48
5,531.00 22,287.83 0 0 (22,287.83)

225.05 650.90 333 1,000 349.10

7.248.59 28.244.36 17,167 51,500 23.255.64

43,875.64 174,879.61 172,500 517,500 342,620.39

44.425.00 89,051.00 83,333

250,000

160,949.00

44,425.00

89,051.00 83,333

250,000

160,949.00

189.36 780.41 900 2,700 1,919.59
407.00 3,925.04 1,667 5,000 1,074.96
1,318.85 4,350.04 9,333 28,000 23,649.96
2,475.00 10.024.76 8.693 26,080 16,055.24
4,390.21 19,080.25 20.593 61,780 42.699.75

92,690.85 283.010.86 276.426

829,280

546,269.14

11,877.77 41,463.37 46,380 139,140 97,676.63
0.00 0.00 500 1,500 1,500.00
330.72 2,362.69 2,167 6,500 4,137.31
0.00 1,357.20 1,333 4,000 2,642.80
676.14 1,326.41 1,467 4,400 3,073.59
450.16 2,408.14 2,500 7,500 5,091.86
0.00 0.00 1,000 3,000 3,000.00
9,280.60 21,328.69 18,517 55,550 34,221.31
582.18 2,660.93 2,200 6,600 3,939.07
0.00 0.00 333 1,000 1,000.00
0.00 623.75 333 1,000 376.25
4,505.56 16,108.28 8,433 25,300 9,191.72
1,103.42 2,266.15 1,733 5,200 2,933.85
896.78 3,537.60 2,333 7,000 3,462.40
0.00 1.915.86 500 1.500 (415.86)
29,703.33 97,359.07 89,729 269,190 171,830.93

301.26 1,021.95 5,000 15,000 13,978.05
0.00 0.00 0 0 0.00
3,001.51 12.006.04 12,487 37.460 25,453.96
3,302.77 13,027.99 17,487 52,460 39,432.01

See Accountants’ Compilation Report
1




Traverse City Housing Commission
Low Rent Public Housing
Income & Expense Statement
For the 1 Month and 4 Months Ended October 31, 2016

Units 1 Month Ended 4 Months Ended YEAR TO
DATE ANNUAL

135 October 31, 2016 Qctober 31, 2016 BUDGET BUDGET ZOVER/UNDER.

Utilities
4310 - Water 1,497.20 7,655.35 5,500 16,500 8,844.65
4320 - Electricity 7.322.33 31,490.81 50,000 150,000 118,509.19
4330 - Gas 63.21 562.91 5,167 15,500 14.937.09

Total Utilities 8,882.74 39,709.07 60,667 182,000 142,290.93

Ordinary Maint. & Operation
4410 - Labor, Maintenance 7,935.37 23,947.38 27,043 81,130 57,182.62
4420 - Materials 2,359.52 12,629.08 6,733 20,200 7,570.92
4430 - Contract Costs 0.00 0.00 0 0 0.00
4430.01 - Cable Contract 0.00 0.00 0 0 0.00
4430.02 - Heating & Cooling Contracts 0.00 1,816.82 1667 5,000 3,183.18
4430.03 - Snow Removal Contracts 0.00 0.00 1,333 4,000 4,000.00
4430.04 - Elevator Maintenance Contracts 1,860.00 9,168.51 2,833 8,500 (668.51)
4430.05 - Landscape & Grounds Contracts 1,536.12 26,012.65 1,667 5,000 (21,012.65)
4430.06 - Unit Tumaround Contracts 1,870.00 8,771.75 3,333 10,000 1,228.25
4430.07 - Electrical Contracts 0.00 433.85 667 2,000 1,566.15
4430.08 - Plumbing Contacts 0.00 0.00 500 1,500 1,500.00
4430.09 - Extermination Contracts 355.00 1,165.00 1,167 3,500 2,335.00
4430.10 - Janitorial Contracts 0.00 1,800.00 1,000 3,000 1,200.00
4430.11 - Routine Maintenance Contracts 3,823.00 4,979.55 2,667 8,000 3,020.45
4430.12 - Misc. Contracts 321.50 4,006.50 3,067 9,200 5,193.50
4431 - Garbage Removal 950.00 5,200.88 1,933 5,800 599.12
4433 - Employee Benefits - Maint. 4,729.86 12,852.46 12,923 38.770 25.917.54

Total Ordinary Maint. & Oper. 25,740.37 112,784.43 68,533 205,600 92,815.57

General Expense
4510 - Insurance 2,386.35 9,584.07 10,200 30,600 21,015.93
4520 - Payment in Lieu of Taxes 1,780.00 7.120.00 7,667 23,000 15,880.00
4570 - Collection Losses 0.00 0.00 0 0 0.00
4586 - Interest Expense-CFFP 0.00 0.00 10,667 32,000 32,000.00
4586.1 - Interest Expense-EPC 0.00 0.00 0 0 0.00
4590 - Other General Expense 0.00 0.00 167 500 500.00

Total General Expense 4,166.35 16,704.07 28,701 86,100 69,395.93

Total Routine Expense 71,795.56 279,584.63 265,117 795,350 515,765.37

Non-Routine Expense
Extraordinary Maintenance
4610.3 - Contract Costs 4.545.00 5,455.00
Total Extraordinary Maint. 4,545.00 5,455.00

Casualty Losses-Not Cap.
Total Casualty Losses 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total Non-Routine Expense 0.00 4,545.00 3,333 10,000 5,455.00

Total Operating Expenses 71,795.56 284.129.63 268,450 805,350 521,220.37

Operating Income (Loss) 20,895.29 (1.118.77) 7.976 23,930 25,048.77

See Accountants' Compilation Report
2




Traverse City Housing Commission
Low Rent Public Housing
Income & Expense Statement
For the 1 Month and 4 Months Ended October 31, 2016

Units 1 Month Ended 4 Months Ended YEAR TO
DATE ANNUAL

135 Qctober 31, 2016 Qctober 31, 2016 BUDGET BUDGET

Depreciation Expense
4800 - Depreciation - Current Year 21,695.94 91,998.41 (91,998.41)
4810 - Loan Fee Amortization Exp.-CFFP 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total Depreciation Expense 21,695.94 91,998.41 (91,998.41)

Surplus Credits and Charges
6010 - Prior Year Adj. - Affecting RR
6020 - Prior Year Adj. Not Affect. RR
6120 - Gain/Loss - Non Exp Equip

Total Surplus Credits and Char

Capital Expenditures
7520 - Replacement of Equipment 4,653.50 7,983.50 Q 0 (7,983.50)
7530 - Rec. Equip. - Not Replaced 0.00 0.00 0 0 0.00
7540 - Betterments and Additions 17,518.39 30,539.39 8,333 25,000 (5,539.39)
7560 - Casualty Losses Capitalized 0.00 0.00 0 0 0.00
7590 - Operating Expenditures-Contra (22.171.89) {38,522.89) (8.333) {25.000) 13.522.89
Total Capital Expenditures 0.00 0.00 0 0 0.00

GAAP Net Income (Loss) (800.65) (93,117.18) 7976 § 23,930 117,047
HUD Net Income (Loss) $ (1,276.60) (39,641.66) (357) $ (1,070) 38,572

See Accountants' Compilation Report
3




Units
208

Operating Income
3390 - Fraud Recovery income
3603 - Number of Unit Months
3604 - Unit Months - Contra
Total Oper. Reserve Income

Revenues - HUD PHA Grants
3410 - HAP Funding
3411 - Admin Fee Funding

Total HUD PHA Grants

Income Offset HUD A.C.
Total Offset Income

Total Operating Income

Operating Expenses
Routine Expense

Administration
4110 - Administrative Salaries
4120 - Compensated Absences
4130 - Legal Expense
4140 - Staff Training
4150 - Travel Expense
4170 - Accounting Fees
4171 - Auditing
4182 - Employee Benefits - Admin
4185 - Telephone
4190 - Administrative Sundry
4190.1 - Publications

4190.2 - Membership Dues and Fees

4190.3 - Admin. Service Contracts

4190.4 - Office Supplies

4190.5 - Other Sundry Expense
Total Administration

General Expense
Total General Expense

Total Routine Expense

Traverse City Housing Commission
Section 8 Vouchers

Income & Expense Statement

For the 1 Month and 4 Months Ended October 31, 2016

1 Month Ended 4 Months Ended

Qctober 31, 2016  EUM  OQctober 31,2016  PUM BUDGET PuM :QVERWUNDER

$ 50.00 0.30 $ 265.00 039 § 0
166.00 (1.00) 671.00 (1.00) 0

(166.00) 1.00 (671.00) 1.00 0

50.00 0.30 265.00 0.39 0

82,651.00 49790 334,622.00 498.69 0

8,173.00 49.23 34,033.00 50.72 0

90,824.00 54713 368,655.00 549.41 0

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0

9087400 547.43 368.920.00 549.81 0

3,638.29 21.32 11,983.03 17.86 41,800
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 250

0.00 0.00 57.00 0.08 2,850

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,710
320.32 1.93 567.20 0.85 1,890
649.25 3.91 2,732.00 4.07 8,500
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,000
2,869.17 17.28 7,194.42 10.72 17,500
127 .67 0.77 620.94 0.93 3,200
0.00 0.00 33.65 0.05 0

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 500

0.00 0.00 623.75 0.93 1,000
4,357.50 26.25 7,887.90 11.76 10,000
472.90 2.85 928.13 1.38 2,200
423.57 2.55 1.577.77 2.35 3,500
12,758.67 76.86 34,205.79 50.98 97,900
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0
12,758.67 76.86 34,205.79 50.98 97,900

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00

0.00

$ (265.00)
671.00

(671.00)
(265.00)

(334,622.00)

(34,033.00)
(368,655.00)

0.00

(368.920.00)

29,816.97
250.00
2,793.00
1,710.00
1,322.80
5,768.00
3,000.00
10,305.58
2,579.06

(33.65)
500.00
376.25
2,112.10
1,271.87
1,922.23

63,694.21

0.00

63,694.21




Units
208

Housing Assistance Payments

Traverse City Housing Commission
Section 8 Vouchers

Income & Expense Statement

1 Month Ended 4 Months Ended
Qctober 31, 2016 PUM October 31, 2016 Pum

4715.1 - HAP - Occupied Units 77541.00  467.11 307,359.00 458.06
4715.3 - HAP - Non-Elderly Disabled 3669.00  22.10 16,563.00  24.68
4715.4 - HAP - Utility Allowances 838.00 5.05 3,656.00 5.45
4715.5 - HAP - Fraud Recovery (50.00)  (0.30) (265.00)  (0.39)
4715.6 - HAP - Homeownership 753.00 454 3,084.00 460
4719 - HAP - FSS Escrow 254200  15.31 6,743.55  10.05
4719.1 - FSS Forfeitures (8.925.98) (53.77) (8.925.98)  (13.30)
Total HAP Payments 76,367.02  460.04 328,214.57 489.14
Depreciation Expense
4800 - Depreciation - Current Year 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total Depreciation Expense 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Surplus Charges & Credits
Total Surplus CR & Chgs 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Capital Expenditures
Total Capital Expenditures 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
GAAP Net Income (Loss) $ 174831 1053 § 6.499.64 9.69
Analysis of HAP Funding-Voucher 4 Months Ended
A.C. Received: OCT. 31, 2016 Qctober 31, 2016
HAP Funding $ 334.622.00
A.C. Spent
HAP - Occupied Units 307,359.00
HAP - Non-Elderly Disabled 16,563.00
HAP - Utility Allowances 3,656.00
HAP - Homeownership 3,084.00
HAP - Fraud Recovery (265.00)
HAP - FSS Escrow 6,743.55
FSS Forfeitures (8,925.98)
Total Funding Required 328,214.57
Over/(Under) Funding-current fiscal year 3 6,407.43
HAP Reserve-prior fiscal years $ 11,324.12
Cumulative Over (Under) Funding-HAP (NRA) $ 17,731.55
Memo: Income not includi h r
cluding the over (under) s (4.554.95)

funding of HAP

For the 1 Month and 4 Months Ended October 31, 2016

BUDGET PUM ’QVERUNDER

oOCcocoocooo

o

0

$ __ (97.900)

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

(307,359.00)
(16,563.00)
(3,656.00)
265.00
(3,084.00)
(6,743.55)

— 692508

(328,214.57)

0.00
0.00

0.00

0.00

$ _(104.399.64)




Housing Assistance Payments
4715.1 - HAP - Occupied Units
4715.2 - HAP-Vacant Unit
4715.3 - HAP - Non-Elderly Disabled
4715.4 - HAP - Utility Allowances
4715.5 - HAP - Fraud Recovery
4715.6 - HAP - Homeownership
4715.61 - HAP-Homeownership URP
4715.8 - HAP - Portable Paying Out
4715.81 - HAP - Portable Urp Paying QOut
4715.9 - HAP - Portable Receiving
4715.91 - HAP - Portable Rec. Reimb.
4719 - HAP - FSS Escrow
4719.1 - FSS Forfeitures

Total HAP Payments

Depreciation Expense
4800 - Depreciation - Current Year
Total Depreciation Expense

Surplus Charges & Credits
6010 - Prior Year Adj. - Affecting RR
6020 - Prior Year Adj. Not Affect. RR
6120 - Gain/Loss - Non Exp Equip

Total Surplus CR & Chgs

Capital Expenditures
Total Capital Expenditures

GAAP Net Income (Loss)

Traverse City Housing Commission
Section 8 Vouchers FSS Escrow
Income & Expense Statement
For the 1 Month and 4 Months Ended October 31, 2016

1 Month Ended 4 Months Ended

Qctober 31, 2016  PUM  Qctober 31, 2016 = PUM

0.00 ) 0.00

$ 3,104.45 $ (4.647.16)

BUDGET EUM :QVER/UNDER

QRO OO0 COO0DO0O0OO0OOOO

0.00 0.00

000 § (70.382.84)




Traverse City Housing Commission
Section 8 Vouchers FSS Escrow
Income & Expense Statement
For the 1 Month and 4 Months Ended October 31, 2016

1 Month Ended 4 Months Ended

Qctober 31, 2016 Qctober 31, 2016  PUM BUDGET PEUM OVER/UNDER

Operating Income
Total Oper. Reserve Income 0.00 0.00
Revenues - HUD PHA Grants
3412 - FSS Grant Revenue 11.163.00
Total HUD PHA Grants 11,163.00

22,323.85 (22,323.85)
22,323.85 (22,323.85)

Income Offset HUD A.C.

Total Offset Income 000 L 000 0.00

(22,323.85)

11.163.00 22,323.85

Total Operating Income

Operating Expenses
Routine Expense

Administration

4110 - Administrative Salaries
4182 - Employee Benefits - Admin
Total Administration

General Expense

4,565.39

3.493.16

8,058.55

19,356.70

7,614.31

26,971.01

0.00

37,623.30

10.435.69

48,058.99

0.00

Total General Expense 0.00

Total Routine Expense 8,058.55 26,971.01 : i 48,058.99
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A Public Housing Authority

STAFF & PROGRAM REPORTS

Executive Director’s Report
Family Self-Sufficiency (FSS) Program Report

Resident Council Report
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT

November 18, 2016

BUILDINGS/OCCUPANCY:

Riverview Terrace — One unit is open as of November 14 but we have one person ready to move in.

Orchardview — Full occupancy.

FINANCIAL:

We have completed all of our work assaciated with our annual audit and we are awaiting their report.
The monthly financial report is in line with our budget projections.

ProJecTs (This is a list of projects that are on-going or recently completed):

e Riverview Landscaping: Continued clean-up along the river (West of new landscaping).
e Office IT: Preparing for the “move” of the office.
e Uptown Development: No change in status.

e Orchardview Phase II: No change in status.
e Housing Development: Met with possible funder from Lansing and toured all of our projects

and will have follow-up conversations.

e Advocacy: No report.

e Office Management: Great send off for JoAnn on November 8! She will be missed. | have never
been more proud of any group of people then | have of our staff during this recent controversy;
our work continued without as much as a hiccup during a time that was not easy to say the

least.
e Strategic Planning: Continued work on our December Strategic Planning update session — scope

of work submitted.

ACTIVITIES:

Coordinated with the League of Women Voters to conduct the Review Terrace Resident Council Annual
Officer Elections.

Attended a joint DDA and Planning Commission Meeting.

Participated in a conference call with the Federal Home Loan Bank of Indianapolis Affordable Housing
Program committee.

Conversations/Meetings with several city commissioners on various topics.

Held several meetings with Riverview Terrace Residents regarding general issues in our community and
issues concerning the Riverview Terrace Resident Council.

Participated in one resident’s eviction hearing — the court ruled in our favor and the tenant decided to

not appeal.

Page 1 of 2
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Several phone calls and meeting with our attorney Ward Kuhn.

Chaired a monthly meeting of the Housing Solution Network.

MEDIA:

Numerous articles on our current issues with the majority portraying us in an unfavorable light.

PERSONAL:

Nothing to report.

Page 2 of 2
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FAMILY SELF-SUFFICIENCY (FSS) PROGRAM REPORT

November 18, 2016

Current SEMAP Status

SEMAP reporting places the program in the “High Performer” category.

Number of Number of % of Families Number of Families with % of Families with
Mandatory Slots Families Enrolled Enrolled Progress Reports & Progress Reports &
Escrow Balances Escrow Balances
22 25 114% 13 65%

Program Manager Update

The briefing for Public Housing clients will take place after the beginning of 2017, this
will allow for office renovations to be completed.

The briefing will be optional for all Public Housing residents and will consist of a short
overview of the program, success stories, and expectations of the program. They will be
offered the application at the meeting but new applicants will be scheduled for a
separate meeting to review goals and contract.

Status of Participants

Update notices are going out this month to all current participants in the FSS program.
This will be a verbal update of their goal during a scheduled phone call with the program
manager. This is an approved option and has worked well during the holiday season for

our clients in prior years.

Two participants were removed from the program which brings the current enrolled
number to 25. This will change after the first of the year with new voucher clients and
Public Housing residents being added. The goal will be to maintain at least 28 active
participants year round, with at least half carrying an escrow balance.

FSS Grant

All grant updates and e-logic models were submitted and approved by the HUD contact
for the program.

Pagelof1l
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Traverse City Housing Commission
A Public Housing Authority

HOLD FOR RTRC MONTHLY REPORT
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Traverse City Housing Commission
A Public Housing Authority

OLD BUSINESS

2017 Consolidated Budget: Review

TCHC Policy Review Schedule: Update

Updated on HUD & Fair Housing Act RE: Quid Pro Quo and Hostile Environment Harassment

37



TRAVERSE CITY HOUSING COMMISSION

CONSOLIDATED INCOME AND EXPENSE BUDGET WORKSHEET

FY 2016 FY 2017 OCTOBER 2016 FY 2017 % OF
ACTUAL* BUDGET ACTUAL* ACTUAL* BUDGET
OPERATING INCOME
Property Rents S 431,741.66 S 465,000.00 S 36,402.00 S 145,984.35 31.39%
Investment Interest 3,195.44 2,700.00 189.36 780.41 28.90%
Program Income: HCV 1,091,389.00 1,005,000.00 90,874.00 368,907.50 36.71%
Program Income: FSS 66,688.65 66,600.00 11,163.00 22,323.85 33.52%
Earned Income 134,075.71 110,584.00 11,674.49 47,195.10 42.68%
HUD Property Subsidy 263,918.00 250,000.00 44,425.00 89,051.00 35.62%
CFP / Draw on Surplus 182,486.66 199,000.00 - - 0.00%
TOTAL OPERATING INCOME S 2,173,495.12 S 2,098,884.00 S 194,727.85 $ 674,242.21 32.12%
OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries 5 192,072.51 S 238,780.00 S 19,981.45 S 72,803.10 30.49%
Benefits 71,191.54 101,818.30 15,642.93 36,594.87 35.94%
Compensated Absences 5,126.29 (1,500.00) - - 0.00%
Legal 5,614.12 9,500.00 330.72 2,419.69 25.47%
Travel / Staff Training 10,045.68 12,000.00 996.46 3,900.06 32.50%
Accounting / Auditing 20,495.42 22,000.00 1,099.41 5,140.14 23.36%
General Office Expenses 82,892.87 68,000.00 12,469.58 38,784.71 57.04%
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES S 387,438.43 S 450,598.30 S 50,520.55 5 159,642.57 35.43%
TENANT PROGRAMS & SERVICES
Recreation, Programs, and Other S 9,961.31 S 8,575.00 S 301.26 S 1,021.95 11.92%
Cable Television 35,065.00 37,460.00 3,001.51 12,006.03 32.05%
HAP 948,943.11 965,400.00 76,367.02 328,227.07 34.00%
TOTAL TENANT PROGS / SERVICES S 993,969.42 S 1,011,435.00 S 79,669.79 S 341,255.05 33.74%
UTILITIES
Water S 16,413.25 S 16,500.00 S 1,497.20 S 7,655.35 46.40%
Electricity 125,464.02 150,000.00 7,322.33 31,490.81 20.99%
Gas 10,035.02 15,500.00 63.21 562.91 3.63%
TOTAL UTILITIES S 151,912.29 S 182,000.00 S 8,882.74 S 39,709.07 21.82%
MAINTENANCE / BUILDING OPERATION
Labor S 77,347.71 S 85,342.00 S 7,935.37 S 23,947.38 28.06%
Maintenance Benefits 33,937.30 48,093.00 4,729.86 12,852.46 26.72%
Materials 25,160.53 20,200.00 2,359.52 12,629.08 62.52%
Contract / CFP Costs 304,677.97 180,000.00 10,715.62 63,355.51 35.20%
TOTAL ORDINARY MAINTENANCE S 441,123.51 S 333,635.00 S 25,740.37 S 112,784.43 33.80%
GENERAL EXPENSE
Insurance S 28,352.38 S 30,600.00 S 2,386.35 S 9,584.07 31.32%
Payment in Lieu of Taxes 24,914.86 23,000.00 1,780.00 7,120.00 30.96%
Collection Losses 4,438.91 - - - 0.00%
Interest Expense / Other 34,625.21 32,000.00 - - 0.00%
TOTAL GENERAL EXPENSE S 92,331.36 S 85,600.00 S 4,166.35 S 16,704.07 19.51%
EXTRAORDINARY / CASUALTY 6,936.36 S 10,000.00 S - 4,545.00 45.45%
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES S 2,073,711.37 S 2,073,268.30 S 168,979.80 $ 674,640.19 32.54%
NET OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) $ 99,783.75 $ 25,615.70 S 25,748.05 S (397.98)
PROPERTY IMPROVEMENTS/EQUIP* (32,087.93) $ (25,000.00) s (22,171.89) $ (16,351.00)
RESIDUAL RECEIPTS (DEFICIT)* $ 67,695.82 $ 615.70 $ 3,576.16 S (16,748.98)

* Accountant Reviewed

Current as of 11/16/2016



TRAVERSE CITY HOUSING COMMISSION

CONSOLIDATED INCOME AND EXPENSE BUDGET WORKSHEET

OPERATING INCOME
Property Rents
Investment Interest
Program Income: HCV
Program Income: FSS
Earned Income
HUD Property Subsidy
CFP / Draw on Subsidy

TOTAL OPERATING INCOME

OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries
Benefits
Compensated Absences*
Legal
Travel / Staff Training
Accounting / Auditing
General Office Expenses
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

TENANT PROGRAMS & SERVICES
Recreation and Other
Cable Television
HAP

TOTAL TENANT PROGS / SERVICES

UTILITIES
Water
Electricity
Gas

TOTAL UTILITIES

MAINTENANCE / BUILDING OPERATION

Explanation [ Description

Labor
Maintenance Benefits
Materials
Contract / CFP Costs
TOTAL ORDINARY MAINTENANCE

GENERAL EXPENSE
Insurance
Payment in Lieu of Taxes
Collection Losses
Interest Expense / Other
TOTAL GENERAL EXPENSE

EXTRAORDINARY / CASUALTY*

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

NET OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)

PROPERTY IMPROVEMENTS/EQUIP™*

RESIDUAL RECEIPTS (DEFICIT)*

* Accountant Reviewed

A total of collected rents from Riverview Terrace and Orchardview properties.

A total of interest amounts earned.

Housing Choice Voucher program dollars earned.

ROSS funding designated for Resident Self Sufficiency Program.

A total of non-program doilars earned by TCHC.

HUD dollars received to assist with rent deficits.

A total of Capital Fund Program dollars received plus what is drawn down from Checking Surplus
A total of operating income amounts.

Iincludes all salaries for Executive Director, Assaciate Director, Program Manager, Support Staff.
Includes all benefits for Executive Director, Associate Director, Program Manager, Support Staff.
Year-end diffences between annual leave amounts owed to employees.

Includes all legal fees for operational issues as weil as commission governance issues.

Includes all conference, continuing education, and training fees plus travel expenses for all staff.
A total of all third party, contract accounting and auditing expenses.

A total of all office expenses including telephone charges, office equipment and supplies, etc.

A total of all operating expenses across all program activities.

Resident programming and acitivities associated with current tenants.

Fees paid to Charter Communications to provide cable television to residents.
Housing Assistance Payments to landlords in the five county area.

A total of all tenant progamming and services.

Fees paid to Traverse City Light & Power for water and sewer.
Fees paid to Traverse City Light & Power for electricity.

Fees paid to DTE for gas utlity.

A total of all utility expenditures.

Includes all salaries and wages for maintenance team (2.5 persons)

Includes all benefits for maintenance team (2.5 persons)

A total of all purchases related to upkeep and maintenance of properties owned by TCHC.

A total of all contract maintenance and upkeep costs by third party suppliers on properties owned by TCHC.
A total of all ordinary maintenance and building operation expenditures.

A total of all insurance monies paid by TCHC related to all operations.

Amount of property taxes paid to the City of Traverse City - adjusted by PILOT ordinance.
A total amount of losses from rents when residents vacate units owing monies.

Misc.

A total of all general expense expenditures.

A total of unexpected and unbudgeted items plus expenses reimbursed from insurance proceeds.

A grand total of all expenses.

This amount reflects total income over total expenses.

A total of ail property and equipment purchased above $1,500 capitalization threshhold - plus all appliances.

This category utilizes prior year(s) receipts of funding.
Final amounts to be determined by accountants.

Internal Document - Current as of 11/16/2016
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TCHC MONTHLY CASH POSITION REPORT

END OF OCTOBER 2016

PUBLIC HOUSING

Chemical Bank
4Front Credit Union
TC State Bank

TC State Bank

First Merit Bank

TC State Bank
Chemical Bank
Chemical Bank
Chemical Bank

First Merit Bank

4Front Credit Union

Chemical Bank

SUB TOTAL
HOUSING CHOICE VOUCHER
Chemical Bank
Chase Bank

SUB TOTAL
OTHER
HUD Held Reserves*

SUB TOTAL

TOTAL Cash & Cash Equivilants

* as of June 30, 2015

Checking
Savings
520011210
1051647
53691
4535723359
ICS Acct

1075909

9426
4532078534

CD 16525-5100

CD 806592

Checking

135080088317

“wvn NPT n v uvn v n

111,608.59
6,601.52
161,857.91
42,459.44
162,537.80
75,500.25
25,190.28
17,562.36
100,374.28
26,842.02
31,009.93
51,464.11

813,008.49

wvr N

158,009.28
40,872.40

198,881.68

»n

554,397.00

554,397.00

1,566,287.17

Certificate of Deposit
Certificate of Deposit

Escrow Account

Restricted

Current as of 11/16/2016
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TRAVERSE CITY HOUSING COMMISSION

150 PINE STREET | TRAVERSE CITY | MICHIGAN |49684

MEMORANDUM

DATE:

TO:

FROM:

November 18, 2016

All Commissioners of the Traverse City Housing Commission

Tony Lentych, Executive Director/\v

SUBJECT: Quid Pro Quo and Hostile Environment Harassment and Liability for

Discriminatory Housing Practices under the Fair Housing Act

MESSAGE:

After our Special Meeting on November 7, 2016, staff was charged with investigating the new
HUD rules released in September and taking effect in October on Quid Pro Quo and Hostile
Environment Harassment and Liability for Discriminatory Housing practices under the Fair
Housing Act. The Final Rule document is attached. This is the summary:

“This final rule amends HUD's fair housing regulations to formalize standards for use in
investigations and adjudications involving allegations of harassment on the basis of race,
color, religion, national origin, sex, familial status, or disability. The rule specifies how
HUD will evaluate complaints of quid pro quo (“this for that”) harassment and hostile
environment harassment under the Fair Housing Act. It will also provide for uniform
treatment of Fair Housing Act claims raising allegations of quid pro quo and hostile
environment harassment in judicial and administrative forums. This rule defines “quid
pro quo” and “hostile environment harassment,” as prohibited under the Fair Housing
Act, and provides illustrations of discriminatory housing practices that constitute such
harassment. In addition, this rule clarifies the operation of traditional principles of direct
and vicarious liability in the Fair Housing Act context.”

It is staff’s belief that more information is needed prior to any recommendation for either
adopting a new policy or making any changes to existing policies.

ATTACHMENTS: Federal Register Report of September 14, 2016

Page 1 of 1
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63054 Federal Register /Vol. 81, No. 178/ Wednesday, September 14, 2016 /Rules and Regulations

The Agency has determined under 21
CFR 25.33(a) that this action is
categorically excluded from the
requirement to submit an environmental
assessment or an environmental impact
statement because it is of a type that
does not individually or cumulatively
have a significant effect on the human
environment.

Elsewhere in this issue of the Federal
Register, FDA gave notice that the
approval of those parts of NADA 138-
934 pertaining to the procaine penicillin
component indications for growth
promotion and increased feed efficiency
in swine is withdrawn, effective
September 14, 2016. As pravided for in
the regulatory text of this document, the
animal drug regulations are amended to
reflect this partial withdrawal of
approval and subsequent product
reformulation.

NADA 138-934 was identified as
being affected by guidance for industry
(GFT) #213 “New Animal Drugs and
New Animal Drug Combination
Products Administered in or on
Medicated Feed or Drinking Water of
Food-Producing Animals:
Recommendations for Drug Sponsors for
Voluntarily Aligning Product Use
Conditions with GFI #209,”” December
2013.

This rule does not meet the definition
of “rule” in 5 U.S.C. 804(3)(A) because
it is a rule of “particular applicability.”
Therefore, it is not subject to the
congressional review requirements in 5
U.S.C. 801-808.

List of Subjects in 21 CFR Part 558
Animal drugs, Animal feeds.

Therefore, under the Federal Food,
Drug, and Cosmetic Act and under
authority delegated to the Commissioner
of Food and Drugs and redelegated to
the Director of the Center for Veterinary
Medicine, 21 CFR part 558 is amended
as follows:

PART 558—NEW ANIMAL DRUGS FOR
USE IN ANIMAL FEEDS

m 1. The authority citation for part 558
continues to read as follows:

Authority: 21 U.S.C. 354, 360b, 360ccc,
360cce—1, 371.

§558.140 [Amended]

m 2. In § 558.140, in paragraph (b}(2),
remove “No. 054771 and in its place
add “Nos. 054771 and 069254”".

§558.145 [Amended]

®m 3. In §558.145, remove and reserve
paragraph (a)(2).

Dated: September 6, 2016.
William T. Flynn,
Acting Director, Center for Veterinary
Medicine.
[FR Doc. 2016~21985 Filed 9-13-16; 8:45 am]
BILLING CODE 4164-01-P

DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND
URBAN DEVELOPMENT

24 CFR Part 100
[Docket No. FR-5248~F—02]
RIN 2529-AA94

Quid Pro Quo and Hostile Environment
Harassment and Liability for
Discriminatory Housing Practices
Under the Fair Housing Act

AGENCY: Office of the Assistant
Secretary for Fair Housing and Equal
Opportunity, HUD.

ACTION: Final rule.

SUMMARY: This final rule amends HUD’s
fair housing regulations to formalize
standards for use in investigations and
adjudications involving allegations of
harassment on the basis of race, color,
religion, national origin, sex, familial
status, or disability. The rule specifies
how HUD will evaluate complaints of
quid pro quo (“this for that”)
harassment and hostile environment
harassment under the Fair Housing Act.
It will also provide for uniform
treatment of Fair Housing Act claims
raising allegations of quid pro quo and
hostile environment harassment in
judicial and administrative forums. This
rule defines “quid pro quo” and
“hostile environment harassment,” as
prohibited under the Fair Housing Act,
and provides illustrations of
discriminatory housing practices that
constitute such harassment. In addition,
this rule clarifies the operation of
traditional principles of direct and
vicarious liability in the Fair Housing
Act context.

DATES: Effective date: October 14, 2016.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT:
Lynn Grosso, Acting Deputy Assistant
Secretary for Enforcement and
Programs, Office of Fair Housing and
Equal Opportunity, Department of
Housing and Urban Development, 451
7th Street SW., Room 5204, Washington

DC 20410-2000; telephone number 202—

402-5361 (this is not a toll-free
number). Persons with hearing or
speech impairments may contact this
number via TTY by calling the toll-free
Federal Relay Service at 800-877-83389.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:

I. Executive Summary
A. Purpose of the Regulatory Action

Both HUD and the courts have long
recognized that Title VIII of the Civil
Rights Act of 1968, as amended, (42
U.S.C. 3601 et seq.) (Fair Housing Act or
Act) prohibits harassment in housing
and housing-related transactions
because of race, color, religion, sex,
national origin, disability,? and familial
status, just as Title VII of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. 2000e et
seq.) (Title VII) prohibits such
harassment in employment. But no
standards had been formalized for
assessing claims of harassment under
the Fair Housing Act. Courts have often
applied standards first adopted under
Title VII to evaluate claims of
harassment under the Fair Housing Act,
but there are differences between the
Fair Housing Act and Title VII, and
between harassment in the workplace
and harassment in or around one’s
home, that warrant this rulemaking.

This rule formalizes standards for
evaluating claims of quid pro quo and
hostile environment harassment in the
housing context. The rule does so by
defining “‘quid pro quo harassment” and
“hostile environment harassment” as
conduct prohibited under the Fair
Housing Act, and by specifying the
standards to be used to evaluate
whether particular conduct creates a
quid pro quo or hostile environment in
violation of the Act. Such standards will
apply both in administrative
adjudications and in cases brought in
federal and state courts under the Fair
Housing Act. This rule also adds to
HUD’s existing Fair Housing Act
regulations illustrations of
discriminatory housing practices that
may constitute illegal quid pro quo and
hostile environment harassment.

By establishing consistent standards
for evaluating claims of quid pro quo
and hostile environment harassment,
this rule provides guidance to providers
of housing or housing-related services
seeking to ensure that their properties or
businesses are free of unlawful
harassment. The rule also provides
clarity to victims of harassment and
their representatives regarding how to
assess potential claims of illegal
harassment under the Fair Housing Act.

In addition, this final rule clarifies
when housing providers and other
entities or individuals covered by the
Fair Housing Act may be held directly
or vicariously liable under the Act for

1This rule uses the term “disability” to refer to
what the Fair Housing Act and its implementing
regulations refer to as “handicap.” Both terms have
the same legal meaning. See Bragdon v. Abbott, 524
U.S. 624, 631 (1998).
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illegal harassment, as well as for other
discriminatory housing practices that
violate the Act. This rule sets forth how
these traditional liability standards
apply in the housing context because, in
HUD’s experience, there has been
significant misunderstanding among
public and private housing providers as
to the circumstances under which they
will be subject to liability under the Fair
Housing Act for discriminatory housing
practices undertaken by others.

B. Legal Authority for the Regulation

The legal authority for this regulation
is found in the Fair Housing Act, which
gives the Secretary of HUD the
“authority and responsibility for
administering this Act.” 42 U.S.C.
3608(a). In addition, the Act provides
that “[tJhe Secretary may make rules
(including rules for the collection,
maintenance, and analysis of
appropriate data) to carry out this title.
The Secretary shall give public notice
and opportunity for comment with
respect to all rules made under this
section.” 42 U.S.C. 3614a. HUD also has
general rulemaking authority under the
Department of Housing and Urban
Development Act to make such rules
and regulations as may be necessary to
carry out its functions, powers and
duties. See 42 U.S.C. 3535(d).

C. Summary of Major Provisions

The major provisions of this rule:

e Formalize definitions of “quid pro
quo harassment” and “hostile
environment harassment” under the
Fair Housing Act.

e Formalize standards for evaluating
claims of quid pro quo and hostile
environment harassment under the Fair
Housing Act.

o Add illustrations of prohibited quid
pro quo and hostile environment
harassment to HUD’s existing Fair
Housing Act regulations.

o Identify traditional principles of
direct and vicarious liability applicable
to all discriminatory housing practices
under the Fair Housing Act, including
quid pro quo and hostile environment
harassment.

Please refer to section III of this
preamble, entitled “This Final Rule,”
for a discussion of the changes made to
HUD’s regulations by this final rule.

D. Costs and Benefits

This rule formalizes clear, consistent,
nationwide standards for evaluating
harassment claims under the Fair
Housing Act. The rule does not create
any new forms of liability under the Fair
Housing Act and thus adds no
additional costs for housing providers

and others engaged in housing

transactions.

The benefits of the rule are that it will
assist in ensuring compliance with the
Fair Housing Act by defining quid pro
quo and hostile environment
harassment that violates the Act and by
specifying traditional principles of
direct and vicarious liability, consistent
with Supreme Court precedent.
Articulating clear standards enables
entities subject to the Fair Housing Act’s
prohibitions and persons protected by
its terms to understand the types of
conduct that constitute actionable quid
pro quo and hostile environment
harassment. As a result, HUD expects
this rule to facilitate more effective
training to avoid discriminatory
harassment in housing and decrease the
need for protracted litigation to resolve
disputed claims.

II. Background

Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of
1968, as amended (the Fair Housing Act
or Act), prohibits discrimination in the
availability and enjoyment of housing
and housing-related services, facilities,
and transactions because of race, color,
national origin, religion, sex, disability,
and familial status. 42 U.S.C. 3601-19.
The Act prohibits a wide range of
discriminatory housing and housing-
related practices, including, among
other things, making discriminatory
statements, refusing to rent or sell,
denying access to services, setting
different terms or conditions, refusing to
make reasonable modifications or
accommodations, discriminating in
residential real estate-related
transactions, and retaliating. See 42
U.S.C. 3604, 3605, 3606 and 3617.

In 1989, HUD promulgated fair
housing regulations at 24 CFR part 100
that address discriminatory conduct in
housing generally. The 1989 regulations
include examples of discriminatory
housing practices that cover quid pro
quo sexual harassment and hostile
environment harassment generally.
Section 100.65(b)(5) identifies, as an
example of unlawful conduct, denying
or limiting housing-related services or
facilities because a person refused to
provide sexual favors. Section
100.400(c){(2) offers as an example of
illegal conduct “. . . interfering with
persons in their enjoyment of a dwelling
because of race, color, religion, sex,
handicap, familial status, or national
origin of such persons, or of visitors or
associates of such persons.” The 1989
regulations do not, however, expressly
define quid pro quo or hostile
environment harassment, specify
standards for examining such claims, or
provide illustratious of other types of

quid pro quo or hostile environment
harassment prohibited by the Act. The
1989 regulations also do not discuss
liability standards for prohibited
harassment or other discriminatory
housing practices.

Over time, forms of harassment that
violate civil rights laws have coalesced
into two legal doctrines—quid pro quo
and hostile environment. Although
HUD and the courts have recognized
that the Fair Housing Act prohibits
harassment because of race or color,?
disability,3 religion,* national origin,5
familial status,® and sex,” the doctrines
of quid pro quo and hostile environment
harassment are not well developed
under the Fair Housing Act.

As a result, when deciding
harassment cases under the Fair
Housing Act, courts have often looked
to case law decided under Title VII,
which prohibits employment
discrimination because of race, color,
religion, sex, and national origin.8 But
the home and the workplace are
significantly different environments
such that strict reliance on Title VII case
law is not always appropriate. One’s
home is a place of privacy, security, and
refuge (or should be), and harassment
that occurs in or around one’s home can
be far more intrusive, violative and
threatening than harassment in the more
public environment of one’s work
place.?® Consistent with this reality, the

2 See, e.g., Smith v. Mission Assoc. Ltd. P'ship,
225 F. Supp. 2d 1293, 1298-99 (D. Kan. 2002) (42
U.S.C. 3604(b)); HUD v. Tucker, 2002 ALJ LEXIS 33,
*34 (HUD ALJ 2002) (42 U.S.C. 3604(a) and (b)).

4 See, e.g., Neudecker v. Boisclair Corp., 351 F. 3d
361, 364 (8th Cir. 2003) (42 U.S.C. 3604(0(2)).

4See, e.g., Bloch v. Frischholz, 587 F. 3d 771, 787
(7th Cir. 2009) (42 U.S.C. 3604(b}, 3617).

S See, e.g., Effendi v. Amber Fields Homeowners
Assoc., 2011 U.S. Dist. Lexis 35265, *1 (N.D. Ill.
2011) (42 U.S.C. 3604(b) and 3617); Texas v. Crest
Asset Mgmt,, 85 F. Supp. 722, 736 (S.D. TX 2000)
(42 U.S.C. 3604(a) and (b), 3617).

6 See, e.g., Bischoff v. Brittain, 2014 U.S. Dist.
LEXIS 145945, *13-14, *17 (E.D. Cal. 2014)
(3604(b)); United States v. M. Westland Co., 1995
U.S. Dist. LEXIS 22466, *4 (C.D. Cal. 1995) (Fair
Housing Act provision not specified).

7 See, e.g., Quigley v. Winter, 598 F. 3d 938, 946
(8th Cir. 2010) (42 U.S.C. 804(b), 3617); Krueger v.
Cuomo, 115 F. 3d 487, 491 (7th Cir. 1997) (42
U.S.C. 3604(b), 3617); Honce v. Vigil, 1 F. 3d 1085,
1088 (10th Cir. 1993) (42 U.S.C. 3604(b));
Shellhammer v. Lewallen, 770 F. 2d 167 (6th Cir.
1985) (sexual harassment under the Fair Housing
Act in general).

8 See, e.g., Honce v. Vigil, 1 F. 3d at 1088;
Shellhammerv. Lewallen, 770 F. 2d 167; Glover v.
Jones, 522 F. Supp. 2d 496, 503 (W.D.N.Y. 2007);
Beliveau v. Caras, 873 F. Supp. 1393, 1396 (C.D.
Cal. 1995); see also Neudecker v. Boisclair Corp.,
351 F. 3d at 364 (applying Title VII concepts to find
hostile environment based on disability violated
Act). Unlike Title VTI, the Act also includes
disability and familial status among its protected
characteristics.

9 See, e.g., Quigley v. Winter, 598 F. 3d at 947
(emphasizing that defendant’s harassing conduct

Conlinued
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Supreme Court has recognized that
individuals have heightened
expectations of privacy within the
home.10

This rule therefore formalizes
standards to address harassment in and
around one’s home and identifies some
of the differences between harassment
in the home and harassment in the
workplace. While Title VII and Fair
Housing Act case law contain many
similar concepts, this regulation
describes the appropriate analytical
framework for harassment claims under
the Fair Housing Act.

The rule addresses only quid pro quo
and hostile environment harassment,
and not conduct generically referred to
as harassment that, for different reasons,
may violate section 818 or other
provisions of the Fair Housing Act. For
example, a racially hostile statement by
a housing provider could indicate a
discriminatory preference in violation of
section 804(c) of the Act, or it could
evidence intent to deny housing or
discriminate in the terms or conditions
of housing in violation of sections
804(a) or 804(b), even if the statement
does not create a hostile environment or
establish a quid pro quo. Section 818,
which makes it unlawful to “coerce,
intimidate, threaten, or interfere with
any person in the exercise or enjoyment
of” rights protected by the Act, or on
account of a person having aided others
in exercising or enjoying rights
protected by the Act, could be violated
by conduct that creates a quid pro quo

was made ‘“‘even more egregious” by the fact that

it occurred in plaintiff's home, “'a place where [she]
was entitled to feel safe and secure and need not
flee.”); Salisbury v. Hickman, 974 F. Supp. 2d 1282,
1292 (E.D. Cal. 2013) (““[c]ourts have recognized
that harassment in one’s own home is particularly
egregious and is a factor that must be considered

in determining the seriousness of the alleged
harassment"); Williams v. Poretsky Management,
955 F. Supp. 490, 498 (D. Md. 1996) (noting sexual
harassment in the home more severe than in
workplace); Beliveau v. Caras, 873 F. Supp. at 1398
{describing home as place where one should be safe
and not vulnerable to sexual harassment); D.
Benjamin Barros, Home As a Legal Concept, 46
Santa Clara L. Rev. 255, 277-82 (2006) (discussing
legal concept of home as source of security, liberty
and privacy which justifies favored legal status in
many circumstances); Nicole A. Forkenbrock
Lindemyer, Article, Sexual Harassment on the
Second Shift: The Misfit Application of Title VII
Employment Standards to Title VIII Housing Cases,
18 Law & Ineq. 351, 368—80 (2000) (noting that
transporting of Title VII workplace standards for
sexual harassment into Fair Housing Act cases of
residential sexual harassment ignores important
distinctions between the two settings); Michelle
Adams, Knowing Your Place: Theorizing Sexual
Harassment at Home, 40 Ariz. L. Rev. 17, 21-28
(1998) (describing destabilizing effect of sexual
harassment in the home).

10 See, ¢.g. Frisby v. Schultz, 487 U.S. 474, 484
(1988) (““[w]e have repeatedly held thal individuals
are not required to welcome unwanted speech into
their own homes and that the government may
protect this freedom”).

or hostile environment. It is not,
however, limited to quid pro quo or
hostile environment claims and could
be violated by other conduct that
constitutes retaliation or another form of
coercion, intimidation, threats, or
interference because of a protected
characteristic. In sum, this rule provides
standards that are uniformly applicable
to claims of quid pro quo and hostile
environment harassment under the Fair
Housing Act, regardless of the section of
the Act that is alleged to have been
violated, and the same discriminatory
conduct could violate more than one
provision of the Act whether or not it
also constitutes quid pro quo or hostile
environment harassment.

ITI. Changes Made at the Final Rule
Stage

A. Overview of Changes Made at the
Final Rule Stage

In response to public comment and
upon further consideration by HUD of
the issues presented in this rulemaking,
HUD makes the following changes at
this final rule stage:

o Re-words proposed § 100.7(a)(1)(iii)
to avoid confusing the substantive
obligation to comply with the Fair
Housing Act with the standard of
liability for discriminatory third-party
conduct. Proposed § 100.7(a)(1)(iii}
stated that a person is directly liable for
“failing to fulfill a duty to take prompt
action to correct and end a
discriminatory housing practice by a
third-party, where the person knew or
should have known of the
discriminatory conduct. The duty to
take prompt action to correct and end a
discriminatory housing practice by a
third-party derives from an obligation to
the aggrieved person created by contract
or lease (including bylaws or other rules
of a homeowner’s association,
condominium or cooperative), or by
federal, state or local law.” Section
100.7(a)(1)(iii) of this final rule provides
that a person is directly liable for
“failing to take prompt action to correct
and end a discriminatory housing
practice by a third-party, where the
person knew or should have known of
the discriminatory conduct and had the
power to correct it. The power to take
prompt action to correct a
discriminatory housing practice by a
third-party depends upon the extent of
control or any other legal responsibility
the person may have with respect to the
conduct of such third-party.”

e Adds to §100.400 a new paragraph
(c)(6) specifying as an example of a
discriminatory housing practice
retaliation because a person reported a
discriminatory housing practice,

including quid pro quo or hostile
environment harassment.

e Adds to § 100.600{a)(2)(i), “Totality
of the circumstances,” a new paragraph
(C) that explains the reasonable person
standard under which hostile
environment harassment is assessed
“Whether unwelcome conduct is
sufficiently severe or pervasive as to
create a hostile environment is
evaluated from the perspective of a
reasonable person in the aggrieved
person'’s position.”

e Re-words proposed
§ 100.600(a)(2)(i)(B) to clarify that proof
of hostile environment would not
require demonstrating psychological or
physical harm to avoid any confusion
on that point. Proposed
§100.600(a)(2)(i)(B) stated “Evidence of
psychological or physical harm is
relevant in determining whether a
hostile environment was created, as
well as the amount of damages to which
an aggrieved person may be entitled.
Neither psychological nor physical
harm, however, must be demonstrated
to prove that a hostile environment
exists.” Section 100.600(a)(2)(i)(B) in
this final rule provides: “Neither
psychological nor physical harm must
be demonstrated to prove that a hostile
environment exists. Evidence of
psychological or physical harm may,
however, be relevant in determining
whether a hostile environment existed
and, if so, the amount of damages to
which an aggrieved person may be
entitled.”

e Re-words proposed § 100.600(c) to
clarify that a single incident may
constitute either quid pro quo or hostile
environment harassment if the incident
meets the standard for either type of
harassment under § 100.600(a)(1) or
(a)(2). Proposed § 100.600(c) provided
“A single incident of harassment
because of race, color, religion, sex,
familial status, national origin, or
handicap may constitute a
discriminatory housing practice, where
the incident is severe, or evidences a
quid pro quo.” Section 100.600(c) in
this final rule provides “A single
incident of harassment because of race,
color, religion, sex, familial status,
national origin, or handicap may
constitute a discriminatory housing
practice, where the incident is
sufficiently severe to create a hostile
environment, or evidences a quid pro

s

quo.

e Gorrects the illustration in proposed
§ 100.65(b)(7) to fix a typographical
error in the proposed rule. In the final
rule, the word “service” is corrected
and made plural.
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IV. The Public Comments

On October 21, 2015, at 80 FR 63720,
HUD published for public comment a
proposed rule on Quid Pro Quo and
Hostile Environment Harassment and
Liability for Discriminatory Housing
Practices Under the Fair Housing Act.
The public comment period closed on
December 21, 2015. HUD received 63
comments. The comments were
submitted by public housing agencies
(PHASs) and other government agencies;
private housing providers and their
representatives; nonprofit organizations,
including fair housing, civil rights,
housing advocacy, and legal groups;
tenants and other individuals. This
section of the preamble addresses
significant issues raised in the public
comments and provides HUD’s
responses. All public comments can be
viewed at: hitp://www.regulations.gov/
#!docketDetail,D=HUD-2015-0095.

The majority of the commenters were
generally supportive of the rule, with
some urging HUD to publish the rule
quickly. This summary does not provide
responses to comments that expressed
support for the proposed rule without
suggesting any modifications to the rule.
General supportive comments included
statements of the importance of the rule
in addressing and preventing sexual
assault of tenants by landlords and
descriptions of how the rule would
empower housing providers, renters,
and other consumers to understand and
avoid illegal housing practices by
defining and illustrating quid pro quo
and hostile environment harassment.
Some commenters stated that this rule
may help providers focus on the
importance of eliminating harassment
on their properties, and some
commenters identified provisions of the
rule that would provide useful guidance
to housing providers, tenants, residents,
and others involved in housing
transactions.

More specifically, commenters
expressed appreciation that the rule
would apply not solely to sexual
harassment but to harassment because
of all protected characteristics, with
some commenters sharing anecdotes of
harassment based on a variety of
protected characteristics that they
believe the rule may help remedy. Other
commenters supported the proposed
rule’s distinction between the Fair
Housing Act and Title VII, with
commenters endorsing the Department’s
proposal not to adopt the Title VII
affirmative defense to an employer’s
vicarious liability.

A number of commenters assessed the
rule to be in accord with case law, and
approved of the balance the rule strikes

between the rights and obligations of the
parties in a fair housing matter. Some
commenters noted that the proposed
standard for determining whether
conduct constitutes a hostile
environment is appropriately
individualized to the facts of each case.
Some commenters specifically
identified the benefits provided by the
rule in establishing a uniform
framework for fairly evaluating and
appropriately responding to alleged
harassment, which minimizes the
subjective nature of adjudicating such
claims. Other commenters expressed
appreciation for the proposed rule’s
recognition that a single incident may
establish hostile environment
harassment. Some commenters
expressed support for the rule’s
acknowledgement of the fear of
retaliation many individuals with
disabhilities experience when trying to
address issues of harassment in their
housing.

Many commenters stated that the
rule’s description of traditional
principles of agency liability is accurate
and not an expansion of existing
liability. Some commenters expressed
appreciation that the rule would
incorporate traditional liability
principles for any type of discriminatory
housing practice, not just harassment,
and would rely on negligence principles
and distinguish between direct and
vicarious liability. Other commenters
stated that the rule would not burden
housing providers because the direct
liability standard is aligned with
established housing provider business
practice. Some commenters expressed
appreciation that the rule would place
landlords on notice that they should
take corrective action early on, once
they know or should have known of the
discrimination.

Several commenters stated that
housing providers are already in
possession of the tools they need to
create living environments free from
harassment. In particular, the
commenters stated that housing
providers are familiar with the
corrective actions they may take in
order to enforce their own rules.
Another commenter stated that housing
providers are in the best position to
select, train, oversee, and assure the
correct behavior of their agents, noting
that effective enforcement of the rule
depends on the potential for liability on
the part of housing providers.

Some commenters expressed support
for the proposed rule while seeking
modifications at the final rule stage. For
example, a commenter encouraged
broad application of the rule so that
intervention and corrective action

would occur before victims of housing
discrimination are forced out of their
homes. Another commenter sought an
expansive reading of the rule in order to
prevent all forms of bullying. Some
commenters sought to add factors to the
totality of circumstances consideration,
while other commenters sought to add
to the classes protected by the rule.

Following are HUD’s responses to
commenters’ suggested modifications to
the rule and the other significant issues
raised in the public comments.

A. Quid Pro Quo and Hostile
Environment Harassment: § 100.600

a. General: § 100.600(a)

Issue: A commenter requested that
HUD add seniors as a protected class
under the rule. Other commenters stated
that elderly persons often have
disabilities, which make them
particularly vulnerable to harassment.
These commenters requested that the
final rule make clear that the rule
protects elderly persons from
harassment because of disability.

HUD Response: HUD shares the
commenters’ concern for elderly
persons but does not have the authority
to add a new protected class to the Fair
Housing Act and therefore is unable to
adopt the commenters’ recommendation
to expand the scope of the rule in this
way. Neither age nor senior status is a
protected characteristic under the Act,
although persons who are discriminated
against because of their disabilities are
protected under the Act without regard
to their age. Therefore, elderly
individuals who are subjected to quid
pro quo or hostile environment
harassment on the basis of disability or
another protected characteristic are
protected under the Act and this final
rule.

Issue: A commenter suggested that
HUD include a clause in the final rule
to protect whistleblowers who
experience harassment for reporting
quid pro quo or hostile environment
harassment. The commenter reported
having witnessed such harassment and
explained that whistleblowers are
particularly vulnerable to quid pro quo
and hostile environment harassment,
but because they are not harassed on the
basis of their race, color, religion,
national origin, sex, familial status, or
disability, they are not directly
protected by the proposed regulation.

HUD Response: Anyone who is
harassed for reporting discriminatory
harassment in housing is protected by
the Fair Housing Act. Section 818 of the
Act makes it unlawful to coerce,
intimidate, threaten, or interfere with a
person on account of his or her having
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aided or encouraged another person in
the exercise or enjoyment of any right
granted or protected by sections 803—
806 of the Act. To highlight the essential
role whistleblower protection plays in
ensuring fair housing, HUD is adding to
§100.400 a new paragraph (c)(6), which
provides the following example of a
discriminatory housing practice
“Retaliating against any person because
that person reported a discriminatory
housing practice to a housing provider
or other authority.”

Issue: Several commenters urged HUD
to state in the final rule that harassment
against persons who are lesbian, gay,
bisexual, or transgender (LGBT), or
because of pregnancy, violates the Fair
Housing Act. They asked HUD to define
harassment because of sex to include
harassment based on sexual orientation,
gender identity, sex stereotyping, or
pregnancy. The commenters referenced
studies about the pervasive harassment
and discrimination such persons face in
housing. They also noted that a number
of federal courts and federal agencies
have interpreted Title VII and other
laws prohibiting discrimination because
of sex to include discrimination on the
basis of gender identity, gender
transition, or transgender status. The
commenters also pointed to HUD’s
“Equal Access to Housing in HUD
Programs Regardless of Sexual
Orientation or Gender Identity” rule,
which provides that persons may not be
denied access to HUD programs because
of sexual orientation or gender identity.

HUD Response: The Fair Housing Act
already expressly prohibits
discrimination based on pregnancy as
part of its prohibition of discrimination
because of familial status (42 U.S.C.
3602(k)), and HUD’s Equal Access Rule
applies only to HUD programs,

HUD agrees with the commenters’
view that the Fair Housing Act’s
prohibition on sex discrimination
prohibits discrimination because of
gender identity. In Price Waterhouse v.
Hopkins, the Supreme Court interpreted
Title VII’s prohibition of sex
discrimination to encompass
discrimination based on non-
conformance with sex stereotypes,
stating that “[i]n forbidding employers
to discriminate against individuals
because of their sex, Congress intended
to strike at the entire spectrum of
disparate treatment of men and women
resulting from sex stereotypes.” 11
Taking note of Price Waterhouse and its
progeny, in 2010, HUD issued a
memorandum recognizing that sex
discrimination prohibited by the Fair
Housing Act includes discrimination

11490 U.S. 228, 251 (1989).

because of gender identity. In 2012, the
Equal Employment Opportunity
Commission (EEOC) reached the same
conclusion, “clarifying that claims of
discrimination based on transgender
status, also referred to as claims of
discrimination based on gender identity,
are cognizable under Title VII's sex
discrimination prohibition.” 12
Following the EEOC’s decision, the
Attorney General also concluded that:

the best reading of Title VII's prohibition of
sex discrimination is that it encompasses
discrimination based on gender identity,
including transgender status. The most
straightforward reading of Title VII is that
discrimination “because of . . . sex”
includes discrimination because an
employee’s gender identification is as a
member of a particular sex, or because the
employee is transitioning, or has
transitioned, to another sex.13

HUD reaffirms its view that under the
Fair Housing Act, discrimination based
on gender identity is sex discrimination.
Accordingly, quid pro quo or hostile
environment harassment in housing
because of a person’s gender identity is
indistinguishable from harassment
because of sex.14

HUD, in its 2010 memorandum, also
advised that claims of housing
discrimination because of sexual
orientation can be investigated under
the Price Waterhouse sex-stereotyping

12 Macy v. Dept. of Justice, No. 0120120821, 2012

EEOPUB LEXIS 1181, *13 (EEOC Apr. 20, 2012);
see also Lusardi v. Dept. of the Army, No.
0120133395, 2015 EEOPUB LEXIS 896, *17 (EEOC
Apr. 1, 2015).

13 Attorney General Memorandum, Treatment of
Transgender Employment Discrimination Claims
Under Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (Dec.
15, 2014), posted at http://www justice.gov/file/
188671/download. Similarly, the Office of
Personnel Management revised its
nondiscrimination regulations to make clear that
sex discrimination under Title VII includes
discrimination based on gender identity. See 5 CFR
300.102-300.103; see also OFCCP Directive 2014—
02, Gender Identity and Sex Discrimination (Aug.
19, 2014) (stating that discrimination based on
gender identity or transgender status is
discrimination based on sex), posted at http://
www.dol.gov/ofccp/regs/compliance/directives/
Directive_2014-02_508c.pdf.

14 See Glenn v. Brumby, 663 F.3d at 1317
(**discrimination against a transgender individual
because of her gender nonconformity is sex
discrimination, whether it is described as being on
the basis of sex or gender.”); see also Finkle v.
Howard Cnty, 12 F. Supp. 3d 780, 788 (D. Md.
2014) (holding that “Plaintiff’s claim that she was
discriminated against ‘because of her obvious
transgender|] status is a cognizable claim of sex
discrimination under Title VII"'); Rumble v.
Fairview Health Services, No. 14—cv—2037, 2015
U.S. Dist. LEXIS 31591, *4-5 (D. Minn. Mar. 186,
2015) (in Affordable Care Act case, holding that
“[blecause the term ‘transgender’ describes people
whose gender expression differs from their assigned
sex at birth, discrimination based on an individual’s
transgender status constitutes discrimination based
on gender stereotyping. Therefore, Plaintiff’s
transgender status is necessarily part of his ‘sex’ or
‘gender’ identity').

theory. Over the past two decades, an
increasing number of Federal courts,
building on the Price Waterhouse
rationale, have found protections under
Title VII for those asserting
discrimination claims related to their
sexual orientation.!s Many Federal-
sector EEQC decisions have found the
same.16 Although some Federal

15 See, e.g., Prowel v. Wise Bus. Forms, Inc., 579
F.3d 285, 291-92 (3rd Cir. 2009) (harassment of a
plaintiff because of his “‘effeminate traits” and
behaviors could constitute sufficient evidence that
he “was harassed because he did not conform to
[the employer’s] vision of how a man should look,
speak, and act—rather than harassment based solely
on his sexual orientation”); Nichols v. Azteca Rest.
Enter., Inc., 256 F.3d 864, 874-75 (9th Cir. 2001)
(coworkers’ and supervisors’ harassment of a gay
male because he did not conform to gender norms
created a hostile work environment in violation of
Title VII); Hall v. BNSF Ry. Co., Na. C13-2160 RSM,
2014 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 132878 *3-9 (W.D. Wash.
September 22, 2014) (plaintiff’s allegation that “he
(as a male who married a male) was treated
differently in comparison to his female coworkers
who also married males” stated a sex
discrimination claim under Title VII); Terveer v.
Billington, 34 F. Supp. 3d 100, 116 (D.D.C. 2014)
(Title VII claim based on sex stated when plaintiff’s
“orientation as homosexual” removed him from the
employer’s preconceived definition of male); Heller
v. Columbia Edgewater Country Club, 195 F. Supp.
2d 1212, 1224 (D. Or. 2002) ("'[A] jury could find
that Cagle repeatedly harassed (and ultimately
discharged) Heller because Heller did not conform
to Cagle’s stereotype of how a woman ought to
behave. Heller is attracted to and dates other
women, whereas Cagle believes that a woman
should be attracted to and date only men.”’); Centola
v. Potter, 183 F. Supp. 2d 403, 410 (D. Mass. 2002)
(“Sexual orientation harassment is often, if not
always, motivated by a desire to enforce
heterosexually defined gender norms. In fact,
stereatypes about homosexuality are directly related
to our stereotype about the proper roles of men and
women.”). Cf. Videckis v. Pepperdine Univ., 2015
U.S. Dist. LEXIS 167672, *16 (C.D. Cal. 2015) (“Tt
is impossible to categorically separate ‘sexual
orientation discrimination’ from discrimination on
the basis of sex or from gender stereotypes; to do
so would result in a false choice. Simply put, to
allege discrimination on the basis of sexuality is to
state a Title IX claim on the basis of sex or
gender.”).

16 Baldwin v. Dep’t of Transp., EEOC Appeal No.
0120133080, slip op. at 9-11 (July 16, 2015);
Complainant v. Dep’t of Homeland Sec., EEOC
Appeal No. 0120110578, slip op. at 1 (Aug. 20,
2014) (“While Title VII's prohibition of
discrimination does not explicitly include sexual
arientation as a basis, Title VII prohibits sex
discrimination, including sex-stereotyping
discrimination and gender discrimination” and
“sex discrimination claims may intersect with
claims of sexual orientation discrimination.”);
Couch v. Dep’t of Energy, EEOC Appeal No.
01201311386, slip op. at 1 (Aug. 13, 2013) (finding
harassment claim based on perceived sexual
orientation is a discrimination claim based on
failure to conform to gender stereotypes); Culp v.
Dep’t of Homeland Sec., EEOC Appeal 0720130012,
slip op. at 1 (May 7, 2013) (Title VII covers
discrimination based on associating with lesbian
colleague); Castello v. U.S. Postal Serv,, EEOC
Appeal No. 0520110649, slip op. at 1 (Dec. 20,
2011) (vacating prior decision and holding that
complainant stated claim of discrimination based
on sex-stereotyping through evidence of offensive
comments by manager aboul female subordinate’s
relationships with women); Veretto v. U.S. Postal
Serv., EEOC Appeal No. 0120110873, slip op. at 1
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appellate courts have declined to find
sex discrimination under Title VII based
on the sole fact of the person’s sexual
orientation, those courts nonetheless
recognized the Price Waterhouse sex-
stereotyping theory may be used to find
discrimination based on sex.1” These
Title VII legal authorities are consistent
with HUD’s 2010 memorandum, in
which HUD interprets the Fair Housing
Act’s prohibition on sex discrimination
to include, at a minimum,
discrimination related to an individual’s
sexual orientation where the evidence
establishes that the discrimination is
based on sex stereotypes. HUD’s
interpretation of sex discrimination
under the Fair Housing Act is also
consistent with the Department of
Health and Human Services’ rule
interpreting sex discrimination under
Section 1557 the Affordable Care Act 18
and the Department of Labor’s rule
interpreting sex discrimination under
Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of

1964.19
Issue: Some commenters asked HUD

to provide a definition of harassment. A
commenter noted that the proposed rule
defines two types of harassment—quid
pro quo and hostile environment, but
does not define the general term
“harassment.” Another commenter
stated that if HUD believes that other

(July 1, 2011) (court found that *“Complainant has
alleged a plausible sex-stereotyping’’ claim of
harassment because he married a man).

17 See, e.g., Gilbert v. Country Music Ass’n, 432
F. App’x 516, 520 (6th Cir. 2011) (acknowledging
the validity of a sex-stereotyping claim "‘based on
gender non-conforming ‘behavior observed at work
or affecting . . . job performance,” suchas. . .
‘appearance or mannerisms on the job," "’ but
rejecting the plaintiff’s sex discrimination claim
because his “allegations involve discrimination
based on sexual orientation, nothing more. He does
not make a single allegation that anyone
discriminated against him based on his ‘appearance
or mannerisms’ or for his ‘gender non-
conformity.” ") (quoting Vickers v. Fairfield Med.
Ctr., 453 F.3d 757, 763 (6th Cir. 2006); Pagan v.
Gonzalez, 430 F. App’x 170, 171-72 (3d Cir. 2011)
(recognizing that *‘discrimination based on a failure
to conform to gender stereotypes is cognizable” but
affirming dismissal of the plaintiff's sex
discrimination claim based on “the absence of any
evidence to show that the discrimination was based
on Pagan's acting in a masculine manner"); Dawson
v. Bumble & Bumble, 398 F.3d 211, 221, 222-23 (2d
Cir. 2005) (observing that “one can fail to conform
to gender stereotypes in two ways: (1) Through
behavior or (2) through appearance, but dismissing
the plaintiff’s sex discrimination claim because she
“has produced no substantial evidence from which
we may plausibly infer that her alleged failure to
conform her appearance to feminine stereotypes
resulted in her suffering any adverse employment
action’). See also Hively v. Ivy Tech Community
College, 2016 U.S. App. LEXIS 13746, *16—25 (7th
Cir. 2016) (reviewing this line of cases).

18 Nondiscrimination in Health Programs and
Activities, 81 FR 31376, 31388—90 (May 18, 2016)
(to be codified at 45 CFR part 92).

19 Discrimination Because of Sex, 81 FR 39108,
3913740 (June 15, 2016) (to be codified at 41 CFR
part 60-20).

types of harassment may also violate the
Fair Housing Act, HUD should provide
a definition of harassment. Other
commenters strongly supported the
rule’s definitions of quid pro quo and
hostile environment harassment,
describing them as clear and inclusive,
and stated that the definitions and
related examples provided in the rule
clarify what conduct the Fair Housing
Act prohibits and will aid all
stakeholders’ understanding of the
rule’s provisions.

HUD Response: The term harassment
has broad colloquial usage with no
defined parameters. For this reason, the
final rule defines the specific terms
“‘quid pro quo” and ‘“hostile
environment harassment.” Other
conduct that might generically be
referred to as harassment might fall in
the categories of quid pro quo or hostile
environment, or the conduct may
constitute a different type of
discriminatory housing practice in
violation of section 818 of the Act or
other provisions of the Act, or the
conduct may not violate the Act at all.
As the preamble to the proposed rule
explained, a violation of section 8§18
may be established using the standards
for quid pro quo or hostile environment
harassment or by the specific elements
of a section 818 violation, i.e., (1) the
plaintiff or complainant exercised or
enjoyed—or aided or encouraged
another person in the exercise or
enjoyment of—a right guaranteed by
sections 803-06; (2) the defendant’s or
respondent’s conduct constituted
coercion, intimidation, a threat, or
interference; and (3) a causal connection
existed between the exercise,
enjoyment, aid or encouragement of the
right and the defendant’s or
respondent’s conduct.

Issue: Some commenters expressed
concern that the proposed rule did not
expressly state that sections 804(b) and
818 of the Fair Housing Act apply to
discrimination that occurs after the
complainant or plaintiff acquires the
dwelling. The commenters stated that
some courts have held that these
provisions apply only to discrimination
that affects access to housing and urged
HUD to add language to the rule making
clear that these particular provisions
apply to post-acquisition discrimination
claims.

HUD Response: HUD believes that the
definitions of “quid pro quo” and
“hostile environment harassment’ make
clear HUD’s view that the Act covers
post-acquisition conduct and therefore
no additional language is required.
These definitions mirror the coverage of
sections 804(b), 804(f)(2), and 818 of the
Fair Housing Act, which plainly apply

to both pre-acquisition and post-
acquisition discrimination claims.
Moreover, HUD has long interpreted
and enforced these provisions of the Act
and others to protect against
discrimination that occurs before one
acquires a dwelling as well as while one
is living in the dwelling. HUD’s 1989
regulations interpreting sections 804(b},
804(f)(2), and 818 of the Act, for
example, provide that discrimination
prohibited under these provisions
includes the “maintenance or repairs of
sale or rental dwellings,” ““[d]enying or
limiting the use of privileges, services,
or facilities associated with a dwelling,”
and threatening, intimidating or
interfering with persons “in their
enjoyment of a dwelling.” The inclusion
of language covering the maintenance of
housing, the continued use of privileges,
services, or facilities associated with
housing, and the “exercise or
enjoyment” of housing indicates
circumstances in which residents—as
opposed to just applicants—benefit from
the Act’s protections throughout their
residency.

Sections 100.65(b)(6)—(7) of the
proposed and of the final rule further
illustrate some ways in which a person
may violate sections 804(b), 804(f)(2),
and 818 of the Fair Housing Act:
“conditioning the terms, conditions, or
privileges relating to the sale or rental
of a dwelling, or denying or limiting the
services or facilities in connection
therewith, on a person’s response to
harassment because of [a protected
characteristic]; ““subjecting a person to
harassment because of [a protected
characteristic| that has the effect of
imposing different terms, conditions, or
privileges relating to the sale or rental
of a dwelling or denying or limiting
services or facilities in connection with
the sale or rental of a dwelling.” In sum,
the Act and HUD’s regulations,
including this final rule, make clear that
the Act prohibits discrimination that
occurs while a person resides in a
dwelling, and courts have repeatedly
interpreted the Act similarly.20

20 See, e.g., Bloch v. Frischholz, 587 F.3d at779—
81 (ruling that post-sale conduct by a homeowner’s
association could violate section 804(b) of the Act
and allowing section 3604(b) claims to address
post-acquisition conduct was consistent with
HUD’s regulations {citing 24 CFR 100.65(b)(4)));
Comm. Concerning Cinty, Improvement v. City of
Modesto, 583 F.3d 690, 713 (9th Cir. 2009)
(concluding that the Act covers post-acquisition
discrimination); Neudecker v. Boisclair Corp., 351
F.3d at 364 (finding plaintiff’s post-acquisition
harassment claim valid under the Act); DiCenso v.
Cisneros, 96 F.3d 1004, 1008 (7th Cir. 1996)
(recognizing claim for sexual harassment hostile
housing environment under the Act); Honce v.
Vigil, 1 F.3d at 1089-90 (recognizing that the Act
prohibits both quid pro quo and hostile housing

Conlinued
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Issue: Some commenters asked HUD
to clarify how to distinguish potentially
actionable harassment under the Fair
Housing Act from protected speech
under the First Amendment. A
commenter said that it is not clear how
conduct that allegedly constitutes
harassment under the rule may be
distinguished from other speech or
conduct that is constitutionally
protected or so trivial so as not to
qualify as harassment in the first place.
Another commenter said that courts
have consistently held that the First
Amendment protects a tenant who
publicly speaks about a neighbor, even
if that conduct is motivated by
discriminatory intent. Another
commenter asked whether the proposed
rule would implicate constitutional
protections of free speech or free
exercise of religion if the housing
provider evicts a tenant where, for
example, two tenants are having heated
religious arguments about the other’s
choice of religious attire. Another
commenter stated that the proposed rule
properly balanced the competing rights
at issue and did not interfere with
constitutionally protected speech
because the rule would not encompass
speech that is merely offensive or that
causes nothing more than hurt feelings.

HUD Response: As discussed
elsewhere in this preamble, not every
dispute between neighbors is a violation
of the Fair Housing Act. Moreover,
speech that is protected by the First
Amendment is not within the Act’s
prohibitions. First Amendment
protections do not extend to certain acts
of coercion, intimidation, or threats of
bodily harm proscribed by section 818

environment sexual harassment); Woods-Drake v.
Lundy, 667 F.2d 1198, 1201 (5th Cir. 1982) (finding
that a landlord’s discriminatory conduct against
current tenants violated section 3604(b) of the Act};
Richards v. Bono, No. 5:04CV484-0C-10GR], 2005
WL 1065141, at *3 (M.D. Fla. May 2, 2005)
(*“[blecause the plain meaning of ‘rental’
contemplates an ongoing relationship, the use of
that term in § 3604(b) means that the statute
prohibits discrimination at any time during the
landlord/tenant relationship, including after the
tenant takes possession of the property”’); United
States v. Koch, 352 F. Supp. 2d 970, 976 (D. Neb.
2004} (“[1]t is difficult to imagine a privilege that
flows more naturally from the purchase or rental of
a dwelling than the privilege of residing therein.”);
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development, Office of Fair Housing and Equal
Opportunity, Questions and Answers on Sexual
Harassment under the Fair Housing Act (2008),
available at hétp://portal. hud.gov/hudportal/
documents/huddoc?id=QAndASexualHarassment
_pdf (recognizing that current tenants may file fair
housing complaints under the Act); Robert G.
Schwemm, Fair Housing Litigation After Inclusive
Comimunities: What’s New and What's Not, 115
Colum. L. Rev. Sidebar 106, 122-23 (2015)
(explaining that many post-acquisition actions,
such as evictions and harassment, may give rise to
violations under sections 804{a) and 804(b) of the
Act).

of the Act. As the Supreme Court has
stated, “true threats’” have no First
Amendment protection.2? In Notice
FHEO-2015-01, HUD has set out
substantive and procedural guidelines
regarding the filing and investigation of
Fair Housing Act complaints that may
implicate the First Amendment.22 The
Notice discusses how HUD handles
complaints against persons who are not
otherwise covered by the Act, but who
are alleged to have violated Section 818
of the Act.

Issue: A commenter suggested that the
rule is unnecessary because other
administrative and legal remedies
already exist for victims of harassment
under state and local law. Another
commenter suggested that the rule is
unnecessary because HUD has already
charged cases involving harassment
under the Act.

HUD Response: This final rule
formalizes and provides uniform
standards for evaluating complaints of
quid pro quo and hostile environment
harassment under the Fair Housing Act.
While other administrative and legal
causes of action may exist for victims of
quid pro quo and hostile environment
harassment under landlord-tenant law,
tort law, or other state law, they do not
substitute for the protections against
discrimination and the remedies
provided under the Act. Moreover, the
fact that HUD has previously issued
charges of discrimination involving
quid pro quo or hostile environment
harassment does not negate the need for
this rule.

Issue: A commenter asked HUD to
abandon the rulemaking process and
instead provide specific, clear guidance
to the regulated community so that
housing providers can ascertain the
types of behavior that do and do not
constitute harassment under the Fair
Housing Act. Other commenters
requested that HUD provide technical
assistance on various aspects of the rule
to residents, housing providers, and
practitioners to ensure all parties know
their rights under the law.

HUD Response: HUD declines to
abandon this rulemaking. This
regulation is needed to formalize
standards for assessing claims of
harassment under the Fair Housing Act
and to clarify when housing providers
and others covered by the Act may be
liable for illegal harassment or other
discriminatory housing practices. It has
been HUD’s experience that there is

21 See, e.g., R.A.V. v. City of St. Paul, 505 U.S.
377, 388 (1992).

22Notice FHEO 2015-01 found at: hitp://
portal.hud.gov/hudportal/documents/huddoc?id=5-
26-2015notice.pdf.

significant misunderstanding among
public and private housing providers
about the circumstances under which
they may be liable. This regulation
provides greater clarity in making that
assessment. HUD will continue to offer
guidance and training on the Fair
Housing Act generally and on this final
rule, as needed.

Issue: A commenter recommended
that the rule expand the limits for
damages in cases that establish sexual
harassment in housing.

HUD Response: HUD declines to
make this change because it is
unnecessary. The Act contains no limit
on damages that may be awarded,
specitically authorizing an award of
“actual damages.”” 42 U.S.C. 3612(g)(3);
3613(c)(1); 3614(d)(1)(B).

Issue: A commenter asked HUD to
consider expanding the time for filing
sexual harassment complaints where a
hostile environment case includes
subsequent harassment that occurs
many months after the initial act of
sexual harassment.

HUD Response: HUD declines to
adopt this recommendation because the
Fair Housing Act specifically defines
the statute of limitations for filing
complaints. It is one year after an
alleged discriminatory housing practice
occurred or terminated for a complaint
with HUD and two years after an alleged
discriminatory housing practice
occurred or terminated for a civil action
in federal district court or state court.
See 42 U.S.C. 3610; 3613. If a violation
is continuing, the limitations period
runs from the date of the last occurrence
or termination of the discriminatory
act.23

1. Quid Pro Quo Harassment:
§100.600(a)(1)

Issue: A commenter asked how the
rule would “differentiate between a
situation of involuntary quid pro quo
that genuinely must be governed by the
Act and a situation where one party is
manipulating the rule following a
mutually beneficial and agreed upon
transaction.”

HUD Response: The rule’s definition
of quid pro quo harassment requires a
request or demand that is “unwelcome.’
A mutually beneficial and agreed upon
transaction is not unwelcome and
would not constitute quid pro quo
harassment under the rule or the Act. It
is important to note, however, that, as
the rule states, if an individual

’

23 See, e.g., Havens Realty Corp. v. Coleman, 455
U.S. 363, 380-81 (1982); Neudecker v. Boisclair
Corp., 351 F.3d at 363 ; Spann v. Colonial Vill,, Inc.,
899 F.2d 24, 34-35 (D.C. Cir. 1990); Heights Cmty
Congress v. Hilltop Realty, Inc.,, 774 F.2d 135, 139—
41 (6th Cir. 1985).
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acquiesces to an unwelcome request or
demand, unlawful quid pro quo
harassment may have occurred.
Moreover, if a housing provider
regularly or routinely confers housing
benefits based upon the granting of
sexual favors, such conduct may
constitute quid pro quo harassment or
hostile environment harassment against
others who do not welcome such
conduct, regardless of whether any
objectionable conduct is directed at
them and regardless of whether the
individuals who received favorable
treatment willingly granted the sexual
favors.2# Liability in all situations
involving allegations of harassment
must be determined on a case-by-case
basis.

Issue: A commenter stated that the
preamble to the proposed rule was
vague in stating that “‘a person is
aggrieved if that person is denied or
delayed in receiving a housing-related
opportunity or benefit because another
received the benefit.” The commenter
was concerned that this statement
would require a PHA to identify,
investigate, and document a defense to
any tenant-perceived delay in receiving
benefits.

HUD Response: The quoted phrase is
not vague when read in context, which
explains the meaning of quid pro quo
harassment under the Fair Housing Act.
The phrase refers to a person who is
aggrieved because he or she is denied a
benefit that went to another in exchange
for sexual favors, for example.
Aggrieved persons under the Act and
HUD’s regulation are limited to those
who were injured (or are about to be
injured) by a discriminatory housing
practice as defined in the Act. Neither
the Fair Housing Act nor this final rule
prohibits delays in receiving housing-
related opportunities or benefits for
nondiscriminatory reasons. If, however,
an applicant or tenant alleges that he or
she has been denied or delayed in
receiving a benefit because others
submitted to requests for sexual favaors,
the PHA should investigate to determine
if quid pro quo or hostile environment
harassment has occurred.

2. Hostile Environment Harassment:
§ 100.600(a)(2)

Issue: Several commenters
recommended that HUD ensure

24 (f. EEOC Policy Guidance No. N-915.048,
Employer Liability under Title VII for Sexual
Favoritism (Jan. 12, 1990) (providing that
widespread sexual favoritism based upon
solicitations for and/or the granting of sexual favors
or other sexual conduct “can form the basis of an
implicit ‘quid pro quo’ harassment claim for female
employees, as well as a hostile environment claim
for both women and men who find this offensive’).

consistency of the discussion of hostile
environment harassment throughout the
preamble in order to prevent any
unintentional barriers for harassment
victims seeking to bring claims under
the Fair Housing Act. The commenters
specifically stated that in one section of
the preamble to the proposed rule, HUD
defines “hostile environment
harassment” to require unwelcome
conduct because of a protected
characteristic that “‘unreasonably
interferes” with the use and enjoyment
of a dwelling, or with the exercise of
other rights protected by the Act. By
contrast, the commenters stated, other
sections of the preamble rightly omit the
““‘unreasonably’ qualifier when
discussing hostile environment
harassment. The commenters requested
that the word ‘“‘unreasonably” be
removed from the discussion in the
preamble because it is unnecessary and
will create confusion. They stated that
unwelcome conduct that is “sufficiently
severe or pervasive” as to interfere with
one’s enjoyment of rights protected
under the Act is in itself unreasonable.

HUD Response: The term
“unreasonably’” does not appear in the
definition of “hostile environment
harassment” in the regulatory text of the
proposed rule. The term ‘““unreasonably”
was used in the preamble to the
proposed rule to convey how a claim of
hostile environment would be
evaluated; that is, from the perspective
of a reasonable person in the aggrieved
person'’s position. HUD agrees that the
use of the term “‘unreasonably” in the
preamble may have caused confusion by
conflating the substantive standard with
the method of proof. In this final rule,
as was the case in the proposed rule, the
definition of “hostile environment
harassment” in § 100.600(a)(2) is not
phrased as requiring proof that
unwelcome conduct ‘“unreasonably”
interfere with a right protected by the
Fair Housing Act. But it remains that
whether unwelcome conduct is
sufficiently severe or pervasive as to
interfere with rights protected by the
Act, and therefore coustitute hostile
environment harassment, is evaluated
from the perspective of a reasonable
person in the aggrieved person’s
position.

Issue: A commenter suggested that
HUD include definitions and
descriptions of “bullying” in this final
rule because bullying is very similar to
hostile environment harassment.

HUD Response: HUD does not agree
that it is necessary to add the word
“bullying” to the final rule in order to
cover conduct that could be considered
bullying. Section 100.600(a)(2) of the
proposed rule and of this final rule,

which defines hostile environment
harassment and specifies the factors to
be considered when evaluating whether
particular conduct creates a hostile
environment in violation of the Act, is
broadly worded and fully captures the
concept of bullying because of a
protected characteristic that the

commenter seeks to include.

Issue: A commenter said HUD should
include social isolation and neglect as
forms of harassment under the rule,
especially when they occur with the
intent to drive a person from his or her
home or interfere with his or her
enjoyment of a dwelling. According to
the commenter, these actions have
major implications for the psychological
well-being of an individual.

HUD Response: HUD appreciates that
social isolation and neglect are serious
concerns. This rule is limited to conduct
engaged in because of a protected
characteristic. If a tenant is subjected to
unwanted severe or pervasive conduct
because of a disability, for example,
which leads to social isolation with the
intent or effect of driving the tenant
from his or her home or interfering with
his or her enjoyment of a dwelling, such
conduct could constitute hostile
environment harassment under the
standards set forth in the rule.

Issue: A commenter said the rule
could more clearly distinguish
harassment from inappropriate behavior
or disputes that do not rise to the level
of harassment. Other commenters stated
that they appreciated the rule’s
emphasis on the totality of the
circumstances, which will ensure that
mere disagreements, mistaken remarks,
or isolated words spoken in the heat of
the moment will not result in liability
unless the totality of the circumstances
establishes hostile environment
harassment.

HUD Response: HUD agrees that not
every disagreement between persons
involved in a housing transaction
constitutes unlawful harassment
because of a protected characteristic in
violation of the Act and believes the
rule appropriately captures the
distinction. Section 100.600(a)(2) of the
proposed rule and of this final rule
defining hostile environment
harassment requires that the unwelcome
conduct be “sufficiently severe or
pervasive” as to interfere with defined
features of the housing transaction: The
availability, sale, rental, or use or
enjoyment of a dwelling; the terms,
conditions, or privileges of the sale or
rental, or the provision or enjoyment of
services or facilities in connection
therewith; or the availability, terms or
conditions of a residential real estate-
related transaction.
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Issue: A commenter recommended
that the final rule recognize the role of
preferential treatment for services and
living arrangements, except when
provided because of disability, as a type
of discrimination. The commenter said
that preferential treatment is a means
through which to encourage and reward
secondary actors for their role in
creating a hostile environment, and the
rule should recognize it as such. The
commenter also recommended that
HUD request and make available data
regarding repairs or upgrades so any
non-monetary favor in exchange for
harassment, by an agent not directly
employed by the management or owner,
may be determined.

HUD Response: HUD declines to
adopt the commenter’s suggestions
because the rule as currently proposed
already accommodates the commenter’s
concerns. Providing preferential
treatment that creates a hostile
environment because of race, color,
religion, sex, familial status, or national
origin already violates the Fair Housing
Act under the standards proposed in the
rule. Moreover, HUD’s regulations
already contain illustrations as to this
type of violation. Therefore, additional
language regarding preferential
treatment is not needed. In addition,
processes for requesting and making
available data regarding repairs or
upgrades are outside the scope of this
rule. HUD notes that in investigations,
it requests data regarding repairs or
upgrades as appropriate to determine
whether a violation of the Fair Housing
Act has occurred.

Issue: Two commenters asked
whether the rule would apply to
situations in which residential property
managers or other employees of a
housing provider are harassed by the
housing provider’s tenants. One of the
commenters explained that she was a
resident of the building she managed,
that she had a disability, and that she
had suffered harassment and threats by
other residents.

HUD Response: The proposed
standards generally would not apply to
situations in which a property manager
or other housing provider employee is
harassed by the housing provider’s
tenants because such situations
ordinarily do not involve a housing-
related transaction covered by the Act.
Where, however, a property manager is
also a resident of the building that the
property manager manages (e.g., a
resident-manager), the property manager
is entitled to the same protection from
discriminatory harassment under the
Act and under this final rule as any
other resident. Additionally, Section
818 of the Act makes it unlawful to

coerce, intimidate, threaten, or interfere
with any person on account of the
person having assisted others in
enjoying or exercising their fair housing
rights. Therefore, to the extent that a
property manager or other housing
provider employee (whether a resident
or not) is subjected to coercion,
intimidation, threats, or interference
because he or she aided or encouraged
other people in exercising or enjoying a
right protected by the Act—e.g., by
receiving and responding to one tenant’s
complaint of discriminatory harassment
by another tenant—the manager or
employee may be entitled to protection
under the Act.25

i. Totality of the Circumstances:
§100.600(a)(2)(i)

Issue: Some commenters requested
that HUD clarify the definition of
“totality of the circumstances” in
§ 100.600(a)(2)(i) because, in the
commenters’ view, the proposed rule
does not sufficiently explain the
showing required to prove hostile
environment harassment in violation of
the Fair Housing Act. Other commenters
supported HUD’s standard for
determining whether conduct
constitutes a hostile environment,
stating that the standard and its factors
are clear and permit an appropriately
individualized assessment of the facts of
each case. These commenters stated that
the rule’s explanation of hostile
environment harassment provides
meaningful guidance to both housing
providers and potential claimants.

HUD Response: HUD believes the
“totality of the circumstances” standard
in this final rule provides an
appropriate standard for assessing
claims of hostile environment
harassment, while also providing courts
with the flexibility to consider the
numerous and varied factual
circumstances that may be relevant
when assessing a specific claim. HUD
therefore chooses not to alter the
definition of the term “totality of the
circumstances,” although it will add to
the final rule the standard by which the
evidence is to be evaluated, which is
from the perspective of a reasonable
person in the aggrieved person’s
position. Section 100.600(a)(2) defines
what constitutes hostile environment
harassment under the Act. In
accordance with this provision,
establishing a hostile environment
harassment violation requires proving
that: A person was subjected to
unwelcome spoken, written, or physical

25 A property manager may also be protected by
Title VII, whether or not he or she resides at the
housing.

conduct; the conduct was because of a
protected characteristic; and the
conduct was, considering the totality of
the circumstances, sufficiently severe or
pervasive as to interfere with or deprive
the victim of his or her right to use and
enjoy the housing or to exercise other
rights protected by the Act. Whether a
hostile environment harassment
violation has occurred is a fact-specific
inquiry, and the rule supplies a non-
exhaustive list of factors that must be
considered in making that
determination. It would be impossible
to quantify in the rule the amount of
evidence necessary to make such a
showing in every case involving a claim
of hostile environment harassment. The
additional instruction in the rule text,
and not just the preamble, that the
“totality of the circumstances” is to be
evaluated from the perspective of a
reasonable person in the aggrieved
person’s position will aid all parties in
assessing whether a “hostile
environment” has been created.

Issue: HUD received several
comments regarding the explanation in
the preamble to the proposed rule that
hostile environment harassment should
be assessed from the perspective of a
reasonable person in the aggrieved
person’s position. A commenter
expressed concern that this standard is
too subjective, stating that one
reasonable person’s measure may be
different from another reasonable
person’s measure. Another commenter
asked HUD to provide a definition of the
term ‘‘reasonable person.” Other
commenters approved of the standard
articulated in the preamble to the
proposed rule and commended HUD for
recognizing that the reasonable person
standard must take into account the
circumstances of the aggrieved person.
A commenter recommended that the
rule text itself explicitly state this
objective standard. Another commenter,
however, recommended that HUD not
add the standard to the rule text itself
because such addition may invite courts
to second-guess the rationality and
behavior of the actual victim, rather
than focusing on the conduct and its
surrounding circumstances.

HUD Response: As HUD explained in
the preamble to the proposed rule,
whether unwelcome conduct is
sufficiently severe or pervasive to create
a hostile housing environment is
evaluated from the perspective of a
reasonable person in the aggrieved
person’s position. This standard is an
objective one, but ensures that an
assessment of the totality of the
circumstances includes consideration of
whether persons of the same protected
class and of like personal experience as
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the plaintiff or complainant would find
the challenged conduct to create a
hostile environment. At the proposed
rule stage, HUD chose not to add the
“reasonable person in the aggrieved
person’s position” standard to the text
of the rule itself. But in light of the
confusion expressed by some of the
commenters, HUD has added this
standard to the text of the final rule
discussing the totality of the
circumstances standard. In adding this
reasonable person standard for assessing
the evidence to the rule text, HUD does
not intend to create an additional
requirement for proving a hostile
environment harassment claim beyond
the showing required under

§ 100.600(a)(2) of the rule. The
definition of hostile environment
harassment in this final rule remains
unchanged and focuses on defining the
types of conduct that may establish a
claim of hostile environment
harassment under the Fair Housing Act.

(A) Factors To Be Considered:
§ 100.600(a)(2)(i)(A)

Issue: Several commenters
commended HUD’s explanation in the
preamble to the proposed rule that
individuals have heightened rights
within their home for privacy and
freedom from unwelcome speech and
conduct. Many commenters agreed with
HUD that harassment in or around one’s
home can be far more intrusive,
violative, and threatening than
harassment in the more public
environment of one’s workplace. Some
commenters said these considerations
should be explicitly incorporated into
the text of the rule itself. Commenters
specifically requested that HUD revise
proposed § 100.600(a)(2)(i)(A) by adding
as a factor to be considered in
determining whether hostile
environment harassment exists “the
heightened rights in or around one’s
home for privacy and freedom from
harassment” or ““‘the heightened
reasonable expectation of privacy and
freedom from harassment in one’s
home.” Another commenter said that
§ 100.600(a)(2)(i}(A) should expressly
state that conduct occurring in one’s
home may result in a violation of the
Fair Housing Act even though the same
conduct in one’s place of employment
may not violate Title VIL

HUD Response: HUD declines to add
language regarding individuals’
heightened rights within the home for
privacy and freedom from unwelcome
speech and conduct to the rule text in
§100.600(a)(2)(1)(A). The non-
exhaustive list of factors included in
§ 100.600(a)(2)(i)(A) identifies
circumstances that can be demonstrated

with evidence during the adjudication
of a claim of hostile environment
harassment under the Act. Evidence
regarding the “location of the conduct,’
as explicitly identified in
§100.600(a)(2)(i)(A}, is a critical factor
for consideration and will allow courts
to take into account the heightened
privacy and other rights that exist
within the home when determining
whether hostile environment
harassment occurred. For similar
reasons, HUD also declines to add
language stating that harassing conduct
may result in a violation of the Fair
Housing Act even though such conduct
might not violate Title VII. HUD
believes that by establishing a hostile
environment harassment standard
tailored to the specific rights protected
by the Fair Housing Act and by
directing that hostile environment
claims under the Act are to be evaluated
by assessing the totality of the
circumstances—including the location
of the unwelcome conduct and the
context in which it occurred—the final
rule ensures that courts consider factors
unique to the housing context when
making the fact-specific determination
of whether the particular conduct at
issue violates the Act. Therefore, while
HUD agrees that unwelcome conduct in
or around the home can be particularly
intrusive and threatening and may
violate the Fair Housing Act even
though the same or similar conduct in
an employment setting may not violate
Title VII, HUD does not believe the
proposed additions to
§100.600(a)(2)(i)(A} are necessary.

Issue: A commenter supported HUD’s
identification of the relationship of the
persons involved as a factor to be
considered when determining whether
hostile environment harassment has
occurred, but recommended that the
final rule further refine the concept.
Specifically, in the homeowner’s
association context, the commenter
drew distinctions between the
relationships among the different
resident-owners and between a board
member and a resident-owner. The
commenter also distinguished these
relationships from landlord-tenant
relationships.

HUD Response: HUD appreciates
these distinctions and believes the rule
already accommodates them by
requiring the relationship of the parties
involved be taken into account in
determining whether a hostile
environment has been created. This is
one of several factors that HUD
identified for evaluating allegations of
hostile environment harassment. In a
community governed by a homeowner’s
association, for example, the influence

an owner-board member has over
another resident by virtue of his or her
authority to make association policy, to
approve homeowner requests, and to
bring or adjudicate charges of
association rule violations may be
greater than a non-board member, and
thus each person’s relationship to the
victim should be considered when
assessing whether a hostile environment
exists. No further refinement to the rule
is necessary to address the commenter’s
concerns; nor is any further refinement
desirable, as it would risk inadvertently
ingerting limiting factors into the
otherwise broad and flexible totality of
the circumstances test.

(B) Physiological or Physical Harm:
§ 100.600(aj(2)(i)(B)

Issue: A commenter stated that
§100.600(a)(2)(i)(B) of the proposed
rule, which concerns psychological or
physical harin, is confusing. The
commenter requested that HUD clarify
the meaning of this provision.

HUD Response: HUD agrees that
§100.600(a}{2)(i)(B) may be confusing
and has revised this provision at the
final rule stage; the revision is intended
to clarify without altering the meaning
of the provision. Proposed
§ 100.600(a)(2)(i}(B) provided that
“Evidence of psychological or physical
harm is relevant in determining whether
a hostile environment was created, as
well as the amount of damages to which
an aggrieved person may be entitled.
Neither psychological nor physical
harm, however, must be demonstrated
to prove that a hostile environment
exists.” Final § 100.600(a)(2)(i)(B)
provides that “Neither psychological
nor physical harm must be
demonstrated to prove that a hostile
environment exists. Evidence of
psychological or physical harm may,
however, be relevant in determining
whether a hostile environment was
created and, if so, the amount of
damages to which an aggrieved person
may be entitled.” As explained at the
proposed rule stage, evidence of such
harm is but one of many factors that
may be considered in assessing the
totality of the circumstances. So long as
the unwelcome conduct is sufficiently
severe or pervasive as to interfere with
or deprive the victim of a right protected
by the Act, there is no need to also
demonstrate psychological or physical
injury in order to prove a hostile
environment violation.

ii. Title VII Affirmative Defense:
§100.600(a)(2)(ii)

Issue: HUD received several
comments on § 100.600(a)(2)(ii) of the
proposed rule, which provides that the
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Title VII affirmative defense to an
employer’s vicarious liability for hostile
environment harassment by a supervisor
does not apply to claims brought
pursuant to the Fair Housing Act.
Several commenters commended HUD’s
decision not to extend the Title VII
affirmative defense to the Fair Housing
Act and agreed with HUD that such a
defense would be inappropriate in the
housing context, in part because of the
lack of an exhaustion requirement under
the Fair Housing Act, as well as the
differences between an agent in the
employment context versus an agent in
the housing context.

Other commenters recommended that
HUD apply the judicially-created Title
VII affirmative defense to Fair Housing
Act claims. One such commenter stated
that HUD, by rule, cannot import a Title
VII cause of action onto the Fair
Housing Act without the judicially-
created limitations on a Title VII
employer’s liability under that cause of
action. Another commenter believed
that HUD eliminated an existing
affirmative defense for housing
providers that is available in the
employment context. Given the scope of
potential harassment claims, this
commenter found unwarranted HUD’s
position that the Title VII affirmative
defense is not relevant to harassment in
the housing context because, in HUD’s
view, a housing agent who harasses
residents is inevitably aided by his or
her agency relationship with the
housing provider. In the commenter’s
view, a responsible housing provider
who exercises reasonable care to
prevent harassment, and who provides
a complaint mechanism that a resident
unreasonably fails to invoke, should be
afforded the same affirmative defense
available to employers in analogous
situations. Another commenter asked
HUD to reconsider its decision to reject
the affirmative defense as it appears
unfair and based on an assertion that
agents of housing providers are
equivalent to a supervisory employer in
terms of their power over applicants
and/or tenants.

HUD Response: After carefully
considering the analysis provided by the
commenters on both sides of the issue,
HUD has retained its view that the Title
VII affirmative defense is not
appropriate to include as a defense
under the Fair Housing Act. HUD has
never found occasion to employ such a
defense and remains unaware of any
court having extended the Title VII
affirmative defense to fair housing
claims, and commenters did not identify
any such case law. Moreover, unlike
Title VII, which requires employees to
exhaust their administrative remedies

before filing an action in court, the Fair
Housing Act has no exhaustion
requirement, and nothing in the text of
the Fair Housing Act otherwise
indicates that Congress intended to
permit a housing provider to avoid
vicarious liability for discriminatory
harassment perpetrated by its agents by
establishing its own complaint process
or procedure. To the contrary, the Act
authorizes any aggrieved person to
directly commence a civil action in
federal or state court, whether or not the
individual has previously chosen to file
an administrative complaint with
HUD.26 Therefore, as explained in the
preamble to the proposed rule, the Title
VII affirmative defense is not
appropriately applied to harassment in
the housing context because its
adoption would impose burdens on
victims of discriminatory harassment
that are incompatible with the broad
protections and streamlined
enforcement mechanisms afforded by
the Fair Housing Act.

HUD notes that some comments on
this issue demonstrated a
misunderstanding of the potential scope
of the Title VII affirmative defense. The
Title VII affirmative defense does not
apply to harassment claims based on
direct liability. Thus, contrary to the
perceptions of some commenters, the
affirmative defense does not apply to
cases in which an employer—or housing
provider—knew or should have known
of an agent or third-party’s harassment
and failed to stop it, because such cases
involve direct rather than vicarious
liability.

Therefore, in exercising its power to
promulgate rules to interpret and carry
out the Act, HUD believes it would be
inappropriate to add, for the first time,
an affirmative defense that would
require victims of hostile environment
harassment—who are often housing
insecure or otherwise especially
vulnerable—to choose between the risk
of retaliation by the perpetrator and the
risk of losing their right to hold a
housing provider liable for the acts of its
agents. Instead, the traditional
principles of vicarious liability—
including those standards that hold a
principal liable for an agent’s conduct
that is taken within the scope of
employment, with the apparent
authority of the principal, or that is
otherwise aided by the agency
relationship—will continue to govern a
housing provider’s liability for
harassment. While HUD declines to
extend the Title VII affirmative defense
to the Fair Housing Act, the
development and dissemination of anti-

26 See 42 U.S.C. 3614(a).

harassment policies will still assist
housing providers to avoid litigation by
identifying and quickly addressing
improper conduct by employees or
other agents.

Issue: A commenter requested that
HUD create safe harbors from liability
for housing providers for harassment by
their agents and third-parties.
Specifically, the commenter stated that
liability for unknown and unintended
harassment by an agent or third-party
should not be imposed on a housing
provider where the housing provider:
(1) Provides periodic mandatory fair
housing training for its employees and
agents (including training related to
harassment claims); (2) requires
unaffiliated management companies to
conduct similar training of their
employees, report to the property owner
on a regular basis about the steps it is
taking to avoid fair housing claims
generally, and promptly report any
potential fair housing claim to a
designated official of the housing
provider; and (3} implements and
publicizes a hotline or other secure
communication mechanism whereby a
tenant can confidentially notify the
housing provider about possible
harassment by employees or other
tenants.

Another commenter expressed
concern that the rule as proposed would
expand a PHA’s exposure to liability by
making the PHA liable for perceived
hostile environment harassment that
occurs beyond its knowledge or control
and fails to create or incentivize any
new remedies to protect tenants against
hostile environment harassment. As a
result, according to the commenter, the
proposed rule raises the possibility that
future litigation over alleged harassment
might be driven by plaintiff attorneys’
fees rather than the merit of the
allegations or effective remedies. In light
of these concerns, the commenter
suggested that HUD revise the proposed
rule to adopt defenses similar to those
applicable to public agencies under
California state law for injuries caused
by dangerous conditions on the public
agency'’s property. As described by the
commenter, the State law defense
provides that liability attaches to the
public agency if the plaintiff establishes
that; (1) The public employee’s
negligence or wrongful act or omission
created the dangerous condition; or (2)
the public entity had actual or
constructive notice of the dangerous
condition before the injury occurred.
The commenter believes this standard
incentivizes the public agency to
maintain its property and train its staff
in order to limit its exposure to liability
and reduce the risk of injuries.
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HUD Response: As explained in the
preamble to the proposed rule,
traditional principles of tort liability
and agency law apply in fair housing
cases. The standards for direct and
vicarious liability established in this
final rule continue to reflect such
principles and do not impose any new
legal obligations or create or define new
agency relationships or duties of care.
For the same reasons that HUD does not
interpret the Fair Housing Act to import
the Title VII affirmative defense for a
claim of hostile environment
harassment by the provider’s agent,
HUD does not believe the requested safe
harbor or state law-derived defense from
liability is appropriate.

The California State law identified by
the commenter essentially imposes a
negligence standard for public agency
liability, which is akin to the standard
of direct liability that governs Fair
Housing Act claims under
§ 100.7(a)(1)(ii). In addition, under
traditional principles of agency law, a
housing provider may be held
vicariously liable for the discriminatory
acts of an employee or agent regardless
of whether the housing provider knew
of or intended the discriminatory
conduct where the employee was acting
within scope of his or her agency, or
where the harassment was aided by the
agency relationship. HUD believes that
traditional tort and agency law
standards for assessing liability under
the Act will encourage housing
providers to provide appropriate
training for their staff and to ensure
compliance with the Act.

Issue: A commenter asserted that the
proposed rule, including HUD’s
decision not to adopt the Title VII
affirmative defense, raises Federalism
implications. The commenter stated that
the proposed rule creates a cause of
action based on Title VII law that could,
ostensibly, be brought against a State,
even when the actions are performed by
a city or other sub-recipient of funds,
and obviate the State’s sovereign
immunity despite its ongoing assertion
that it has not waived such sovereign
immunity. The commenter said that the
rule would do so while removing the
judicially-created Title VII affirmative
defense. The commenter recommended
that HUD withdraw the rule or create a
specific carve-out for actions against a
State that limits and defines the extent
of vicarious liability, including a safe-
haven for conduct or policy akin to an
affirmative defense.

HUD Response: Executive Order
13132 (entitled ‘‘Federalism”) prohibits
an agency from publishing any rule that
has federalism implications if the rule
either (1) imposes substantial, direct

compliance costs on state and local
governments and is not required by
statute, or (2) preempts state law, unless
the agency meets the consultation and
funding requirements of section 6 of the
Executive Order. Under the Executive
Order, Federalism implications are
those having substantial direct effects
on states or local governments
(individually or collectively), on the
relationship between the national
government and the states, or on the
distribution of power and
responsibilities among the various
levels of government. This final rule
does not have such implications. As
discussed elsewhere, the rule creates no
new cause of action, liability or
obligation on the part of any housing
provider, including a State. The rule
interprets the Fair Housing Act’s
prohibition on discriminatory
harassment, and in doing so, neither
alters the substantive prohibitions
against discrimination in the Act nor
creates enhanced liability or compliance
costs for States or any other entities or
individuals. Similarly, the rule does not
alter any sovereign immunity
protections that a State may have under
the Eleventh Amendment. In addition,
the rule does not remove a pre-existing
affirmative defense, because no court of
which HUD is aware has ever applied
the Title VII affirmative defense or any
other affirmative defense or safe harbor
to Fair Housing Act claims; nor has
HUD ever applied such a standard. HUD
notes further that creating an affirmative
defense or safe harbor for States would
not be consistent with Congressional
intent, for the reasons discussed above.

b. Type of Conduct: § 100.600(b}

Issue: A commenter inquired whether
a verbal or written account from an
aggrieved tenant would be enough to
comprise a showing of hostile
environment harassment under the Act.

HUD Response: A verbal or written
account from an aggrieved tenant may
be enough to provide notice to a
housing provider that a hostile
environment may be occurring, but
whether it would be sufficient to
establish that the conduct is sufficiently
severe or pervasive to create a hostile
environment depends on the totality of
the circumstances.

c. Number of Incidents: § 100.600(c)

Issue: A commenter expressed
concern that the proposed rule includes
both a “totality of the circumstances
standard” and a “single incident
standard”’ and asked HUD to provide
more descriptive language to determine
the existence of a hostile environment
based on such standards. The

commenter asked HUD to clarify or
provide examples of when a single
incident of harassment would be
sufficient to create a hostile
environment. Several other commenters
expressed approval of § 100.600(c) of
the proposed rule, which provides that
a single incident of harassment because
of race, color, religion, sex, familial
status, national origin, or disability may
constitute a discriminatory housing
practice, where the incident is severe, or
evidences a quid pro quo. Other
commenters stated that in some cases a
single act can be so severe as to deprive
individuals of their right to use and
enjoy their housing.

HUD Response: HUD did not intend
to propose two different standards for
determining whether hostile
environment harassment has occurred.
To avoid confusion and better clarify
the relationship between § 100.600(c)
and § 100.600(a)(2), HUD is revising
§ 100.600(c) at this final tule stage.
Section 100.600(a)(2) of the rule
provides the only standard that must be
met to prove a claim of hostile
environment harassment under the
Act—namely, that: A person was
subjected to unwelcome spoken,
written, or physical conduct; the
conduct was because of a protected
characteristic; and the conduct was
sufficiently severe or pervasive as to
interfere with or deprive the victim of
his or her right to use and enjoy the
housing or to exercise other rights
protected by the Act. As provided in
§100.600(a)(2)(i), a determination of
whether this standard has been met is
to be based on the totality of the
circumstances. Section 100.600{c) is
included in the rule to make clear that
a single incident of harassment because
of a protected characteristic, if
sufficiently severe, can constitute a
hostile environment harassment
violation (as defined in § 100.600(a)(2)).
Whether a claim of hostile environment
harassment is based on a single incident
or repeated incidents of unwelcome
conduct, an assessment of the totality of
the circumstances is still required. For
example, the nature of the unwelcome
conduct (e.g., whether it was spoken,
written and/or physical) and the
location of the conduct (e.g., whether it
occurred inside the victim’s apartment
or in a common space), among other
potential considerations, would factor
into an assessment of whether a single
incident of harassment was sufficiently
severe to interfere with or deprive the
victim of his or her right to use and
enjoy the housing or to exercise other
rights protected by the Act.

HUD is revising proposed § 100.600(c)
at this final rule stage as follows.
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Proposed § 100.600(c) provided that: “A
single incident of harassment because of
race, color, religion, sex, familial status,
national origin, or handicap may
constitute a discriminatory housing
practice, where the incident is severe, or
evidences a quid pro quo.” Final

§ 100.600(c) now provides: “'A single
incident of harassment because of race,
color, religion, sex, familial status,
national origin, or handicap may
constitute a discriminatory housing
practice, where the incident is
sufficiently severe to create a hostile
environment, or evidences a quid pro

12

quo.

B. Illustrations: §§ 100.60, 100.65,
100.80, 100.90, 100.120, 100.130, and
100.135

Issue: Several commenters supported
the illustrations included throughout
the proposed rule and asked HUD to
provide additional examples of
prohibited practices in the final rule.
They requested more examples of:
Unwelcome conduct; how quid pro quo
harassment occurs with respect to
protected classes other than sex; single
incidents that constitute a hostile
environment; and when direct liability
exists. Commenters also recommended
that HUD add to the final rule examples
clarifying the relationship between age
and disability and add examples of
harassment of pregnant women,
Muslims, persons with limited English
proficiency, persons with mental health-
related disabilities or HIV/AIDS, and
persons who assert their rights to
organize. Another commenter stated
that HUD has provided useful
illustrations of what does not violate the
Act in other fair housing contexts, and
requested that HUD do the same here,
citing 24 CFR 100.205(b) (concerning
the impracticality of meeting the Act’s
design and construction standards).

HUD Response: HUD retains the
illustrations contained in the proposed
rule, but otherwise declines to add more
illustrations to the final rule. The rule
contains numerous illustrations of
possible quid pro quo and hostile
environment harassment referencing all
protected classes. But whether illegal
harassment has or has not occurred in
a particular situation is fact-specific and
must be determined on a case-by-case
basis. For this reason, the illustrations
provided are simply more specific
descriptions of the legal standard, e.g.,
conditioning the availability of housing
on a person’s response to sexual
harassment illustrates an unlawful
refusal to sell or rent. Providing
illustrations as to what does not violate
the Act would not be appropriate
because of the necessarily fact-specific

nature of such an inquiry. HUD notes
that § 100.205(b), which the commenter
cited, does not describe conduct that
does not violate the Act, but rather
provides examples of when the
impracticality exception to the Act’s
design and construction requirements is
applicable. Lastly, some of the suggested
examples are outside the scope of the
Act, e.g., the right to organize, but HUD
notes that persons would be protected
by the Act to the extent the harassment
is because of their race, color, religion,
sex, familial status, national origin, or

disability.

C. Liability for Discriminatory Housing
Practices: § 100.7

a. Direct Liability for One’s Own
Discriminatory Conduct: § 100.7(a}(1)(i)

Issue: A commenter stated that the
language in § 100.7(a)(1)(i), which states
that a person is directly liable for the
person’s own conduct that results in a
discriminatory housing practice, may
lead to the liability of innocent actors
and third-parties who somehow
contributed to an illegal discriminatory
action. The commenter gave as an
example a situation in which a person
supplied the pen that a housing
provider used to make notes on an
application that the housing provider
later rejected because of a protected
characteristic of the applicant.

HUD Response: The rule creates no
new or enhanced forms of liability. As
discussed in the preamble of the
proposed rule, § 100.7(a)(1)(i) does
nothing more than restate the most basic
form of direct liability, i.e., that a person
is directly liable for his or her own
discriminatory housing practices, as
defined by the Act. Whether a person’s
conduct constitutes a discriminatory
housing practice under sections 804—
806 or 818 of the Act depends upon the
specific facts.

b. Direct Liability for Negligent Failure
To Correct and End Discrimination:
§ 100.7(a)(1)(ii) and (iii)

Issue: Several commenters expressed
concern about the “should have known’
standard in proposed § 100.7(a)(1)(ii}
and (iii), which states that a person is
directly liable for ““(ii) [flailing to take
prompt action to correct and end a
discriminatory housing practice by that
person’s employee or agent, where the
person knew or should have known of
the discriminatory conduct,” and ““(iii)
[flailing to fulfill a duty to take prompt
action to correct and end a
discriminatory housing practice by a
third-party, where the person knew or
should have known of the

3

33

discriminatory conduct . . .
(emphasis added).

Some commenters stated that this
standard creates almost certain liability
for landlords and that requiring actual
knowledge would be more fair to
property owners because liability would
only attach for failing to act on known
discrimination. A commenter stated that
the final rule should limit liability
where a housing provider has limited
knowledge of misconduct. In contrast,
other commenters stated that the “knew
or should have known” standard is
reasonable and consistent with the Fair
Housing Act, legal negligence
principles, and business practices of
housing providers. One commenter
complained that the proposed rule
appears to require actual knowledge,
even though the standard only requires
that a defendant ‘‘should have known”
of the harassment.

Commenters asked HUD to clarify
how a housing provider “should have
known” about harassment, especially in
the context of tenant-on-tenant
harassment. A commenter questioned
what the housing provider needs to
know before liability attaches and
whether the housing provider needs to
know that the harasser’s actions violate
the Fair Housing Act or only that the
harasser took some action toward the
victim. Several commenters expressed
concern that a PHA might be liable
when a housing voucher holder is
harassed but neither the apartment
owner nor voucher holder informs the
housing agency about the harassment.
One commenter expressed a similar
concern that owners living in another
city or state may not learn that
harassment is taking place on their
property unless the tenant tells the
owner, and another commenter asked
about a PHA'’s potential liability when
harassment occurs over the internet but
is unknown to the housing agency.

HUD Response: The “‘knew or should
have known” standard is well
established in civil rights and tort law.27
A housing provider ‘“‘should have
known” of the harassment of one
resident by another when the housing
provider had knowledge from which a
reasonable person would conclude that
the harassment was occurring. Such
knowledge can come from, for example,
the harassed resident, another resident,

27 As the Supreme Court has recognized, fair
housing actions are essentially tort actions. See
Meyer v. Holley, 537 U.S. 280, 285 (2003) (citing
Curtis v. Loether, 415 U.S. 189, 195-96 (1974)); see
also Burlington Indus. v. Ellerth, 524 U.S. 742, 759
(“An employer is negligent with respect to sexual
harassment if it knew or should have known about
the conduct and failed to stop it. Negligence sets a
minimum standard for employer liability under
Title VII. . . .”) (emphasis added).
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or a friend of the harassed resident.28
There is no requirement that the
resident contact the housing provider
about the harassment, only that the
housing provider have knowledge from
which a reasonable person would
conclude that harassment was
occurring. If the housing provider has
no information from which a reasonable
person would conclude that one
resident or a third-party was harassing
another resident, the housing provider
is not liable for failing to take action to
correct and end the harassment. If the
knowledge component is not met, a
housing provider cannot be held liable
for a resident’s or third-party’s
discriminatory conduct. HUD disagrees
that this standard will subject landlords
to certain liability. Application of this
standard to the liability provisions of
the rule helps clarify the Act’s coverage
for residents and housing providers. It is
intended to help guide housing
providers in their assessment of when to
intervene to prevent or end
discriminatory conduct. HUD
encourages housing providers to create
safe, welcoming, and responsive
housing environments by regularly
training staff, developing and
publicizing anti-discrimination policies,
and acting quickly to resolve complaints
once sufficient information exists that
would lead a reasonable person to
conclude that harassment was
occurring.

Issue: A commenter was concerned
that § 100.7(a)(1)(ii) is seeking to hold
the agent liable for the actions of its
principal, contrary to Supreme Court
precedent, and asked why this provision
is necessary in light of proposed
§ 100.7(b) (vicarious liability), which
states that the housing provider is
already liable for the unlawful actions of
the agent, whether known or not.

HUD Response: Section 100.7(a)(1)(ii)
addresses a principal’s direct liability
for the principal’s own negligent
conduct in overseeing (or failing to
oversee) its agent or employee. Under
the negligence theory of direct liability,
the principal is liable only if the
principal knew or should have known
of the agent’s discriminatory conduct
and failed to take corrective action to
end it. Section 100.7(b), by contrast,
holds the principal vicariously liable for
the discriminatory conduct of its agent,

28 See, e.g., Neudecker v. Boisclair Corp., 351 F.3d
at 364 (owner may be liable for acts of tenants and
management's children after failing to respond to
plaintiff’s complaints of harassment); Bradley v.
Carydale Enterprises, 707 F. Supp. 217 (E.D. Va.
1989) (finding that owners and managers' failure to
address one tenant’s complaints of racial
harassment by another tenant stated a claim under
42 U.S.C. 1981 and 1982).

regardless of whether the principal
knew or should have known of the
agent’s conduct. As the commenter
noted, an agent is not vicariously liable
for the principal’s conduct, but is
directly liable for his or her own
actions. Section 100.7 does not create
liability that does not already exist; it
does not hold the agent liable for the
conduct of the principal, and it is
entirely consistent with traditional
agency principles and Supreme Court
precedent.

Issue: A commenter asked for
clarification of the term “‘third-party” in
§100.7(a)(1)(iii). The commenter was
concerned that if left undefined, the
term would include everyone. The
commenter asked HUD to limit the term
to what the commmenter perceived to be
HUD's primary concern—*‘liability
resulting from a landlord’s failure to
assist a tenant subject to another
tenant’s harassment.”

HUD Response: HUD does not agree
that its use of the term “third-party”
requires further clarification in the text
of the rule. In the context of the rule,
liability for discriminatory conduct by a
“third-party” is appropriately limited to
a non-employee or non-agent who
engaged in quid pro quo or hostile
environment harassment of which the
housing provider knew or should have
known and had the power to correct.

Issue: A commenter stated that it is
unclear from the proposed rule whether
the obligation in proposed
§ 100.7(a)(1)(iii) to take action to end a
discriminatory housing practice by a
third-party must be derived from a
contract, lease, or law, or whether it
could be derived from these sources.
The commenter also requested that HUD
clarify in the rule whether generic lease
provisions related to the use and
enjoyment of one’s home that are found
in almost every lease would be enough
to create the obligation and related
liability contemplated in
§100.7(a)(1)(iii). Another commenter
expressed a concern that housing
providers would take steps to minimize
their liability for failing to take
corrective action by revising their leases
and other documents so that they do not
create a duty to protect tenants. A
commenter expressed concern that the
term “duty,” incorporated from other
laws and contracts, is difficult to fully
assess and therefore bound to create
unanticipated consequences.

HUD Response: HUD recognizes that
proposed § 100.7(a)(1)(iii) may have
caused some confusion, so HUD has
reworded the provision in the final rule.
Proposed § 100.7(a)(1)(iii) stated that a
person is directly liable for “failing to
fulfill a duty to take prompt action to

correct and end a discriminatory
housing practice by a third-party, where
the person knew or should have known
of the discriminatory conduct. The duty
to take prompt action to correct and end
a discriminatory housing practice by a
third-party derives from an obligation to
the aggrieved person created by contract
or lease (including bylaws or other rules
of a homeowner’s association,
condominium or cooperative), or by
federal, state or local law.” Revised
section 100.7(a)(1)(iii) of this final rule
provides that a person is directly liable
for “failing to take prompt action to
carrect and end a discriminatory
housing practice by a third-party, where
the person knew or should have known
of the discriminatory conduct and had
the power to correct it. The power to
take prompt action to correct a
discriminatory housing practice by a
third-party depends upon the extent of
control or any other legal responsibility
the person may have with respect to the
conduct of such third-party.” The final
rule does not use the term “duty,” and
no longer identifies specific categories
of potential sources for such a duty. A
housing provider’s obligation to take
prompt action to correct and end a
discriminatory housing practice by a
third-party derives from the Fair
Housing Act itself, and its liability for
not correcting the discriminatory
conduct of which it knew or should
have known depends upon the extent of
the housing provider’s control or any
other legal responsibility the provider
may have with respect to the conduct of
such third-party.2® For example, when a
housing provider enters into a lease
agreement with a tenant, the lease
typically obligates the housing provider
to exercise reasonable care to protect the
residents’ safety and curtail unlawful
conduct in areas under the housing
provider’s control, whether or not the
lease contains specific language creating
that responsibility. Even if the lease
does not expressly create such
obligations, the power to act may derive
from other legal responsibilities or the
operation of law.3¢

24 See, e.g., Neudecker v. Boisclair Corp., 351 F.
3d at 364 (owner may be liable for acts of tenanls
and management’s children after failing to respond
to plaintiff’s complaints of harassment); Fahnbulleh
v. GFZ Realty, LLC, 795 F. Supp. 2d 360, 364-65
(D. Md. 2011) (denying landlord’s motion to
dismiss because the Act imposes no categorical rule
against landlord liability for tenant-on-tenant
harassment); Reeves v. Garrollsburg Condo. Unit
Owners Ass’n, 1997 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 21762, *26
(D.D.C. 1997) (condo association that knew of
harassment by resident but failed to take corrective
actions may violate Act).

40 See, e.g., Wilstein v. San Tropai Condo. Master
Ass’n, 1999 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 7031, *28-33 (N.D. Il
Apr. 21, 1999) (rejecting condo association’s

Conlinued
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Issue: A commenter expressed
concern that proposed § 100.7(a)(1)(iii)
creates liability on the part of a
community association (homeowner
association, condominium or
cooperative) for the illegal acts of
residents over whom they have no
control. The commenter urged HUD to
remove or revise the proposed rule’s
extension of direct liability to
community associations for the
discriminatory actions of non-agents.
The commenter stated that community
associations generally lack legal
authority to mandate that residents take
actions described in the preamble of the
proposed rule because the associations
cannot evict homeowners or otherwise
impose conditions not specifically
authorized by the association’s
covenants, conditions, and restrictions
(CC&Rs) or state law. The commenter
suggested that if the language in
§ 100.7(a)(1)(iii) remains, it should be
modified to clearly state which terms
and conditions in association bylaws
and regulations constitute a duty on the
part of an association or its agents to
investigate and punish residents for
illegal discriminatory housing practices.

HUD Response: As noted above, HUD
has slightly revised § 100.7(a)(1)(iii) to
clarify that a housing provider is liable
under the Fair Housing Act for third-
party conduct if the provider knew or
should have known of the
discriminatory conduct, has the power
to correct it, and failed to do so. HUD
also notes that the rule does not add any
new forms of liability under the Act or
create obligations that do not otherwise
exist. The rule does not impose
vicarious liability (see § 100.7(b)) on a
community association for the actions of
persons who are not its agents. Section
100.7(a)(1)(ii) describes a community
association’s liability for its own
negligent supervision of its agents, and
§ 100.7{a)(1)(iii) describes a community
association’s liability for its own
negligence for failing to take prompt
action to correct and end a
discriminatory housing practice by a
third-party. With respect to
§ 100.7(a)(1)(iii), the rule requires that
when a community association has the
power to act to correct a discriminatory
housing practice by a third party of

argument that it had no duty to stop harassment of
plaintiff by other residents and holding that
association could be liable where evidence
indicated that association knew of the harassment
and bylaws authorized the association to regulate
such conduct); see also Bradley v. Carydale
Enterprises, 707 F. Supp. 217 (E.D. Va. 1989)
(finding that owners and managers’ failure to
address one tenant's racial harassment of a
neighboring tenant states a claim under 42 U.S.C.
1981, 1982}.

which it knows or should have known,
the community association must do so.

As the commenter recognizes, a
community association generally has
the power to respond to third-party
harassment by imposing conditions
authorized by the association’s CC&Rs
or by other legal authority.3?
Community associations regularly
require residents to comply with CC&Rs
and community rules through such
mechanisms as notices of violations,
threats of fines, and fines. HUD
understands that community
associations may not always have the
ability to deny a unit owner access to
his or her dwelling; the rule merely
requires the community association to
take whatever actions it legally can take
to end the harassing conduct.

Issue: A few commenters suggested
that HUD should reconsider imposing
liability on a landlord for tenant-on-
tenant harassment because the law in
this area is not well-settled. The
commenters expressed concern that
proposed § 100.7(a)(1)(iii) exceeds the
scope of the Act by expanding liability
for housing providers to include
liability for third-party harassment of a
resident when the housing provider did
not act with discriminatory intent. One
commenter, relying on Title VII case law
and an interpretation of the phrase
“because of,” stated that a landlord
must have acted with discriminatory
intent in order to be liable under the
Fair Housing Act. Another commenter
stated that although section 804(a) of the
Fair Housing Act does not require a
showing of intentional discrimination,
claims brought under sections 804(b)
and 817 of the Act do, citing Francis v.
King Park Manor, Inc., 91 F. Supp. 3d
420 (E.D.N.Y. 2015). Another comment
stated that to establish a housing
provider’s liability for failing to take
action to correct third-party harassment,
the plaintiff must show not just that the
housing provider failed to correct the
harassment but also that the housing
provider did so because of animus
against the victim due to a protected
characteristic. A commenter pointed to
Lawrence v. Courtyards of Deerwood

31 See, e.g., Wilstein v. San Tropai Condo. Master
Ass’n, supra*28-33; Heeves v. Carrollsburg Condo.
Unit Owners Ass’n, 1997 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 21762,
*26. See also Freeman v. Dal-Tile Corp., 750 F. 3d
413, 422-23 (4th Cir. 2014) (holding that “an
employer is liable under Title VII for third parties
creating a hostile work environment if the employer
knew or should have known of the harassment and
failed to take prompt remedial action reasonably
calculated to end [it].””) (internal quotation marks
and cilations omitted); Galdamez v. Polier, 415 F.
3d 1015, 1022 (9th Cir. 2005) (“An employer may
be held liable for the actionable third-party
harassment of its employees where it ratifies or
condones the conduct by failing to investigate and
remedy it after learning of it.”).

Ass’n, Inc., 318 F. Supp. 2d 1133 (S.D.
Fla. 2004), as an example of a case in
which the court dismissed the fair
housing claim against the housing
provider because the plaintiffs failed to
establish that the housing provider’s
ineffective response to the harassment
was due to racial animus. Commenters
also pointed to Ohio Civil Rights
Comm’n v. Akron Metro. Hous. Auth.,
892 NE.2d 415, 420 (Ohio 2008), in
which the court declined to impose
liability on landlords for failing to take
corrective action in response to
discriminatory harassment committed
by the landlord’s tenants. A commenter
also suggested that not requiring
discriminatory animus on the part of the
housing provider would amount to strict
liability. The commenters proposed that
in light of these contrary federal and
state court decisions, HUD should
require proof of some degree of animus
by the housing provider before
subjecting the provider to direct liability
for the acts of third parties.

HUD Response: HUD does not agree
that a housing provider’s failure to act
to correct third-party harassment must
be motivated by a discriminatory intent
or animus before the provider can be
held liable for a Fair Housing Act
violation. In reaching this conclusion,
HUD considered its own experience in
administering and enforcing the Fair
Housing Act, the broad remedial
purposes of the Act,32 relevant case law
including the Supreme Court’s recent
ruling in Texas Department of
Community Affairs v. Inclusive
Communities Project, Inc. holding that
the Fair Housing Act is not limited to
claims of intentional discrimination,
and the views of the EEOC regarding
Title VII. The case law cited by the
commenters fails to support the
proposition that the Fair Housing Act
requires discriminatory intent in order
to find a housing provider liable for its
negligent failure to correct resident-on-
resident or other third-party
discriminatory conduct. The district
court decision in Francis v. Kings Park
Marnor is the sole exception to that
principle, and HUD disagrees with its
ruling. HUD notes that this decision is
on appeal to the Second Circuit.

Section 100.7(a)(1)(iii) sets out a
negligence standard of liability, which
does not require proof of discriminatory

42 See e.g., Havens Realty Corp. v. Colemnan, 455
U.S. 363, 380 (1982) (Congress intended Fair
Housing Act to be broadly remedial); cf. Jones v.
Alfred H. Mayer Co., 392 U.S. 409, 413 (1968)
(describing the Fair Housing Act as “a
comprehensive open housing law"); 42 U.S.C. 3601
("'Tt is the policy of the United States to provide,
within constitutional limitations, for fair housing
throughout the United States.”).
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intent or animus on the part of the
provider, but is far from strict liability.
Under this standard, a plaintiff or the
charging party must prove three
elements to establish a housing
provider’s liability for third-party
harassment: (1) The third-party created
a hostile environment for the plaintiff or
complainant; (2) the housing provider
knew or should have known about the
conduct creating the hostile
environment; and (3) the housing
provider failed to take prompt action to
correct and end the harassment while
having the power to do so. HUD does
not agree that a fourth element—that the
housing provider’s failure to act was
more than negligent, and was motivated
by discriminatory intent—is necessary
or appropriate.

Contrary to one comment, the
Supreme Court in Inclusive
Communities Project has already ruled
that the “because of” clause in the Fair
Housing Act does not require proof of
discriminatory intent. While not
addressing every aspect of the cited
decisions, HUD notes the following: In
Lawrence v. Courtyards of Deerwood
Ass’n, cited by another commenter, the
court dismissed the discriminatory
harassment claim not for lack of
discriminatory intent on the part of the
landlord, but because it found, inter
alia, that the dispute did not involve
discriminatory harassment of one tenant
by another but instead reflected mutual
antagonism between two tenants. The
court in Lawrence distinguished Reeves
v. Carrollsburg Condo. Unit Owners
Ass’n, 1997 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 21762, *22
(D.D.C 1997), which held the landlord
liable under the Fair Housing Act for its
failure to adequately address sexual
harassment of one tenant by another
because “the [Carrollsburg Condo]
association’s by-laws specifically
authorized the association to curtail
conduct that contravened the law” and
provided that a violation of local or
federal law was a violation of the
association rules.33

Finally, the state court decision cited
by one commenter did not involve
claims under the Fair Housing Act and
does not provide reason for HUD to alter
§ 100.7(a)(1)(iii) at the final rule stage. In
Ohio Civil Rights Commission v. Akron
Metropolitan Housing Authority, the
Ohio Supreme Court’s refusal to hold a
landlord liable under a state civil rights
law for failing to take corrective action
in response to one tenant’s racial
harassment of another tenant was

13 Lawrence v. Gourtyards of Deerwood Ass’n, 318
F. Supp. 2d at 1149 (citing Reeves v. Carrollsburg
Gondo. Unit Owners Ass’'n, 1997 U.S. Dist. LEXIS
21762 at *22.

premised on an incorrect reading of
Title VII jurisprudence. The court
misconstrued Title VII case law to
require an agency relationship between
an employer and a perpetrator of
harassment in order to hold the
employer liable for negligently failing to
stop sexual harassment by the
perpetrator.3# In fact, under Title VII, an
agency relationship is not required in
order to hold employers liable for
negligently failing to stop
discriminatory harassment of which the
employer knew or should have known.
Both the EEOC and the federal courts
have recognized that an employer may
be held liable for negligently failing to
stop discriminatory harassment in the
workplace by non-employees or non-
agents.3% The principle of liability
codified in § 100.7(a)(1)(iii) of this final
rule is consistent with these Title VII
authorities and, in HUD’s view,
appropriately serves the Fair Housing
Act’s parallel antidiscrimination
objectives in the housing context. In
sum, the proposed rule and this final
rule reflect HUD’s considered judgment,
consistent with prevailing precedent
and EEOC regulations, that a housing
provider (including a homeowner’s
association) or property manager is
liable under the Act for negligently
failing to take corrective action against
a third-party harasser when the provider
or manager knew or should have known
of the harassment and had the power to
end it. In light of the above, HUD
declines to make the proposed revisions
to the final rule.

Issue: A commenter stated that the
imposition of liability on private
landlords for tenant-on-tenant
harassment is inappropriate and will
have several negative consequences.
The commenter stated that private
owners do not have the expertise or
resources to undertake what is
essentially a social services function to
mediate disputes between neighbors. In
addition, the commenter expressed
concern that the proposed rule could
make it more difficult and risky for
property owners to take affirmative
steps to operate racially integrated

34892 NE.2d at 419-20.

35 See 29 CFR 1604.11(e) (““An employer may also
be responsible for the acts of non-employees, with
respect to sexual harassment of employees in the
waorkplace, where there employer (or its agents or
supervisory employees) knows or should have
known of the conduct and fails to take immediate
and appropriate corrective action.”); see also, e.g.,
Freeman v. Dal-Tile Corp., 750 F.3d 413, 422-24
(4th Cir. 2014) (employer potentially liable for
failing to address discriminatory harassment by a
customer); Lockard v. Pizza Hut, Inc., 162 F.3d
1062, 1072—75 (10th Cir. 1998) (same; collecting
cases recagnizing employer liability for failing to
correct third-party harassment).

housing. The commenter stated that the
rule will be an economic disincentive
for individuals, companies, and other
investors to engage in the business of
renting residential real estate and that
the Section 8 voucher program depends
on the participation of these private
entities in order to achieve other fair
housing goals. The commenter
expressed concern that the effect of the
proposed rule will be to reduce the
supply of available affordable units,
thus disproportionately harming low-
income families. Other commenters
raised concerns that landlords, when
confronted by tenants who mutually
accuse each other of harassment, will be
unable to take necessary corrective
actions because of the rule’s prohibition
against moving or causing injury to a
complaining tenant, or will reprimand
the wrong tenant because they lack
expertise with investigations.

Numerous other commenters
supported the rule’s recognition that a
housing provider may be directly liable
for harassment of a tenant by the
housing provider’s employee or a third-
party. These commenters stated that any
suggestion that this rule will unduly
burden housing providers is
exaggerated, that the rule is wholly
consistent with the ordinary
responsibilities of housing providers to
ensure habitability, and that housing
providers are familiar with the tools
they have to enforce their own rules—
tools they frequently wield.

HUD Response: The rule does not
create new or enhanced liabilities for
housing providers, including those who
participate in the Section 8 program.
HUD believes that this rule will help
clarify the obligations that housing
providers already have in offering and
maintaining housing environments free
from discrimination and that comply
with the Fair Housing Act. We are long
past the time when racial harassment is
a tolerable price for integrated housing;
a housing provider is responsible for
maintaining its properties free from all
discrimination prohibited by the Fair
Housing Act. Under the Act,
discriminatory practices are those that
violate sections 804, 805, 806, or 818.
Such practices do not encompass all
incivilities, and thus it is important to
note that not every quarrel among
neighbors amounts to a violation of the
Fair Housing Act.36 Ending harassing or

36 See, e.g., Bloch v. Frischholz, 587 F.3d at 783
(quoting Halprin v. Prairie Single Family Homes of
Dearborn Park Ass'n, 388 F.3d 327, 330 (7th Cir.
2004) (noting that interference under § 818 “is more
than a ‘quarrel among neighbors’”'); Sporn v. Ocean
Colony Condominium Assn, 173 F. Supp. 2d 244,
251-52 (D.N.]. 2001) (noting that section 818 "'does

Continued
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otherwise discriminatory conduct may
necessitate evicting the tenant who has
engaged in the conduct, not the
aggrieved tenant.3” The Act does not,
however, prohibit housing providers
from offering to move an aggrieved
tenant, as long as that tenant may refuse
the offer without consequence or
retaliation.

Issue: Some commenters stated that
the proposed rule outlining third-party
liability conflicts with HUD’s PIH
Notice 2015-19, titled Guidance for
Public Housing Agencies (PHAs) and
Owners of Federally-Assisted Housing
on Excluding the Use of Arrest Records
in Housing Decisions. One commenter
was concerned that PTH Notice 2015-19
makes it harder for PHASs to correct
situations that may lead to hostile
environment harassment, while the
proposed harassment rule would make
it easier for PHAS to be held liable for
the activities of tenants who take actions
against other tenants to create a hostile
environment. Another commenter was
concerned that PHAs would be forced to
choose whether to comply with HUD's
harassment rule or with HUD’s Notice,
which prohibits the use of an arrest
record as evidence of criminal activity
that can support an adverse admission,
termination, or eviction decision. These
commenters therefore asked HUD to
remove third-party liability from the
rule.

HUD Response: HUD believes the
commenters’ concerns are misplaced
because there is no conflict between this
rule and PIH Notice 2015-19. The rule
does not add any new forms of liability
under the Fair Housing Act and the
formalization of clear and consistent
standards for evaluating harassment
claims under the Act does not conflict
with the requirements of the PIH Naotice.
Compliance with PTH Notice 2015-19
does not prevent a PHA from
considering reliable evidence of relevant
criminal activity when considering how
to respond to complaints of harassment.
Nor does this rule require a PHA to
make use of arrest records to determine
whether discriminatory harassment has
occurred. Consistent with traditional

not [] impose a code of civility”” on neighbors);
United States v. Weisz, 914 F. Supp. 1050, 1054—
55 (S.D.N.Y. 1996) (holding that allegations that
Jewish neighbor harassed complainants because of
their religion were “‘nothing more than a series of
skirmishes in an unfortunate war between
neighbors”). But see Ohana v. 180 Prospect Place,
996 F. Supp. 238, 243 (E.D.N.Y. 1998) (neighbors
who intentionally intrude upon quietude of
another’s home may violate Act).

37 See, e.g., Miller v. Towne Oaks East
Apartments, 797 F. Supp. 557, 562 (E.D. Tex.1992)
(finding landlord liable for violating Act by evicting
both harasser and victim of harassment instead of
only harasser).

tort liability principles, as well as
current federal Fair Housing Act
jurisprudence, this rule codifies HUD’s
longstanding view that a property
owner, including a PHA, may be held
liable for failing to take corrective action
within its power in response to tenant-
on-tenant harassment of which the
owner knew or should have known.
Where a PHA receives a complaint or
otherwise learns of possible
discriminatory harassment of one
resident by another, the PHA is advised
to assess the situation and, if necessary,
take appropriate corrective action to end
the harassment.

Issue: Several commenters expressed
concern that application of the rule
would conflict with HUD’s homeless or
permanent supportive housing programs
or might have a detrimental effect on
persons with mental disabilities. A
commenter stated that tenants with
severe mental health disabilities may
create a hostile environment for
neighbors and asked HUD to explain
what direct responsibility the housing
provider has to correct negative
behaviors. A commenter stated that the
rule incentivizes evictions over efforts
to determine whether a reasonable
accommodation might be appropriate
for persons with mental disabilities.
Another commenter stated that because
tenants with mental illness often have
difficulty finding housing, the proposed
rule might result in an increased rate of
homelessness among persons with
mental disabilities. A commenter asked
HUD to revisit the proposed rule’s third-
party liability provision to avoid
harming this particularly vulnerable
population.

Other commenters stated that the rule
would help protect many vulnerable
persons from eviction. These
commenters supported the statement in
the proposed rule’s preamble that
eviction is only one of the many
corrective actions housing providers
may utilize to address harassment.

HUD Response: The rule neither
changes a housing provider’s
responsibilities toward tenants with
mental disabilities nor incentivizes
evictions of such persons. It is not
uncommon for the behavior of one
tenant to frustrate, displease, or annoy
another tenant. This is true for behavior
by tenants with and without psychiatric
disabilities. The rule does not require a
housing provider to take action
whenever one tenant engages in
behavior that another tenant finds
objectionable. The Act prohibits
discrimination against applicants and
tenants with disabilities, including
evicting individuals with disabilities
because other tenants find them

frustrating, displeasing, or annoying.
The Act does not, however, require that
a dwelling be made available to a person
whose tenancy would constitute a direct
threat to the health or safety of others or
would result in substantial physical
damage to the property of others.38 The
housing provider must make an
individualized assessment as to whether
such a threat exists based on reliable
objective evidence that considers: (1)
The nature, duration, and severity of the
risk of injury; (2) the probability that
injury will actually occur; and (3)
whether there are any reasonable
accommodations that will eliminate the
direct threat. In evaluating a recent
history of overt acts, a housing provider
must take into account whether the
individual has received intervening
treatment or medication that has
eliminated the direct threat. Reasonable
accommodations must be made when
they may be necessary to afford such
persons an equal opportunity to use and
enjoy a dwelling. HUD refers the reader
to the Joint Statement of HUD and DOJ
on Reasonable Accommodations under
the Fair Housing Act for further
information.3?

1. Corrective Action: § 100.7(a)(2)

Issue: A commenter asked HUD to
remove the prohibition against causing
injury to a complaining garty.

HUD Response: HUD declines to
remove the prohibition on causing
additional injury to a person who has
already been injured by illegal
harassment. Permitting such additional
injury would be inconsistent with the
Act’s purposes to prevent unlawful
discrimination and remedy
discrimination that has already
occurred.

Issue: One commenter requested
further guidance as to what constitutes
appropriate corrective action by a
housing provider to stop tenant-on-
tenant harassment. The commenter
specifically inquired whether a single
verbal statement by a landlord to a
tenant who allegedly engaged in
harassing conduct would be sufficient
corrective action to relieve a landlord
from liability under the rule. Another
commenter asked HUD to impose
realistic and reasonable limitations on
housing providers’ obligation to take
corrective action.

HUD Response: There is no one way
that a housing provider must respond to
complaints of third-party harassment,

3842 11.5.C. 3604(f)(9).

39 See Joint Statement of HUD and DOJ on
Reasonable Accommodations Under the Fair
Housing Act (May 17, 2004), posted at http://
www.hud.gov/offices/fheo/library/
huddojstatement.pdf.
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although the rule makes clear that a
provider that fails to effectively respond
may be subject to liability under the
Act. Section 100.7(a)(2) provides that
corrective actions must be effective in
ending the discrimination, but may not
injure the aggrieved persons. For
example, corrective actions appropriate
for a housing provider to utilize to stop
tenant-on-tenant harassment or other
third-party harassment might include
verbal and written warnings; enforcing
lease provisions to move, evict, or
otherwise sanction tenants who harass
or permit guests to harass; issuing no-
trespass orders against guests; or
reporting conduct to the police. What
constitutes appropriate and effective
corrective action will depend on the
nature, frequency, and severity of the
harassment. While in some cases a
single verbal reprimand by a housing
provider may be sufficient to effectively
end discriminatory harassment of one
tenant by another, the housing provider
should notify the victim that such
action was taken, and it is advisable for
the housing provider to document this
action in its records. Additionally, the
housing provider should follow up with
the victim of the harassment after the
corrective action is taken to ensure that
it was effective. If the housing provider
knows or should have known that the
corrective action was ineffective, the
provider has a responsibility to take
additional corrective actions within its
power. If, however, corrective action is
effective in ending the discriminatory
conduct, a housing provider is not
required to take additional action
simply because the victim believes
further action should have been taken.
HUD does not agree that there is a need
to add a specific limitation on a housing
provider’s responsibility to take
corrective action within its power to act
in response to discriminatory
harassment of which the provider knew
or should have known.

Issue: A commenter stated that
because tenants are not agents or
employees, landlords cannot simply
compel tenants to take or avoid
particular action and do not have the
ability to shape or alter tenants’
behavior beyond threatening and
carrying out evictions. Another
commenter asked HUD to consider that
there are substantial practical
differences between the ability of
housing providers to take corrective
action to end tenant-on-tenant
harassment and their ability to control
the actions of their employees because
there is no agency relationship in the
former. Another commenter stated that
most homeowners would be very

concerned if association board
members, employees, or agents injected
themselves into the interpersonal
relationships of homeowners and
residents to investigate their
interactions and relationships for
discriminatory elements. This
commenter also said that for PHAs,
eviction is often unavailable as a
remedy for alleged tenant-on-tenant
harassment because the U.S. Housing
Act of 1937 and federal regulations limit
the ability of PHAS to carry out
evictions, except for specified causes. In
addition, the commenter stated that the
result of these restrictions and the
proposed rule would be to create
significant new liability for PHAs for
tenant-on-tenant harassment without
creating any new mechanisms for PHAs
to mitigate this liability.

In contrast, other commenters stated
that the rule does not create any new
liability because landlords have an
obligation to protect tenants’ rights to
quiet enjoyment and generally have the
right to take actions against renters and
occupants who disturb the quiet
enjoyment of others.

HUD Response: Neither the proposed
rule nor this final rule create new
liability for housing providers,
including PHAs or homeowner’s
associations, regarding resident-on-
resident harassment. Nor does the rule
require a housing provider to take action
that is beyond the scope of its power to
act. HUD recognizes that specific
remedies that may be available to
employers to stop an employee’s illegal
practices will be distinct from those that
a housing provider may use to stop
residents who are engaging in
discriminatory conduct. Creating and
posting policy statements against
harassment and establishing complaint
procedures, offering fair housing
training to residents and mediating
disputes before they escalate, issuing
verbal and written warnings and notices
of rule violations, enforcing bylaws
prohibiting illegal or disruptive
conduct, issuing and enforcing notices
to quit, issuing threats of eviction and,
if necessary, enforcing evictions and
involving the police are powerful tools
available to a housing provider to
control or remedy a tenant’s illegal
conduct. These tools are also available
to PHAs, and, contrary to one
commenter’s concern, eviction is
available to a PHA to correct a tenant’s
discriminatory conduct as the PHA may
terminate a tenancy for “serious or
repeated violation of material terms of
the lease,” 24 CFR 966.4(1)(2)(i), which
include the obligation that tenants must
“act . . .in a manner which will not
disturb other residents’ peaceful

enjoyment of their
accommodations. . .
966.4(f)(11).

Issue: A commenter expressed
concern that a PHA may be held directly
liable for failing to correct actions by
third-parties over whom they have little
or no control. As an example, the
commenter cited harassment of a
voucher-holding tenant by neighbors
who are not also voucher-holders and
not otherwise affiliated with the PHA.
Similarly, another commenter stated
that the rule could be interpreted to
make landlords liable for conduct that
occurs off their property or that has
nothing to do with a tenant’s home.

HUD Response: This rule describes
the standard for assessing liability under
the Fair Housing Act. These fair housing
standards apply to private and public
landlords alike and do not turn on
whether a tenant holds a Housing
Choice Voucher or receives other
government rental assistance. HUD also
reiterates that a housing provider is not
responsible for correcting every negative
action by any third-party. Rather, the
third-party action must constitute a
discriminatory housing practice as
defined by the Act, and the housing
provider must have the power to correct
it. As provided in the final rule and
discussed elsewhere in this preamble,
whether a housing provider has the
power to take corrective measures in a
specific situation—and what corrective
measures are appropriate—is dependent
on the facts, including the extent of
control or any other legal responsibility
the person may have with respect to the
conduct of such third-party. There may
be instances where the ability to correct
the unlawful conduct is beyond a
housing provider’s control. Thus, when
confronted with discriminatory
harassment of one of its Housing Choice
Voucher-holders or other tenants, the
housing agency should explore what
corrective actions are within its power
and are appropriate to take.

Issue: A commenter suggested that an
unintended consequence of the
proposed rule could be that property
owners would remove security devices,
such as video cameras and other
surveillance mechanisms, for fear that
such measures may create a duty on the
part of the property owner to correct
neighbor-on-neighbor harassment. In
contrast, other commenters stated that
housing providers may feel the need to
provide for more oversight of residences
which may interfere with residents’
right to peaceful enjoyment of their
dwelling.

HUD Response: Removing security
devices will not relieve a housing
provider of its obligation to take the

.’ 24 CFR
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actions within its power to promptly
correct and end a discriminatory
housing practice. Elsewhere in the
preamble, HUD discusses various
options that may be available to housing
providers to address neighbor-on-
neighbor harassment.

Issue: A commenter stated that
owners should be encouraged to use
positive incentives, such as promoting
better communication with—and
healthy relationships among—tenants,
and educating tenants about their rights
to prevent harassment, instead of taking
corrective actions that may harm
tenants, such as ending a lease or
evicting a tenant—.

HUD Response: HUD agrees that
positive incentives are useful tools for
preventing harassment. HUD believes,
however, that warnings, threats of
evictions, evictions, and lease
terminations may also be necessary
corrective actions to end harassment.
The preamble and rule make clear that
there is no one way to prevent or correct
harassment, only that the methods need
to be effective at ending it.

c. Vicarious Liability: § 100.7(b)

Issue: Several commenters questioned
the description of vicarious liability at
§100.7(b} of the proposed rule. One
commenter said § 100.7(b) could be
interpreted to impose vicarious liability
on an organization’s directors, officers,
or owners and suggested HUD clarify,
consistent with Meyer v. Holley, that it
is the organization—not the individual
directors, officers, or board members—
who are the “principal or employer”
subject to vicarious liability under the
Fair Housing Act. The commenter asked
HUD to issue clarification that the
proposed regulations do not contravene
or attempt to reverse Meyer v. Holley,
537 U.S. 280 (2003). In contrast, other
commenters applauded the description
of vicarious liability in the rule, stated
that the description follows well-
established common law tort and
agency principles, and expressed
support for the proposed rule’s reliance
on Meyer v, Holley.

HUD Response: Subsection 100.7(b)
merely describes the well-established
concept of vicarious liability, under
which principals may be held liable for
the discriminatory acts of their agents or
employees whether or not they knew of
the discriminatory conduct. As
articulated in Meyer v. Holley, and as
explained in the preambles to the
proposed rule and this final rule,
traditional agency principles apply to
the Fair Housing Act.4® Under agency
principles, a principal is vicariously

40537 U.S. at 282, 287.

liable for the actions of his or her agents
taken within the scope of their
relationship or employment, or for
actions taken outside the scope of their
relationship or employment when the
agent is aided in the commission of
such acts by the existence of the agency
relationship.4! Determining whether an
agency relationship exists is a factual
determination that looks to an agent’s
responsibilities, duties, and functions;
whether the discriminatory conduct of
the agent was within the scope of the
agency relationship or aided by the
existence of the agency relationship is
also a fact-specific inquiry.

Issue: Some commenters questioned
the statement in the proposed rule’s
preamble that a principal is vicariously
liable for the actions of an agent or
employee taken outside the scope of the
agency relationship or employment
when the agent or employee is aided in
the commission of such acts by the
existence of the agency relationship. A
commenter agreed that a principal is
vicariously liable for the acts of its
agents committed within the scope of
the agency, regardless of knowledge or
intent to violate the Act by the
principal, but believes that, in adopting
the “aided in agency” standard, the
proposed rule goes beyond traditional
tort concepts and does not reflect the
limited concepts of vicarious liability
endorsed in Meyer v. Holley. The
commenter considered it acceptable to
hold a real estate company liable for
discriminatory acts or statements made

41 See, e.g., Gloverv. Jones, 522 F. Supp. 2d 496,
507 (W.D.N.Y. 2007) (holding that ‘‘a property
owner may be vicariously liable under the Fair
Housing Act for the actions of an employee even
when they are outside the scope of employment
. . . if the employee was aided in accomplishing
the tort by the existence of the agency relation."}
(quoting Mack v. Otis Elevator Co., 326 F. 3d 116,
123 (2d Cir. 2003} (internal quotation marks
omitted); see also Boswell v. GumBayTay, No. 2:07—
CV-135-WKW[WO], 2009 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 45954,
*17 (M.D. Ala. June 1, 2009) (holding that vicarious
liability attached to property owner where property
manager's ‘position essentially gave him unfettered
access to communicate with and personally visit
[the plaintiff]”” and he "“used his power as property
manager as a vehicle through which to perpetrate
his unlawful conduct by refusing repairs, raising
the rent, and attempting to evict {the plaintiff] as
a consequence for [her| refusal to provide sexual
favars.”); Gloverat 522 F. Supp. 2d at 507 (rejecting
defendant property owner’s motion for summary
judgment on the issue of vicarious liability where
evidence showed that property manager used his
"“position as the de facto landlord to perpetrate FHA
[harassment] violations . . . giving] him the
opportunity to visit the apartment when he wanted,
and enabl[ing] him to control Plaintiff’s rent'");
Richards v. Bono, 2005 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 43585 at
*30 (holding that wife/co-owner of property could
be vicariously liable for husband’s harassment
where husband acted as her agent and used his
position as owner, property manager, and
maintenance supervisor to subject plaintiff to
sexual harassment by using a key to enter plaintiff's
apartment and threatening plaintiff with eviction).

by its brokers in the scope of their
agency, but disagreed that a housing
provider should be liable for
misconduct of a janitorial employee
outside the scope of that employee’s
duty because he wore a badged uniform
or possessed keys or passes to tenants’
dwellings. Another commenter asked
for clarity on the reasoning behind the
assertion in the preamble to the
proposed rule that an agent who
harasses residents or applicants is
necessarily aided by his or her agency
relationship with the housing provider.

HUD Response: As discusse
throughout this preamble, the proposed
and final rule do not create new forms
of liability. Instead, HUD has decided to
adopt well-established principles of
agency law, including that a principal
may be vicariously liable for the actions
of an agent or employee that are taken
outside the scope of the employment or
agency relationship if the agent or
employee is aided in committing the
acts by the existence of the employment
or agency relationship. Agency law
must be applied to the specific facts at
issue to determine whether such a
situation exists and gives rise to a
principal’s liability. The statement in
the proposed rule that an agent who
engages in hostile environment
harassment of residents or applicants is
aided by the agency relationship with
the housing provider was not intended
to suggest the agent is necessarily so
aided with respect to every
discriminatory housing practice. It was
intended to explain one of the reasons
HUD chose not to import into the Fair
Housing Act the Title VII affirmative
defense to an employer’s vicarious
liability for hostile environment
harassment. As explained in that
context, a housing provider’s agent who
engages in harassment holds a position
of power and authority over the
victimized resident or applicant,
regardless of the agent’s specific duties.
This is because a resident or applicant
has only an arms-length economic
relationship with the housing provider,
while an agent-perpetrator is clothed
with the authority of the housing
provider. Given this inherent imbalance
of power and control over the terms or
conditions of the housing environment,
the distinction between harassment by
supervisory and non-supervisory
employees that supported the creation
of the affirmative defense in the
employment context do not extend to
the housing context.

D. Other Issues

Issue: A commenter stated that HUD
should apply the proposed rule only to
its own investigative and administrative
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actions and should not purport to
preempt court-established rules. The
commenter stated that in some instances
it may be appropriate for federal courts
to defer to agency rules, but that this is
not a case where Chevron 42 deference is
appropriate because HUD is not basing
the rule on its own experience, but
largely on interpretations of federal
court decisions. The commenter stated
that HUD has no particular expertise in
tort law and no authority to interpret
tort laws. Another commenter stated
that HUD appears to be using the
administrative rule-making process to
substitute its views for those of the
courts, and that HUD must pursue the
change it seeks through Congress and/or
the courts.

HUD Response: The commenters
misconstrue both the rule and HUD’s
authority under the Act. The Act
specifically grants the Secretary of HUD
the authority and responsibility to
administer and enforce the Act,
including promulgating rules to carry
out the Act.43 This rule-making
authority is not limited to HUD's
investigations or administrative
proceedings. Moreover, the rule does
not construe tort law, but rather clarifies
standards for liability under this part,
based on traditional principles of tort
liability. It imposes no new legal
obligations or duties of care. In addition,
the introductory portion of this
preamble describes the grounds for
Chevron deference.

Issue: Some commenters disagreed
with HUD'’s statement in the preamble
to the proposed rule that the rule does
not create additional costs for housing
providers and others covered by the Fair
Housing Act. They stated that the
proposed rule would lead to increased
costs for and litigation against housing
providers. Among the other costs cited
by commenters are costs for compliance
and training, increased insurance
premiums, and increased liability
because many housing providers would
not have the ability to remain diligent
to address all harassment claims,
leaving them vulnerable to litigation.
Another commenter said that the
proposed rule creates the possibility for
substantial judgments for money
damages that PHAs have little ability to
pay, because they may not use federal
funds to pay judgments for damages.

HUD Response: As noted throughout
this preamble, this final rule does not
impose any new or enhanced liabilities.
Rather, it clarifies existing law under
the Fair Housing Act and well-

42 Chevron U.S.A., Inc. v. Natural Resources
Defense Council, Inc., 467 U.S. 837 (1984).
4342 1].S.C, 3608(a), 3610, 3615.

established common law tort and
agency principles as they apply under
the Act. The rule does not change
substantive obligations, but merely
formalizes them in a regulation. Because
the standards articulated in the rule are
already law, the risks of liability and
costs of complying will not increase
with issuance of the rule. HUD
presumes that the vast majority of
housing providers are in compliance
with the law. Any costs incurred by
housing providers to come into
compliance as a result of this
rulemaking will simply be the costs of
compliance with a preexisting statute,
administrative practice, and case law. In
fact, by formalizing uniform standards
for investigations and adjudications
under the Fair Housing Act, the rule
serves to reduce costs for housing
providers by establishing greater clarity
with respect to how a determination of
liability is to be made.

V. Findings and Certifications

Regulatory Review—Executive Orders
12866 and 13563

Under Executive Order 12866
(Regulatory Planning and Review), a
determination must be made whether a
regulatory action is significant and
therefore, subject to review by the Office
of Management and Budget (OMB) in
accordance with the requirements of the
order. Executive Order 13563
(Improving Regulations and Regulatory
Review) directs executive agencies to
analyze regulations that are “outmoded,
ineffective, insufficient, or excessively
burdensome, and to modify, streamline,
expand, or repeal them in accordance
with what has been learned.” Executive
Order 13563 also directs that, where
relevant, feasible, and consistent with
regulatory objectives, and to the extent
permitted by law, agencies are to
identify and consider regulatory
approaches that reduce burdens and
maintain flexibility and freedom of
choice for the public. This rule was
determined to be a “‘significant
regulatory action” as defined in section
3(f) of Executive Order (although not an
economically significant regulatory
action, as provided under section 3(f)(1}
of the Executive Order).

This rule establishes uniform
standards for use in investigations and
processing cases involving harassment
and liability under the Fair Housing
Act. In establishing such standards,
HUD is exercising its rulemaking
authority to bring uniformity, clarity,
and certainty to an area of legal practice.

The docket file for this rule is
available for public inspection between
the hours of 8 a.m. and 5 p.m. weekdays

in the Regulations Division, Office of
General Counsel, Department of
Housing and Urban Development, Room
10276, 451 7th Street SW., Washington,
DC 20410-0500. Due to security
measures at the HUD Headquarters
building, please schedule an
appointment to review the docket file by
calling the Regulations Division at 202-
708-3055 (this is not a toll-free
number). Persons with hearing or
speech impairments may access the
above telephone number via TTY by
calling the toll-free Federal Relay
Service at 800-877-8339.

Environmental Impact

This rule does not direct, provide for
assistance or loan and mortgage
insurance for, or otherwise govern or
regulate, real property acquisition,
disposition, leasing, rehabilitation,
alteration, demolition or new
construction, or establish, revise, or
provide for standards for construction or
construction materials, manufactured
housing, or occupancy. This rule is
limited to the procedures governing fair
housing enforcement. Accordingly,
under 24 CFR 50.19(c)(3), this rule is
categorically excluded from
environmental review under the
National Environmental Policy Act (42
U.S.C. 4321).

Regulatory Flexibility Act

The Regulatory Flexibility Act (5
U.S.C. 4321, et seq.) generally requires
an agency to conduct a regulatory
flexibility analysis of any rule subject to
notice and comment rulemaking
requirements, unless the agency certifies
that the rule will not have a significant
economic impact on a substantial
number of small entities. The rule
establishes standards for evaluating
claims of harassment and liability under
the Fair Housing Act. The scope of the
rule is procedural, and the regulatory
changes do not establish any substantive
regulatory burdens on small entities.
Accordingly, the undersigned certifies
that this rule will not have a significant
economic impact on a substantial
number of small entities.

Unfunded Mandates Reform Act

Title II of the Unfunded Mandates
Reform Act of 1995 (2 U.S.C. 1531—
1538) (UMRA) establishes requirements
for federal agencies to assess the effects
of their regulatory actions on state,
local, and tribal governments and the
private sector. This rule does not
impose any federal mandates on any
state, local, or tribal governments or the
private sector within the meaning of
UMRA.
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Executive Order 13132, Federalism

Executive Order 13132 (entitled
“Federalism”) prohibits an agency from
publishing any rule that has federalism
implications if the rule either (1)
imposes substantial, direct compliance
costs an state and local governments,
and is not required by statute, or (2)
preempts state law, unless the agency
meets the consultation and funding
requirements of section 6 of the
Executive Order. This rule does not
have federalism implications and does
not impose substantial direct
compliance costs on state and local
governments or preempt state law
within the meaning of the Executive
Order.

Catalogue of Federal Domestic
Assistance

The Catalogue of Federal Domestic
Assistance Number for the equal
opportunity in housing program is
14.400.

List of Subjects in 24 CFR Part 100

Aged, Fair housing, Individuals with
disabilities, Mortgages, Reporting and
recordkeeping requirements.

Accordingly, for the reasons stated in
the preamble, and in accordance with
HUD’s authority in 42 U.S.C. 3535(d),
HUD amends 24 CFR part 100 as
follows:

PART 100—DISCRIMINATORY
CONDUCT UNDER THE FAIR HOUSING
ACT

m 1. The authority citation for 24 CFR
part 100 continues to read as follows:

Authority: 42 U.S.C. 3535(d), 3600-3620.
® 2. Add § 100.7 to read as follows:

§100.7 Liability for discriminatory housing
practices.

(a} Direct liability. (1) A person is
directly liable for:

(i) The person’s own conduct that
results in a discriminatory housing
practice.

(ii) Failing to take prompt action to
correct and end a discriminatory
housing practice by that person’s
employee or agent, where the person
knew or should have known of the
discriminatory conduct.

(iii) Failing to take prompt action to
correct and end a discriminatory
housing practice by a third-party, where
the person knew or should have known
of the discriminatory conduct and had
the power to correct it. The power to
take prompt action to correct and end a
discriminatory housing practice by a
third-party depends upon the extent of
the person’s control or any other legal

responsibility the person may have with
respect to the conduct of such third-
party.

{2) For purposes of determining
liability under paragraphs (2)(1)(ii) and
(iii) of this section, prompt action to
correct and end the discriminatory
housing practice may not include any
action that penalizes or harms the
aggrieved person, such as eviction of the
aggrieved person.

(b) Vicarious liability. A person is
vicariously liable for a discriminatory
housing practice by the person’s agent
or employee, regardless of whether the
person knew or should have known of
the conduct that resulted in a
discriminatory housing practice,
consistent with agency law.

m 3.1In § 100.60, add paragraphs (b}(8)
and (7) to read as follows:

§100.60 Unlawful refusal to sell or rent or
to negotiate for the sale or rental.

* * * * *

(b] * Kk X

(6) Conditioning the availability of a
dwelling, including the price,
qualification criteria, or standards or
procedures for securing the dwelling, on
a person’s response to harassment
because of race, color, religion, sex,
handicap, familial status, or national
origin.

(7) Subjecting a person to harassment
because of race, color, religion, sex,
handicap, familial status, or national
origin that causes the person to vacate
a dwelling or abandon efforts to secure
the dwelling.

m 4.In §100.65, add paragraphs (b)(6)
and (7) to read as follows:

§100.65 Discrimination in terms,
conditions and privileges and in services
and facilities.

* * * * *

(b] * 0k Kk

(6) Conditioning the terms,
conditions, or privileges relating to the
sale or rental of a dwelling, or denying
or limiting the services or facilities in
connection therewith, on a person’s
response to harassment because of race,
color, religion, sex, handicap, familial
status, or national origin.

(7) Subjecting a person to harassment
because of race, color, religion, sex,
handicap, familial status, or national
origin that has the effect of imposing
different terms, conditions, or privileges
relating to the sale or rental of a
dwelling or denying or limiting services
or facilities in connection with the sale
or rental of a dwelling.

®m 5. In § 100.80, add paragraph (b)(6) to
read as follows:

§100.80 Discriminatory representation on
the availability of dwellings.
* * * * *

(b) * Kk *
(6) Representing to an applicant that

a unit is unavailable because of the
applicant’s response to a request for a
sexual favor or other harassment
because of race, color, religion, sex,
handicap, familial status, or national
origin.

m 6. In § 100.90, add paragraphs (b}(5)
and (6) to read as follows:

§100.90 Discrimination in the provision of
brokerage services.
* * * * *

(b) * K K

(5) Conditioning access ta brokerage
services on a person’s response to
harassment because of race, color,
religion, sex, handicap, familial status,
or national origin.

(6) Subjecting a person to harassment
because of race, color, religion, sex,
handicap, familial status, or national
origin that has the effect of discouraging
or denying access to brokerage services.
®m 7.In § 100.120, add paragraphs (b}(3)
and (4) to read as follows:

§100.120 Discrimination in the making of
loans and in the provision of other financial
assistance.

* * * * *

[b] * % *
(3) Conditioning the availability of a

loan or other financial assistance on a
person’s response to harassment
because of race, color, religion, sex,
handicap, familial status, or national
origin.

(4) Subjecting a person to harassment
because of race, color, religion, sex,
handicap, familial status, or national
origin that affects the availability of a
loan or other financial assistance.
® 8.In § 100.130, add paragraphs (b)(4)
and (5) to read as follows:

§100.130 Discrimination in the terms and
conditions for making available loans or
other financial assistance.

* * * * *

(b)* * *

(4) Conditioning an aspect of a loan or
other financial assistance to be provided
with respect to a dwelling, or the terms
or conditions thereof, on a person’s
response to harassment because of race,
color, religion, sex, handicap, familial
status, or national origin.

(5) Subjecting a person to harassment
because of race, color, religion, sex,
handicap, familial status, or national
origin that has the effect of imposing
different terms or conditions for the
availability of such loans or other
financial assistance.
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® 9. In § 100.135, revise paragraph (d) to
read as follows:

§100.135 Unlawful practices in the selling,
brokering, or appraising of residential real
property.

* * * * *

(d) Practices which are unlawful
under this section include, but are not
limited to:

(1) Using an appraisal of residential
real property in connection with the
sale, rental, or financing of any dwelling
where the person knows or reasonably
should know that the appraisal
improperly takes into consideration
race, color, religion, sex, handicap,
familial status, or national origin.

(2} Conditioning the terms of an
appraisal of residential real property in
connection with the sale, rental, or
financing of a dwelling on a person’s
response to harassment because of race,
color, religion, sex, handicap, familial
status, or national origin.
® 10. In § 100.400, add paragraph (c)(6)
to read as follows:

§100.400 Prohibited interference, coercion
or intimidation.
* * * * *

(C) * % &

(6) Retaliating against any person
because that person reported a
discriminatory housing practice to a
housing provider or other authaority.

m 11. Add subpart H, consisting of
§ 100.600, to read as follows:

Subpart H— Quid Pro Quo and Hostile
Environment Harassment

§100.600 Quid pro quo and hostile
environment harassment.

(a) General. Quid pro quo and hostile
environment harassment because of
race, color, religion, sex, familial status,
national origin or handicap may violate
sections 804, 805, 806 or 818 of the Act,
depending on the conduct. The same
conduct may violate one or more of
these provisions.

(1) Quid pro quo harassment. Quid
pro quo harassment refers to an
unwelcome request or demand to
engage in conduct where submission to
the request or demand, either explicitly
or implicitly, is made a condition
related to: The sale, rental or availability
of a dwelling; the terms, conditions, or
privileges of the sale or rental, or the
provision of services or facilities in
connection therewith; or the
availability, terms, or conditions of a
residential real estate-related
transaction. An unwelcome request or
demand may constitute quid pro quo
harassment even if a person acquiesces
in the unwelcome request or demand.

(2) Hostile environment harassment.
Hostile environment harassment refers
to unwelcome conduct that is
sufficiently severe or pervasive as to
interfere with: The availability, sale,
rental, or use or enjoyment of a
dwelling; the terms, conditions, or
privileges of the sale or rental, or the
provision or enjoyment of services or
facilities in connection therewith; or the
availability, terms, or conditions of a
residential real estate-related
transaction. Hostile environment
harassment does not require a change in
the economic benefits, terms, or
conditions of the dwelling or housing-
related services or facilities, or of the
residential real-estate transaction.

(i) Totality of the circumstances.
Whether haostile environment
harassment exists depends upon the
totality of the circumstances.

(A) Factors to be considered to
determine whether hostile environment
harassment exists include, but are not
limited to, the nature of the conduct, the
context in which the incident(s)
occurred, the severity, scope, frequency,
duration, and location of the conduct,
and the relationships of the persons
involved.

(B) Neither psychological nor physical
harm must be demonstrated to prove
that a hostile environment exists.
Evidence of psychological or physical
harm may, however, be relevant in
determining whether a hostile
environment existed and, if so, the
amount of damages to which an
aggrieved person may be entitled.

(C) Whether unwelcome conduct is
sufficiently severe or pervasive as to
create a hostile environment is
evaluated from the perspective of a
reasonable person in the aggrieved
person’s position.

(ii) Title VII affirmative defense. The
affirmative defense to an employer’s
vicarious liability for hostile
environment harassment by a supervisor
under Title VII of the Civil Rights Act
of 1964 does not apply to cases brought
pursuant to the Fair Housing Act.

(b) Type of conduct. Harassment can
be written, verbal, or other conduct, and
does not require physical contact.

(c) Number of incidents. A single
incident of harassment because of race,
color, religion, sex, familial status,
national origin, or handicap may
constitute a discriminatory housing
practice, where the incident is
sufficiently severe to create a hostile
environment, or evidences a quid pro
quo.

Dated: August 18, 2016.
Gustavo Velasquez,
Assistant Secretary for Fair Housing and
Equal Opportunity.
[FR Doc. 201621868 Filed 9-13-16; 8:45 am]
BILLING CODE 4210-67-P

DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND
SECURITY

Coast Guard

33 CFR Parts 100 and 165
[Docket Number USCG-2015-~0854]
RIN 1625-AA00, AAOS

Special Local Regulations and Safety
Zones; Recurring Marine Events and
Fireworks Displays Within the Fifth
Coast Guard District

AGENCY: Coast Guard, DHS.
ACTION: Final rule.

SUMMARY: The Coast Guard is issuing a
final rule that revises the list of special
local regulations and safety zones
established for recurring marine events
and fireworks displays that take place
within the Fifth Coast Guard District
area of responsibility. This rule revises
the listing of events that informs the
public of regularly scheduled marine
parades, regattas, other organized water
events, and fireworks displays that
require additional safety measures
provided by regulations. Under this
rule, the list of recurring marine events
requiring special local regulations or
safety zones is updated with revisions,
additional events, and removal of events
that no longer take place in the Fifth
Coast Guard District. When these
regulations are enforced, certain
restrictions are placed on marine traffic
in specified areas. This rulemaking
project promotes efficiency by
eliminating the need to produce a
separate rule for each individual
recurring event, and serves to provide
notice of the known recurring events
requiring a special local regulation or
safety zone throughout the year.

DATES: This rule is effective October 14,
2016.

ADDRESSES: To view documents
mentioned in this preamble as being
available in the docket, go to http://
www.regulations.gov, type USCG-2015-
0854 in the “SEARCH” box and click
“SEARCH”. Click on Open Docket
Folder on the line associated with this
rule.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: If
you have questions about this
rulemaking, call or email Dennis Sens,
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Traverse City Housing Commission
A Public Housing Authority

NEW BUSINESS

2017 Meeting Schedule

Strategic Planning Update Session: December 16, 2016
Resolution of Inventory Disposal for 2016
Resolution on Doubtful Accounts

Discussion on Follow-up to ACLU Letter of November 3, 2016
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TRAVERSE CITY HOUSING COMMISSION

150 PINE STREET | TRAVERSE CITY | MICHIGAN |49684

MEMORANDUM
DATE: November 18, 2016
TO: All Commissioners of the Traverse City Housing Commission
FROM: Tony Lentych, Executive Directof'*/
SUBIJECT: 2017 Meeting Calendar

MESSAGE:

A draft calendar for 2017 is attached to the memorandum. It is identical to the calendar that
we adopted for 2016. We need to publish this before the end of the current calendar year. If

the schedule worked for everyone, we can maintain as is. If not, we can adjust as needed.

ATTACHMENTS: Calendar

Page 1 of 1

67



The City of Traverse City

TRAVERSE CITY HOUSING COMMISSION

150 Pine Street, Traverse City, Michigan, 49684
T:(231) 922-4915 | F:(231) 922-2893

TDD: (800) 649-3777

2017 DRAFT MEETING SCHEDULE

THE TRAVERSE CITY HOUSING COMMISSION CONDUCTS ITS REGULAR MEETINGS AT 8:00 A.M.

ON THE FOURTH FRIDAY OF EACH OF THE FOLLOWING MONTHS:

JANUARY January 27, 2017
FEBRUARY February 24, 2017

MARCH March 24, 2017
APRIL April 28, 2017
MAY May 26, 2017
JUNE* June 23, 2017*

AUGUST August 25, 2017
SEPTEMBER September 29, 2017
OCTOBER October 27, 2017

DUE TO THE THANKSGIVING HOLIDAY, WE WILL HOLD A REGULAR MEETING AT 8:00 A.M. ON
THE THIRD FRIDAY OF THE FOLLOWING MONTH:

NOVEMBER November 17, 2017

ALL MEETINGS WILL BE HELD AT EITHER ONE OF TWO LOCATIONS:

1. RIVERVIEW TERRACE, COMMUNITY ROOM, 150 PINE STREET, TRAVERSE CITY
2. GOVERNMENTAL CENTER, 400 BOARDMAN AVENUE, TRAVERSE CITY

ROOM LOCATION IN GOVERNMENT CENTER TO BE DETERMINED BASED UPON AVAILABILITY.

NOTES: There is no meeting scheduled for JULY. We plan to have a “Study Session” and
“Strategic Plan Review” in DECEMBER.

* June is the official ANNUAL MEETING including the Election of Officers.

PUBLISHED: DECEMBER 16, 2016
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TRAVERSE CITY HOUSING COMMISSION

150 PINE STREET | TRAVERSE CITY | MICHIGAN | 49684

MEMORANDUM
DATE: November 18, 2016
TO: All Commissioners of the Traverse City Housing Commission
FROM: Tony Lentych, Executive DirectqﬂQ/

SUBJECT: Strategic Planning Update Meeting

MESSAGE:

December has long been reserved for a revisit and update of our Strategic Planning Process.
With new staff on board, | believe that this will be an excellent chance to review our documents
and readjust our work plans for the next year. To that end, we are engaging Pam Evans to help
us facilitate this work. Additionally, staff is recommending that we hold a meeting on
December 16, 2016 from 9:00 A.M. until 11:00 A.M. to accomplish this goal.

We promise it will be a fun time with plenty of Holiday Cheer!

ATTACHMENT: NorthSky Nonprofit Network Statement of Work

Page 1 of 1
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__'__..-r-"'-__ ___-'-'-n.._____\
NONPROFIT NETWORK Connecting Northern Michigan nonprofits with new ideas, resources and each other.

Statement of Work

Traverse City Housing Commission

Tony Lentych, Executive Director

150 Pine Street

Traverse City, M| 49684

231-922-4915, ext. 203 (o), 231-735-5285 (c)
tlentych@tcpha.net

PROJECT TYPE: Traverse City Housing Commission Strategic Plan Update and Annual
Goal Setting

This statement of work, dated November 8, 2016, is by and between the Traverse City
Housing Commission (TCHC) and NorthSky Nonprofit Network (NorthSky.) TCHC has
requested assistance in reviewing and updating its strategic plan to identify annual goals
and priorities. The terms of the agreement are outlined below.

GUIDING OUTCOMES
The project will complete the following key activities in order for TCHC to reach the

following capacity building guiding outcomes.

1) Organization has a clear mission that reflects its values and purpose

2) Organization has a clear, specific, and compelling vision

3) Vision is translated into clear, bold goals

4) Goals are used to direct actions and set priorities

5) Organization has concrete, realistic and detailed strategic plan

6) Information is systematically collected and used to support and improve planning
efforts

7) Planning is an ongoing activity to allow for innovation and adaptation as needed to
meet new challenges or needs

PROJECT INPUTS
NorthSky will provide Pamela Evans as the consultant for this project.

TCHC agrees to provide the following leadership and support to the project:

e Provide a project leader or convene a project team that will work directly
with the NorthSky consultant on project activities

70



Access to staff, data and materials as pertinent to the project
Coordinate scheduling of all TCHC participants in meetings

Active participation in all meetings and additional activities scheduled
Provision of all refreshments, meeting location and meeting supplies
Complete NorthSky evaluations of the engagement

PROJECT ACTIVITIES AND OUTPUTS

NorthSky will provide Pamela Evans to facilitate a 2-hour board planning session on
December 16, 2016, and focused on reviewing its current strategic plan, updating it and
setting goals for 2017. The NorthSky consultant will develop a planning document with a
annual work plan based on the work completed during the board planning session.

Deliverables
The following deliverables will be provided to the TCHC by the close of the engagement.

e Facilitation of a work session with the Traverse City Housing Commissioners
e Development of a revised planning document and annual work plan

Timeline
NorthSky will initiate the project in November 2016 and complete it by January 31, 2017

or on a mutually agreed upon timeline.

Fees and Terms

Activity Estimated Hours Rate Fee

Facilitation of board study session 8 $90 $720
including prep time and development
of an updated planning document and
work plan

TOTAL COSTS $720

The project is not anticipated to take more than 8 hours of time. The NorthSky hourly
rate is $90/hour. The total project cost to TCHC will not be greater than $720 without
the written approval of TCHC. A balance of 50% of the total project (or $360) is due
prior to project initiation. TCHC will be billed monthly for actual consultant hours

worked.

TCHC and NorthSky retain the right to terminate the project at any time with written
notice. In this event, TCHC will be billed and responsible for the consultant hours
worked up to the date of termination less any amount paid in advance to initiate
engagement. A dispute resolution process that is mutually acceptable to both
organizations will be used in the event of a potential contract termination.
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All TCHC data and information will be held in the strictest confidence and will remain its
exclusive property. TCHC will retain ownership of all documents, reports and project
data supplied as part of this project. TCHC will have permission to use tools and
templates provided by NorthSky for future work with proper credits.

COPY

Anthony Lentych Date Rebecca Ewing Date
Executive Director Associate Director
Traverse City Housing Commission Rotary Charities of Traverse City
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TRAVERSE CITY HOUSING COMMISSION

150 PINE STREET | TRAVERSE CITY | MICHIGAN |49684

MEMORANDUM
DATE: November 18, 2016
TO: All Commissioners of the Traverse City Housing Commission
FROM: Tony Lentych, Executive Directorﬂ/

SUBIJECT: Year-End Property Disposition Resolution

MESSAGE:

Per the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) guidelines, TCHC has
maintained the appropriate lists of inventory and assets. Normally, TCHC produces a quarterly
or annual list of items that need to be removed from inventory lists and have, when
appropriate, adjustments made to our recorded assets. This resolution covers all items
removed from inventory for the last 11 months which are listed below.

TCHC staff, therefore, recommends adoption of the following:

RESOLUTION FOR PROPERTY DISPOSITION
November 18, 2016

WHEREAS, the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) requires
local Public Housing Authorities (PHAs) including the Traverse City Housing Commission (TCHC)
to track the addition and removal of all property and assets; and

WHEREAS, the attached list of items are no longer considered assets to TCHC; and
WHEREAS, the TCHC concurs in the recommendation of the Executive Director and staff.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Traverse City Housing Commission as follows:

The following list of surplus property is approved for removal from official TCHC inventory lists as
needed with appropriate adjustments made to recorded assets by December 31, 2016:

1. Magic Chef Stove — Damaged/not repairable
Model #Cell11DaaH / Serial #1324720424

2. Westinghouse Stove — Damaged/not repairable
Model #KF211KDW / Serial #K/M71388

3. Kenmore Stove — Damaged/not repairable

Page 1 of 2
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Model #960 / Serial #9511164826

4. Magic Chef Stove — Damaged/not repairable
Model #M-FK211KDW / Serial #K/M71338

5. Magic Chef Refrigerator — Damaged/not repairable
Model #FT114NKXJWOO / Serial #vSL0908899

6. Magic Chef Stove — Damaged/not repairable
Model #CEL1110AAH / Serial # no information available

7. Westinghouse Stove — Damaged/not repairable
Model #KF211 KDW / Serial #KLM 712...worn off

8. Hot Point Stove — Damaged/not repairable
Model # worn off / Serial # worn off

9. Craftsman Trailer - No Companion Tractor (Unusable)
TCHC Inventory #1131

10. Echo Edger — No Longer Used
TCHC Inventory #0014

11. Echo Weedwhip —No Longer Used
TCHC inventory # 2400

12. Kimball Upright Piano — Formerly in Community Room (Replaced)
TCHC Inventory # 1644

Page 2 of 2



TRAVERSE CITY HOUSING COMMISSION

150 PINE STREET | TRAVERSE CITY | MICHIGAN |49684

MEMORANDUM
DATE: November 18, 2015
TO: All Commissioners of the Traverse City Housing Commission
FROM: Tony Lentych, Executive Directo;/'\L/

SUBJECT: Resolution on Doubtful Accounts

MESSAGE:

Attached you will find a list of former renters that have not responded to any attempts to
collect their past due amounts. After reviewing this list, and in accordance with advice from
our accountants on how HUD views doubtful accounts, staff is recommending that the attached
past due amounts on its doubtful account lists be declared bad debt removed from our financial
statements. The debts owed are still active in the HUD system (EIV) but it will be removed from
our books and we will no longer actively seek to collect or monitor it.

TCHC staff, therefore, recommends adoption of the following:

RESOLUTION TO REMOVE DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS FROM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
November 18, 2016

WHEREAS, the Traverse City Housing Commission has always attempted to collect the rents due
to it from its tenants in a timely manner but some rent, for a variety of reasons, is never
collected and is carried on our financial statements as doubtful accounts; and

WHEREAS, TCHC accountants suggest, and prudent policy dictates, that after some period of
time doubtful accounts are declared bad debt and removed from financial statements; and

WHEREAS, the Traverse City Housing Commission has reviewed the list of rents owed; and
WHEREAS, the TCHC concurs in the recommendation of the Executive Director and staff.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Traverse City Housing Commission as follows:

The amount of $7,855.66 is hereby removed from all Records and Financial Statements
of the Traverse City Housing Commission in accordance with all necessary rules and
regulations forthwith.

Page 1of 1
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TCHC Doubtful Accounts Aged 12 Months

Resident Amount Notes
Charlton S 363.00 August 2015
Quick S 113.25 September 2012
Taylor S 17.92 August 2014
Kimerly S 3.50 January 2014
Gholson S 143.61 November 2011
Beckham S 80.78 (208 #A) January 2014
Beckham S 161.98 (212 #B) December 2014
Verhoeven S 4,190.00 Jyly 2015
Schneider S 1,337.28 June 2014
Young S 790.99 July 2014
Byrd S 33.98 August 2015
Rokos S 196.77 May 2013
Moore S 422.60 August 2013

S 7,855.66

Current as of November 2016
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TRAVERSE CITY HOUSING COMMISSION

150 PINE STREET | TRAVERSE CITY | MICHIGAN | 49684

MEMORANDUM
DATE: November 18, 2016
TO: All Commissioners of the Traverse City Housing Commission
FROM: Tony Lentych, Executive Directo/r?/

SUBJECT: ACLU Response

MESSAGE:

TCHC Attorney, Ward Kuhn, has recommended that an Ad Hoc Committee of our Commission
be appointed to work with staff on developing our official response to the ACLU letter dated

November 3, 2016.

Staff has been working diligently, along with Ward Kuhn, to respond to the Freedom of
Information Act request which is the last half of their letter. The first half of the letter will be
the focus of the Ad Hoc committee’s efforts. | estimate that the committee will only need to
meet a few times over the next 6 weeks to accomplish our task.

ATTACHMENT: ACLU Letter of November 3, 2016

Pagelofl
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State Headquarters Legislative Office West Michigan Regional Office

2966 Woodward Avenue P.O. Box 18022 1514 Wealthy St. SE, Suite 242
Detroit, Ml 48201 Lansing, Ml 48901-8022 Grand Rapids, MI 49506
Phone 313.578.6800 Phone 517.372.8503 Phone 616.301.0930

. Fax 313.578.6811 Fax 517.372.5121 Fax 616.301.0640
AMERICAN CI¥IL LIBERTIES UNION E-mail aclu@aclumich.org  E-mail lansing@aclumich.org Email aclu@aclumich.orq
of MICHIGAN www.aclumich.org www.aclumich.org www.aclumich.org

November 3, 2016

Tony Lentych

Executive Director VIA EMAIL AND
Traverse City Housing Commission FIRST CLASS MAIL

150 Pine Street
Traverse City, MI 48684
tlentych@tcpha.net

Re:  Traverse City Housing Commission Threatened Eviction of Residents
For Political Signs

Dear Mr. Lentych:

We were disturbed to learn that the Traverse City Housing Commission threatened to evict
senior citizens and residents with disabilities from Riverview Terrace for simply exercising their
First Amendment right to express their political opinion in their own apartments. The housing
commission’s unconstitutional and heartless acts ignited immediate fear amongst the residents of
Riverview Terrace and had a chilling effect on their free speech rights. We urge the commission
to rescind the unconstitutional rule banning signs in or on resident dwellings, and assure all
residents that it will no longer retaliate against them for exercising their free speech rights. This
letter also contains a request for documents under the Michigan Freedom of Information Act.

Facts

As we understand it, on October 31, 2016, Alyssa Kroupa from your office issued eviction
notices to 15 residents of Riverview Terrace who were senior citizens and/or individuals with
disabilities. The sole reason given for demanding that they vacate their apartments was the fact
that they had placed paper pumpkin signs with the message “Yes 3” written on them in their
apartment windows. Residents displayed the “Yes 3” signs to express their support for Traverse
City’s Proposal 3 on the upcoming November ballot, which the Traverse City Housing
Commission (TCHC) voted to publicly oppose. (See TCHC Resolution No. 2016-15, October
28, 2016.) Apparently, you did not even issue a warning to the residents about the signs before
serving them with eviction notices.

We understand that a TCHC rule explicitly bans placing all signs in or about a resident’s
dwelling without prior written authorization of the TCHC but that there are no published
procedures or criteria to obtain the TCHC’s approval. As explained below, the rule is
unconstitutional on its face and as applied to facts of this case.
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The TCHC Ban on Posting Political Signs is Unconstitutional

In City of Ladue v. Gilleo, 512 U.S. 43 (1994), a woman challenged a city ordinance banning
residential signs expressing political views after a police officer told her that she was prohibited
from putting up a “Peace in the Gulf” sign in the window of her home. The United States
Supreme Court, in striking down the ordinance on First Amendment grounds, emphasized the
important role residential window signs play in this country’s political process:

[The City of] Ladue has almost completely foreclosed a venerable means of
communication that is both unique and important. It has totally foreclosed that
medium to political, religious, or personal messages. Signs that react to a local
happening or express a view on a controversial issue both reflect and animate
change in the life of a community. Often placed on lawns or in windows,
residential signs play an important part in political campaigns, during which they
are displayed to signal the resident's support for particular candidates, parties, or
causes. They may not afford the same opportunities for conveying complex ideas
as do other media, but residential signs have long been an important and distinct
medium of expression.

Id. at 54-54.

Similarly, the Washington Supreme Court, relying on Ladue, held that public housing residents
have a First Amendment right to post political signs on their front doors. Resident Action Council
v. Seattle Hous. Auth., 174 P.3d 84, 88 (Wash. 2008). In striking down as unconstitutional a
housing authority regulation banning door signs, the court recognized the value of freedom of
expression in an area over which the tenant maintained control:

[The] rule bans too much speech. The signs in this case may reflect reactions to
local events or signal support or opposition to political candidates or laws. They
do so in a manner that is inexpensive. Of particular importance here, the signs are
unique because “[d]isplaying a sign from one's own residence carries a message
quite distinct from placing the same sign someplace else” or by other means. The
identity of the resident is an “important component” of this means of
communication.

Id. at 88-89 (citations omitted).

TCHC’s rule prohibiting window signs, like the ordinance and regulation at issue in Ladue and
Resident Action Council, bans a valuable means for tenants to express their views in their own
residence. Riverview Terrace’s residents’ signs “play an important part in political campaign”
over Proposal 3 and are a cheap and convenient form of political speech for individuals with
modest means or limited mobility. Ladue, 512 U.S. at 56-57. Accordingly, the TCHC rule is
unconstitutional on its face.

The rule is also unconstitutional as applied to the facts of this case. We are told that many
residents, without prior authorization, have put other items up in their windows -- including
holiday decorations, flags, signs of a religious nature -- without being threatened with eviction or
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other punishment. Applying regulations in a way that discriminates based on the content of the
expression is “presumptively unconstitutional.” See Reed v. Town of Gilbert, 135 S. Ct. 2218,
2226 (2015). The fact that the TCHC rule was applied in such a heavy-handed manner against
those who opposed the housing commission position on Proposal 3, and not to other residents, is
also evidence that the commission took action in retaliation for the residents’ views — which is a
separate violation of the First Amendment. See, e.g., Hill v. Lappin, 630 F.3d 468, 473 (6th Cir.
2010) (“[R]etaliation for the exercise of constitutional rights is itself a violation of the

Constitution.”).

Finally, the residents’ leases describing the rule against signsindicate that residents may put up
signs if they first obtain permission from TCHC, but there is no indication as to what criteria are
used when deciding whether to grant permission. A regulation is unconstitutionally vague if it is
an unrestricted delegation of power that leaves the definition of its terms to the officials who
enforce it. Leonardson v. City of East Lansing, 896 F.2d 190, 196 (6th Cir. 1990). In order to
meet constitutional standards, a permitting scheme must contain “narrow, objective, and definite
standards to guide the licensing.” Shuttlesworth v. City of Birmingham, 394 U.S. 147, 151
(1969). Because the TCHC rule on signs has no standards and vests unbridled discretion in
housing commission employees to decide which messages to allow and which messages to
censor, it is an unconstitutional prior restraint on speech. /d.

Requested Action
To remedy the violation of your residents’ free speech rights, we urge you to:

1. Refrain from any further action to evict or otherwise discipline residents for placing
political signs in the windows of their apartments.

2. Immediately inform the residents of Riverside Terrace that they have a constitutional
right to post political signs in their windows.

3. Rescind the your no-signs rule and remove the no-signs provision from your standard
lease.

4. TIssue an apology to residents of Riverside Terrace whom you threatened with eviction
for exercising their constitutional rights to free speech.

Freedom of Information Act Request

Additionally, pursuant to the Michigan Freedom of Information Act (FOIA), M.C.L. § 15.231 et
seq., on behalf of the ACLU of Michigan we are requesting copies of all records related to
eviction notices served on residents of Riverview Terrace, 150 Pine Street, Traverse City, MI
49684 on or about October 31, 2016. Specifically, please provide:

1. All correspondence — including emails, letters, attachments and enclosures — to and from
members of the TCHC or Riverview Terrace management concerning Riverview Terrace
residents’ signs in the shape of pumpkins with the message “Yes 3” written on them from

October 28, 2016 to present.
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10.

All TCHC policies, guidelines, or rules regarding the procedure to secure approval from
the TCHC of a sign in accordance with Section IX(u) of the Traverse City Housing
Commission Residential Lease Agreement, Terms and Conditions.

All current TCHC policies, guidelines or rules regarding what criteria the TCHC uses to
approve or deny an application for sign approval pursuant to Section IX(u) of the
Traverse City Housing Commission Residential Lease Agreement, Terms and

Conditions.

All applications or requests from Riverview Terrace residents submitted to the TCHC for
sign approval pursuant to Section IX(u) of the Traverse City Housing Commission
Residential Lease Agreement, Terms and Conditions from January 1, 2016 to present.

All documents regarding the TCHC’s grant or denial of any application submitted by a
Riverview Terrace resident to approve a sign from January 1, 2016 to present.

All memoranda, reports, letters or other documents prepared by or for the TCHC
outlining the perceived need for a restriction on signs on or in Riverview Terrace
dwellings.

All minutes of meetings of the TCHC where Proposal 3 of the November 8, 2016
Traverse City ballot was the subject-matter of the meeting or otherwise discussed.

All eviction notices given to Riverview Terrace residents by the TCHC from October 28,
2016 to present relating to a resident displaying a pumpkin sign with the message “Yes
3” written on it.

All documents given to Riverview Terrace residents from the TCHC warning them about
displaying signs on or in their dwelling from October 28, 2016 to present.

All documents given to Riverview Terrace residents from the TCHC on November 1,
2016 concerning the residents’ compliance with the TCHC’s October 31, 2016 30-Day

Notices to Quit.

The ACLU requests that you waive or reduce any fee associated with this request as permitted by
M.C.L. § 15.234(1). Waiving or reducing the fee is in the public interest because disclosure of
the requested public records can be considered as primarily benefiting the general public in its
understanding of government activity pertaining to an issue of intense public interest. If this
request for waiver of fees is denied and it will cost more than $50 to process the request please
contact the undersigned before proceeding.

Please process and respond to this request pursuant to FOIA requirements, including responding
within five business days of receiving this request, by separating exempt from non-exempt
material, explaining the basis for any determination that any requested material is exempt from
disclosure, and describing any material that is deleted, redacted or withheld. We request that
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TCHC, in response to this request, comply with all relevant deadlines and other obligations set
forth in FOIA.

To reduce or avoid the costs and labor of printing and/or photocopying records, we request that
records be provided in electronic format wherever possible. Emails transmitting less than 10MB
of data may be sent to Bonsitu Kitaba (bkitaba@aclumich.org) or arrangements can be made to

supply you with a CD, flash drive, or email address capable of handling larger quantities of data.

Finally, if you have any questions about this request, please call Ms. Kitaba at 313-578-6823.

Very truly yours,

Michael J. Steinberg, Legal Director

Daniel Korobkin, Deputy Legal Director
Bonsitu Kitaba, Staff Attorney

American Civil Liberties Union of Michigan
2966 Woodward Avenue

Detroit, MI 48201

cc: VIA EMAIL ONLY

James Schaafsma, Housing Law Specialist
Michigan Poverty Law Program

Brenda Jones Quick, Esq.
Traverse City

Traverse City Housing Commissioners
Kay Serratelli (900kay(@sbcglobal.net)
Richard Michael (rtaxman@gmail.com)
Andy Smits (a.smits.tchc@gmail.com)
Brian Hass (bhaas@traversecitymi.gov)
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Traverse City Housing Commission
A Public Housing Authority

CORRESPONDENCE

Record Eagle FOIA Request of November 11, 2016
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Nov. 11, 2016

Tony Lentych
FOIA coordinator
Traverse City Housing Commission

This is a request under the Michigan Freedom of Information Act, Public Act 442 of 1976. 1 am
requesting a copy of the following public records from the Traverse City Housing Commission:

All eviction notices issued to any Traverse City Housing Commission property resident, from Jan. 1, 2016,
to the date this request is received, and all documents related to resultant eviction proceedings.

I am requesting a waiver of all fees associated with this request as outlined by section 15.234 of the
Freedom of Information Act, which allows for fee waivers when the release of the requested records is
in the public’s interest. Furthermare, | am a member of the media and will use the requested
information for non-commercial, news-gathering purposes.

| am prepared to pay reasonable fees for the cost of processing this request. However, if the cost of
locating and copying the information exceeds $25 please contact me before proceeding.

If this request is denied in whole or in part, please justify the rejection(s) by reference to specific
exemptions under FOIA, in accordance with requirements established by the Supreme Court in The
Evening News Association v. The City of Troy, 417 Mich 481 (1983). | also expect you to release all
segregable portions of otherwise exempt material.

The requested can be emailed to tcrenews@gmail.com or faxed to 231-946-8632. Please contact me at
the phone number below if you have any questions.

Sincerely,
Jordan Travis
Reporter

Traverse City Record-Eagle
231-933-1476

Tranerse Clt‘y_ =
Housing Commission
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Nov. 11, 2016

Tony Lentych
FOIA coordinator
Traverse City Housing Commission

This is a request under the Michigan Freedom of Information Act, Public Act 442 of 1976. | am
requesting a copy of the following public records from the Traverse City Housing Commission:

All eviction notices issued to any Riverview Terrace resident, from Jan. 1, 2016, to the date this request
is received, and all documents related to resultant eviction proceedings.

I am requesting a waiver of all fees associated with this request as outlined by section 15.234 of the
Freedom of Information Act, which allows for fee waivers when the release of the requested records is
in the public’s interest. Furthermore, | am a member of the media and will use the requested
information for non-commercial, news-gathering purposes.

| am prepared to pay reasonable fees for the cost of processing this request. However, if the cost of
locating and copying the information exceeds $25 please contact me before proceeding.

If this request is denied in whole or in part, please justify the rejection(s) by reference to specific
exemptions under FOIA, in accordance with requirements established by the Supreme Court in The
Evening News Association v. The City of Troy, 417 Mich 481 (1983). | also expect you to release all
segregable portions of otherwise exempt material.

The requested can be emailed to tcrenews@gmail.com or faxed to 231-946-8632. Please contact me at
the phone number below if you have any questions.

Sincerely,

Jordan Travis

Reporter

Traverse City Record-Eagle
231-933-1476
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